
 
 
 
 
 

City of Apopka 
Planning Commission 

Meeting Agenda 
June 12, 2018 

5:30 PM - CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 
I.     CALL TO ORDER 

 
If you wish to appear before the Planning Commission, please submit a “Notice of Intent to Speak” card to the 
Recording Secretary. 

 
II.    OPENING AND INVOCATION 
 
III.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 
1 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission meeting held May 22, 2018. 

 
IV.    PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
1. CHANGE OF ZONING – From R-1AA (Single Family Residential) to R-1 (Single Family Residential) for 

property owned by JTD Land at Rogers Road, LLC located at 1455 W. Lester Road. (Parcel ID No. 29-
20-28-0000-00-005)  

2. CHANGE OF ZONING – MASTER PLAN – KELLY PARK ROAD PUBLIX CENTER – From “County” A-
1 (ZIP) to “City” KPI-MU (Kelly Park Interchange Mixed Use); and assignment of the KPC Interchange 
and Village Center Overlay Districts for the property owned by JD and Kathleen L. Horne Trust and 
located at 4966 Plymouth-Sorrento Road. (Parcel ID No. 13-20-27-0000-00-008) 

3. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – From Residential 
Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) to Mixed Use Interchange (0-5 du/ac) for property owned by Min Sun 
Cho, Hong Sik and Deok Hwa Kim and located at 4068, 4046, & 4022 Plymouth Sorrento Road. (Parcel 
ID Nos.: 13-20-27-0000-00-019; 13-20-27-0000-00-020; 13-20-27-0000-00-021; 13-20-27-0000-00-058) 

4. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – From Agriculture 
to Industrial (Max. 0.6 FAR) for property owned by 3255 Clarcona Road LLC (aka Randall Mechanical) 
and located at 3307 Clarcona Road. (Parcel ID No. 27-21-28-0000-00-045) 

5. CHANGE OF ZONING – From AG (Agriculture) to I-1 (Restricted Industrial) for property owned by 3255 
Clarcona Road LLC (aka Randall Mechanical) and located at 3307 Clarcona Road. (Parcel ID No. 27-
21-28-0000-00-045) 

6. CHANGE OF ZONING – From C-2 (General Commercial District) to C-1 (Commercial Retail District) for 
property owned by SunTrust Bank and located at 936 East Semoran Boulevard. (Parcel ID No. 11-21-
28-0750-00-070) 



Planning Commission 
June 12, 2018 
Page 2 

 
7. CHANGE OF ZONING – PUD MASTER PLAN – VISTA RESERVE - From R-1AA (Residential Single 

Family District) to PUD (Planned Unit Development) for property owned by Wafaa Mikhail, George 
Abdelsayed, Lucy Abdelsayed, Wafeek Abdelsayed and located on the east side of Rogers Road, 
approximately one half mile north of the intersection of Rogers Road and Lester Road. (Parcel ID No. 
29-20-28-0000-00-003) 

8. VARIANCE – Approve a variance of the Apopka Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land Development Code, 
Article II, Section 2.02.05(H)(2) to allow a 6-foot tall composite fence within a 5-foot wide bufferyard in 
lieu of the required 6-foot tall brick, stone or decorative block wall within a 5-foot wide bufferyard on the 
western, northern and eastern perimeters for the property owned by Laura R. Murphy and located at 359 
West Lester Road. (Parcel ID No. 28-20-28-0000-00-060) 

9. VARIANCE – Approve a variance of the Apopka Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land Development Code, 
Article II, Section 2.02.07(H)(1)(a) to allow a 6-foot tall aluminum fence with masonry columns for 
portions of the proposed wall length and a 6-foot tall vinyl fence as part of the screening in areas 
adjacent to North Bradshaw Road or the eastern property line in lieu of the required 6-foot tall brick, 
stone or decorative block wall for the property owned by TGINF, LLC and located at 501 Old Dixie 
Highway. (Parcel ID No. 09-21-28-0000-00-006) 

 
V.     SITE PLANS: 

1. PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE SUBDIVISION – Property owned 
by TGINF, LLC c/o Alan Goldberg and located at 501 Old Dixie Highway.  (Parcel ID No.: 09-21-28-
0000-00-006)  

2. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN\PLAT – STANTON RIDGE – Property owned by Central Florida 
Expressway Authority and the property straddles SR 429, west of the intersection of Belgion Street and 
Plymouth Sorrento Road. 

3. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – WEKIVA RIVERWALK SHOPPING CENTER – Property owned by 
Woolbright Wekiva, LLC and located at 2121 East Semoran Boulevard.  (Parcel ID No.: 12-21-28-9093-
00-010)  

 
VI.    OLD BUSINESS: 
 
VII.   NEW BUSINESS: 
 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT: 
 

********************************************************************************************************** 
All interested parties may appear and be heard with respect to this agenda.  Please be advised that, under state law, if you decide to appeal 
any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, you will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes a 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.   The City of Apopka does not provide a verbatim record.    
 
In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in any 
of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk's Office at 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL  32703, telephone (407) 703-1704, no less 
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding. 
  



 
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON MAY 22, 2018, 
AT 5:30 P.M. IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, APOPKA, FLORIDA. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Linda Laurendeau, Tony Foster, Jose Molina, and Patrice Phillips 
 
ABSENT: James Greene, Roger Simpson, John Sprinkle, Orange County Public Schools (Non-voting) 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  James Hitt, FRA-RA – Community Development Director, David Moon, AICP - 
Planning Manager, Patrick Brackin – City Attorney, Bobby Howell - Senior Planner, Jean Sanchez – 
Planner II, Phil Martinez – Planner I, and Jeanne Green – Recording Secretary. 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Elizabeth Draper, Bryan Gaines, Rick Thometz, James Hoffman, Scott Glass, Jeb 
Bittner, Jim Hall, Jimmy Dunn, and Alexander H. Smith 
 
OPENING AND INVOCATION:  Vice-Chair Laurendeau called the meeting to order and asked for a 
moment of silent prayer.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Vice-Chair Laurendeau asked if there were any corrections or additions to 
the regular meeting minutes of May 8, 2018, at 5:30 p.m.   
 
Motion: Tony Foster made a motion to approve the Planning Commission minutes from the 

regular meeting held on May 8, 2018, at 5:30 p.m. and seconded by Jose Molina. Aye 
votes were cast by Linda Laurendeau, Tony Foster, Jose Molina, and Patrice Phillips 
(4-0).  

 
LEGISLATIVE – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 
AMENDMENT – Vice-Chair Laurendeau stated this is a request to find the proposed amendment 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and 
recommend transmittal of the Future Land Use Map designation from Agriculture and Mixed Use to 
Industrial to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity for the property owned by Eagles Landing 
at Ocoee, LLC, and located south of Peterson Road and west of State Road 429. 
     
Staff Presentation:  Phil Martinez, Planner I, stated this is a request to find the proposed amendment 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and 
recommend transmittal of the Future Land Use Map designation from Agriculture and Mixed Use to 
Industrial to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity for the property owned by Eagles Landing 
at Ocoee, LLC, and located south of Peterson Road and west of State Road 429.  The existing use is vacant 
land and the potential development is 977,486 sq. ft. industrial, commercial wholesale, or commercial 
services space.  The current zoning is R-1AA (Single Family Residential), A-1 (ZIP), Agriculture, and 
Mixed Use-Employment Center.  The proposed zoning is Planned Unit Development.  The existing 
maximum allowable development is 511 dwelling units.  The proposed maximum allowable development 
is 977,486 sq. ft.  The tract size is 37.4 +/- acres with 34.05 +/- acres Mixed Use and 3.35 +/- acres of 
Agriculture. 
 
The applicant intends to use the subject properties for an industrial park, and requests the City to assign a 
future land use designation of Industrial to the property.  An industrial warehouse developer has proposed 
to city staff to couple the subject site to industrial-zoned parcels to the north and northeast for an industrial 
complex. 
 
The subject properties were annexed into the City on May 20, 1998 via Ordinance 1171 and on July 3, 2006 
via Ordinance 1833.  The proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the 
owner/applicant.  Pursuant to Florida law, properties ten acres or more are required to undergo review by 
State planning agencies. 
 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON MAY 22, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
2 of 5 

 

A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Industrial is compatible with the designations assigned 
to abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 37.4 acres.  

 
Industrial FLUM Uses:  “The primary use shall be industrial, intensive commercial, agricultural and 
business/research parks. Also allowed are public facilities and supporting infrastructure. The use of the 
Planned Unit Development process shall be encouraged. The maximum floor area ratio shall be 0.60.” 
[Emphasis added] 
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report).  Based on 
the findings of the Land Use report, the proposed FLUM amendment is compatible with the surrounding 
and nearby land uses and the character of the general area. 
 
The proposed use of the property is consistent with the Institutional/Public Use designation and the 
proposed Professional Office\Institutional zoning. 
 
Since the proposed use, an industrial park, is a non-residential use, a capacity enhancement agreement with 
OCPS is not required. 
 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  The 
City properly notified Orange County on May 9, 2018. 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends transmittal of the change 
in Future Land Use from Agriculture (0-1 du/5 ac) and Mixed Use to Industrial for the properties owned by 
Eagles Landing at Ocoee, LLC. 
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommend transmittal 
of the Future Land Use Map designation from Agriculture and Mixed Use to Industrial to the Florida 
Department of Economic Opportunity. 
 
This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made 
a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Vice-Chair Laurendeau opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, Vice-Chair 
Laurendeau closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Jose Molina made a motion to find the proposed amendment consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and 
recommend transmittal of the Future Land Use Map designation from Agriculture and 
Mixed Use to Industrial to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity for the 
property owned by Eagles Landing at Ocoee, LLC, and located south of Peterson Road 
and west of State Road 429.  Motion seconded by Tony Foster.  Aye votes were cast by 
Linda Laurendeau, Tony Foster, Jose Molina, and Patrice Phillips (4-0). (Vote taken 
by poll.) 

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – BRIDLE PATH SUBDIVISION 
- Vice-Chair Laurendeau stated this is a request to find the Bridle Path Preliminary Development Plan 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and Bridle Path Master 
Plan; and recommend approval of the Bridle Path Preliminary Development Plan subject to the findings of 
this staff report and City Council approval of a Development Agreement for the property owned by AHIFO-
18 LLC and located west of Plymouth-Sorrento Road and east of SR 429, approximately  one-half mile 
north of the intersection of Kelly Park Road and Plymouth-Sorrento Road. 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON MAY 22, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
3 of 5 

 

 
Vice-Chair Laurendeau asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No one 
spoke. 
 
Vice-Chair Laurendeau asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No one spoke. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Bobby Howell, AICP, Senior Planner, stated this is a request to find the Bridle Path 
Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, Kelly Park Interchange Form 
Based Code, and Bridle Path Master Plan; and recommend approval of the Bridle Path Preliminary 
Development Plan subject to the findings of this staff report and City Council approval of a Development 
Agreement for the property owned by AHIFO-18 LLC and located west of Plymouth-Sorrento Road and 
east of SR 429, approximately  one-half mile north of the intersection of Kelly Park Road and Plymouth-
Sorrento Road.  The existing uses are a vacant, abandoned two-story house and horse stables.  The proposed 
use is a 152 singly family home subdivision including a pool house and multi-use trails.  The current future 
land use amendment is “City” Mixed Use Interchange (1–5 du/ac) as adopted May 16, 2018 and the current 
zoning is “County” PD (ZIP) and the proposed zoning is “City” KPI-MU (Kelly Park Interchange Mixed 
Use) and assignment of the Kelly Park Interchange Neighborhood Overlay District. The tract size is 51 +/- 
acres 
 
The owner of the subject property is requesting approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for a 152 unit, 
single-family detached subdivision located east of SR 429 and west of Plymouth-Sorrento Road, 
approximately one-half mile north of the intersection of Kelly Park Road and Plymouth-Sorrento Road. The 
owner is AHIFO-18, LLC. The property is located within the one-mile radius from the SR 429/Kelly Park 
Road interchange and is subject to the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, 
including its architectural standards for single family homes. 
 
Development Profile: 
 
No. of residential lots: 152 single family homes, detached 
 
Minimum lot width: 50 

  
feet (all lots 50 feet wide) 
 

Minimum lot depth: 110 Feet (all lots 110 feet deep) 
Minimum lot size: 5,500 square feet (all proposed\FBC has no minimum lot size) 
Minimum house livable area: 1,500 square feet (proposed\FBC does not address) 
 
Setbacks:   
 Front: Min. 15 feet – Max. 30 feet 
 Rear: Min. 20 feet 
 Side: Min. 5 feet 
 Garage: Same as front 
Overflow Parking None 
Driveway length: Min. 15 feet – Max. 30 feet 
On-street parking: None proposed 
Max. number of floors: Two 
Parking: Two spaces per house within the lot (enclosed or exterior; FBC does 

not require enclosed parking).  No overflow parking proposed. 
 
Amenities:   

 Pool house with cabana; no parking spaces 
 Walking paths around stormwater ponds (developer proposes mulch\staff recommends 

established surface – concrete or asphalt) 
 Regional Trails:  two – along Plymouth-Sorrento Road, and internal along stormwater pond and 

wetland edges. 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON MAY 22, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
4 of 5 

 

 
The Preliminary Development Plan proposes development of the property with a total of 152 single-family 
homes on 50-foot by 110-foot wide lots and a minimum living area of 1,500 square feet. The property is 
located within the one-mile radius from the SR 429/Kelly Park Road interchange and is subject to the 
requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code. There are no minimum and maximum lot 
size and living area requirements in the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code. The project may be 
developed in multiple phases, with each phase determined upon submittal of the Final Development Plan. 
The Preliminary Development Plan details design of the proposed subdivision in accordance with the 
requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and the Neighborhood character zone, which 
primarily allows single-family homes as permitted uses. The surrounding properties consist of single-family 
residential and agricultural uses.  
 
Roads and Paths -- Access to the site is proposed via Plymouth-Sorrento Road. A dedication of a 30-foot 
wide strip for future right-of-way needs for Plymouth-Sorrento Road is detailed on the Master Plan. Behind 
this strip, a 30-foot area will be reserved for a landscape buffer along Plymouth-Sorrento Road. Three 
roadway connections will be provided to allow cross-access to the properties to the north and south at such 
time they develop.  The Preliminary Development Plan details the design of the internal street system with 
public streets utilizing a walkable grid design, which is a fused grid design that includes varied street, 
sidewalk and pedestrian pathways throughout a development that links developments. A 10-foot wide trail 
will be constructed within the development, and connections to the properties to the north and south will be 
provided to facilitate development of a regional trail system. A cul-de-sac is provided in the southwestern 
corner of the site, adjacent to the park and stormwater pond, and is provided to accommodate trail 
connection and to create an open space corridor along stormwater pond system and wetland area. Properties 
adjacent to the cul-de-sac will have access to the trail system which will allow pedestrian access to the 
common areas internal to the development. The developer will provide a 12-foot wide multi-purpose trail 
along the portion of the development abutting Plymouth-Sorrento Road to help facilitate the construction 
of the regional trail system. 
 
Environmental\Open Space -- A wetland area exists in the northwest corner of the development. A spring is 
located within the wetland area. Per the Comprehensive Plan, a 300-foot buffer will be provided around the 
spring. Stormwater ponds are located in the southwestern corner of the site. Four-foot wide walking paths 
are provided around the perimeter of the ponds. Twenty-percent of the total site area will remain as open 
space in accordance with the requirements of the Form Based Code. Common recreation elements include 
a clubhouse with a pool, an internal trail system, preserved wetlands, upland buffers, and a park/stormwater 
facility.   
 
The proposed use of the property is consistent with the Mixed-Use Interchange Future Land Use designation 
and is consistent with the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code.   
 
A School Capacity Enhancement Agreement has been approved by OCPS. The location is served by the 
following schools: Zellwood Elementary, Wolf Lake Middle, and Wekiva High School.  No development 
activity shall occur on the subject property until the developer has obtained a school concurrency mitigation 
agreement or letter from OCPS.   
 
Pursuant to Section 7 of the Joint Planning Area agreement, Orange County was notified on April 3, 2018.   
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Bridle Path Preliminary Development 
Plan. 
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission find the Bridle Path Preliminary Development Plan 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and Bridle Path Master 
Plan; and recommend approval of the Bridle Path Preliminary Development Plan subject to the findings of 
this staff report and City Council approval of a Development Agreement.     
 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON MAY 22, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
5 of 5 

 

This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made 
a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Petitioner:  Jim Hall, HDSI, 1302 Osprey Avenue, Orlando, stated he represents the owners of the property.  

After a brief confirmation of staff’s presentation, Mr. Hall stated that the development agreement between the 

property owner and the City is being finalized and will address the development requirements. 

 

Mr. Moon advised the Planning Commission that their motion, if they plan to recommend approval, needs to 

include the execution of the Developer’s Agreement that will address issues such as the dedication of property 

to allow for the future widening of Plymouth Sorrento Road; and the timing of the development of the park and 

open space. 

 

In response to a question by Ms. Phillips, Mr. Hall stated that at this time they are preparing the property and do 

not have a builder.  It is too early in the process to know what the cost of the houses will be. 
 
Vice-Chair Laurendeau opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, Vice-Chair 
Laurendeau closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Tony Foster made a motion to  the Bridle Path Preliminary Development Plan 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, 
and Bridle Path Master Plan; and recommend approval of the Bridle Path Preliminary 
Development Plan subject to the findings of this staff report and City Council approval 
of a Development Agreement for the property owned by AHIFO-18 LLC and located 
west of Plymouth-Sorrento Road and east of SR 429, approximately  one-half mile 
north of the intersection of Kelly Park Road and Plymouth-Sorrento Road.  Motion 
seconded by Patrice Phillips. Aye votes were cast by Linda Laurendeau, Tony Foster, 
Jose Molina, and Patrice Phillips (4-0). (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
OLD BUSINESS:  None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 5:57 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
Linda Laurendeau, Vice-Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
James K. Hitt, FRA-RA 
Community Development Director 

 



 
 

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 

 

 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: June 12, 2018 
 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
 OTHER:   Vicinity Map 
    Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses 

  

SUBJECT:    CHANGE OF ZONING – JTD LAND AT ROGERS ROAD LLC (AKA 

CARRIAGE HILL PHASE 2) 

    

REQUEST:  CHANGE OF ZONING – JTD LAND AT ROGERS ROAD LLC (AKA 

CARRIAGE HILL PHASE 2) 

  FROM: R-1AA (SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) 

  TO: R-1 (SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:    JTD Land at Rogers Road, LLC 
 
APPLICANT:    Dewberry c/o Sarah Maier 
 
LOCATION:  1455 W. Lester Road  
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER:  29-20-28-0000-00-005  
 
EXISTING USE:   Vacant, Woodlands and Grasslands 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  R-1AA 
 
FUTURE LAND USE DESG.: Res. Low Suburban (0 – 3.5 du\ac) 
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTAIL: 36 Single Family Homes 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: R-1 (Single Family Residential District)  
 
TRACT SIZE:    5.75 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: 20 single family homes 
ZONING DISTRICT:                         PROPOSED: 20 single family homes 
   
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 
 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2018\Carriage Hill 2 



CITY COUNCIL – JUNE 12, 2018 

JTD LAND AT ROAGERS ROAD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: Presently, the subject property is assigned a zoning category of R-1AA.  
The applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of R-1 (Single Family Residential) to 
the northern 5.75 acres of the property.  Access will occur from public roads within Carriage Hills Phase 1.   
 
The subject parcel was annexed into the city on August 22, 1990 by Ordinance Number 624. 
  
A request to assign a change of zoning to R-1 is compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications and with 
the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area. Carriage Hill Phase 1, is the west adjacent 
property, also zoned R-1. The subject property is intended to incorporate into Carriage Hill Phase 1 with 
the same R-1 zoning. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed zoning of the property is 
consistent with the proposed Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du / ac) Future Land Use designation. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on April 2, 2018.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
June 12, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

June 20, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

August 1, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2nd Reading and Adoption  
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  
Public Notice and Notification- June 1, 2018 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Change of Zoning from R-1AA to R-1 for the property owned by JTD Land at Rogers Road, LLC, and 
located at 1455 West Lester Road. 
 
Recommended Motion: Planning Staff recommends finding the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval 
of the proposed Change of Zoning from R-1AA to R-1 for the property owned by JTD Land at Rogers Road, 
LLC, and located at 1455 West Lester Road. 
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



CITY COUNCIL – JUNE 12, 2018 

JTD LAND AT ROAGERS ROAD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North Residential Low Suburban R-1AA Vacant Property 

East Residential Low Suburban PUD Oak Hill Reserve Subdivision 

South Residential Low Suburban PUD HOA Park 

West Residential Low Suburban R-1 Carriage Hill Phase 1 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC  

COMPATIBILITY: The proposed access point for this property is from Carriage Pointe 

Loop, a street in Carriage Hill Phase 1.   

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

COMPLIANCE:  The proposed R-1 zoning is consistent with the proposed Future Land 

Use designation, “Residential Low Suburban” (0-3.5 du / ac) and with 

the character of the surrounding area and future proposed 

development. Development Plans shall not exceed the density 

allowed in the adopted Future Land Use designation.   
          

ALLOWABLE USES:   

 

1. Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures 

and uses in accordance with article VII of this code. 

 

2. Supporting infrastructure and public facilities of less than five 

acres as defined in this code and in accordance with section 

2.02.01  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL – JUNE 12, 2018 

JTD LAND AT ROAGERS ROAD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

JTD Land at Rogers Rd, LLC 

5.75 +/- acres  
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: R-1AA 
To: R-1 

Parcel ID #: 29-20-28-0000-00-005 
 

VICINITY MAP 
  

Subject 

Property 



CITY COUNCIL – JUNE 12, 2018 

JTD LAND AT ROAGERS ROAD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

 

 

 
ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

 

 



CITY COUNCIL – JUNE 12, 2018 

JTD LAND AT ROAGERS ROAD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES MAP 
 

 



 

 

 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: June 12, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: Master Plan/PDP    Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 
    Existing Use Map 
    Ex. A – Master Plan/PDP 

  
SUBJECT:  CHANGE OF ZONING, ASSIGNMENT OF KPC INTERCHANGE AND 

VILLAGE CENTER OVERLAY DISTRICTS, AND APPROVAL OF MASTER 

PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMNENT PLAN – KELLY PARK ROAD 

PUBLIX CENTER 
 
REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE CHANGE OF ZONING AND ASSIGN 

OVERLAY DISTRICTS AS KPC INTERCHANGE AND VILLAGE CENTER 

OVERLAY DISTRICTS 
  FROM: “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) 

  TO: “CITY” KPI-MU (KELLY PARK INTERCHANGE MIXED USE) 
  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER:    JD and Kathleen L Horne Trust  
 
APPLICANT:    Randy Holihan, Brandon Partners  
 
LOCATION: 4966 Plymouth-Sorrento Road  
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 13-20-27-0000-00-008 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  City of Apopka Mixed Use Interchange  
 
CURRENT ZONING: Orange County A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: 68,231 square feet of commercial uses including a 46,031 square 

foot Publix supermarket  
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU) 
 
TRACT SIZE:    18.13 +/- acres 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

KELLY PARK PUBLIX – CHANGE OF ZONING, PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: The owner of the subject property is requesting a rezoning of 18.13 

acres of property from Orange County A-1 (ZIP) to Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU), with an 

Interchange and Village Center character zone to develop a 68,231 square foot commercial development 

including a 46,031 Publix supermarket subject to the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form 

Based Code. The subject property is located east of SR 429 and west of Plymouth-Sorrento Road, on the 

southwest side of the intersection of Kelly Park Road and Plymouth-Sorrento Road. The owner of the 

property is JD and Kathleen L Horne Trust.    

 

Development Profile: 

 

Setbacks:   

 Front: Min. 8 feet – Max. 20 feet – Village Center, Min. 10 feet, Max. 20 feet - 

Interchange 

 Rear: Min. 10 feet - Village Center, Min. 10 ft. – Interchange  

 Side: Min. 0 feet – Village Center, Min. 7.5 – Interchange  

Overflow Parking None 

Driveway length: Min. 15 feet – Max. 30 ft. 

On-street parking: 9 parking spaces provided  

Maximum building height: Min. 2 stories encouraged, Max. 5 stories – Village Center, Min. N/A, Max. 

8 stories – Interchange  

Off-street parking: 293 parking spaces  

 
 
In accordance with the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, the owner has 
submitted a Master Plan in conjunction with the rezoning application detailing the development of the 
proposed commercial center. The property currently has a future land use designation of City of Apopka 
Mixed Use Interchange, which is a consistent future land use category with the KPI-MU zoning designation. 
The property is located within the one-mile radius from the SR 429/Kelly Park Road interchange.   
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan proposes development of 
the property with a total of 68,231 square feet of commercial uses including a 46,031 square foot Publix 
supermarket on 18.13 acres. The Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan details design of the proposed 
development in accordance with the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and the 
Village Center and Interchange character zones, which allows commercial development as permitted uses. 
The surrounding properties currently consist primarily of agricultural uses.  
 
The Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan proposes dividing the property into three blocks, labeled 
as Blocks “A”, “B”, and “C”. Block “A” will consist of a 7,200 square foot retail building, parking to serve 
the commercial uses, and a 0.9 acre outparcel labeled as “future development.” Block “B” will consist of a 
46,031 square foot Publix supermarket, and three retail buildings ranging in size from 3,000 to 6,000 square 
feet, and parking to serve the commercial uses. Block “C” is 7.33 acres and is reserved for future 
development. A temporary stormwater retention pond serving Blocks “A” and “B” will be located on Block 
“C”. The applicant proposes to assign the Village Center character zone to Blocks “A” and “B”, and the 
Interchange character zone to Block “C”.  
 
Access to the site is proposed via a full access point and a right-in/right-out located on Kelly Park Road, 
and a right-in/right-out and a full access located on Plymouth-Sorrento Road. The Master Plan/Preliminary 
Development Plan details the dedication of 100-feet of right-of-way in the center of the property to the City. 
This public right-of-way will facilitate the development of the internal north-south roadway to Appy Lane.  
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

KELLY PARK PUBLIX – CHANGE OF ZONING, PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 3 
 

The Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan details the development of this roadway within the subject 

property in accordance with street type B (Village Center Access Street) as outlined in the Kelly Park 

Interchange Form Based Code. A 9-foot wide on-street parking area, a 7-foot wide bike lane, an 8-foot wide 

sidewalk, a 12-foot wide drive lane, and an 11-foot median will be constructed on this road. A 12-foot wide 

bicycle/pedestrian trail will be provided along the eastern portion of the property abutting Kelly Park Road. 

A five foot wide sidewalk will be dedicated along Plymouth-Sorrento Road. An internal pedestrian network 

will be established within the commercial portion of the site. A landscape gateway with an entry feature and 

water feature will be provided at the main entrance to the development on Kelly Park Road. 20-percent of 

the total site area will remain as open space in accordance with the requirements of the Form Based Code.  

 

DEVELOPMENT AND ZONING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:  That the zoning classification of 

the following described property be designated as Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU), 

Neighborhood character zone, as defined in the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and with the 

following provisions: 
 

1. Development of the property is subject to the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form 
Based Code, Neighborhood character zone.  

 
2. The architectural design of the buildings must be consistent with Section K.2.g, and Appendix A of 

the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code.  
 

3. A 12-foot wide multi-purpose trail will be constructed along the portion of the development abutting 
Plymouth-Sorrento Road to facilitate the construction of a regional trail system. (Policy 20.19, 
FLUE; Sec. Q, FBC).  The trail shall be placed in an easement or tract. 

 
4. Perpetual easements dedicated to the City of Apopka shall be provided over the internal pedestrian 

pathways and trail networks to allow public access. 
 

5. A development agreement shall address the extension of utilities, dedication of rights-of-way, and 
public access to regional trail facilities. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Mixed-Use Interchange Future Land Use designation and is consistent with the Kelly Park Interchange 

Form Based Code.   

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: Pursuant to Section 7 of the Joint Planning Area agreement, 

Orange County was notified on May 11, 2018.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

June 12, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

July 18, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

August 1, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

June 1, 2018 – Public Notice; Letter, Poster 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

KELLY PARK PUBLIX – CHANGE OF ZONING, PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 4 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed rezoning to Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use 

(KPI-MU), and assignment of a Village Center and Interchange character zones consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan and Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and recommends approval of the Kelly 

Park Publix Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan. 

 

Recommended Motion:  Find the proposed zoning, overlay district and Master Plan/Preliminary 

Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and recommend 

approval of the rezoning of the subject parcels from Orange County A-1 (ZIP) to Kelly Park Interchange 

Mixed-Use (KPI-MU) and assign the  KPC Village Center and Interchange Overlay Districts, and approval 

of the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan based on the findings and facts presented in the staff 

report, exhibits, and City Council approval of a Development Agreement for the property owned by JD and 

Kathleen L Horne Trust and located at 4966 Plymouth-Sorrento Road. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

KELLY PARK PUBLIX – CHANGE OF ZONING, PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 5 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) (County) Rural A-1 (ZIP), A-1 
Single-family residential/ 

Kelly Park Road right-of-way 

East (City) Very Low Suburban A-1 (ZIP) 
Plymouth-Sorrento Road,  

Single-family residential  

South (County) Rural A-1 Penang Nursery  

West (County) None SR 429 right-of-way SR 429 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property is accessed via Kelly Park Road and Plymouth-Sorrento 

Road. Internal streets are public and will be owned and maintained by 
the City of Apopka. Future land use designations and zoning 
categories assigned to properties to the north, south, east, and west are 
predominantly residential, and agricultural.    

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU) zoning 

is compatible with policies set forth in the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Commercial uses as set forth within the Master Plan. 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

KELLY PARK PUBLIX – CHANGE OF ZONING, PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 6 
 

 
Project: KELLY PARK PUBLIX 

Owned by:  JD and Kathleen L. Horne Trust 

Located: East of SR 429, south of Kelly Park Road and west of Plymouth-Sorrento Road 

Parcel ID#: 13-20-27-0000-00-008 

 

VICINITY MAP 
 

   



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

KELLY PARK PUBLIX – CHANGE OF ZONING, PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

KELLY PARK PUBLIX – CHANGE OF ZONING, PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

KELLY PARK PUBLIX – CHANGE OF ZONING, PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code Area 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Subject properties  



KELLY PARK ROAD
(VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC R/W)

NOT PLATTED
OWNER: CENTRAL FLORIDA
EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

PARCEL ID: 13-20-27-0000-00-007
ORB 10778, PG 1273

W. LINE, NE 1/4, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

BAY RIDGE HEIGHTS
PB "X", PG 143

LOT 1LOT 2

30' R/W PER, DB 398, PG 188

S. LINE N. 1/2
NE 1/4, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27
(BEARING BASIS)

E. LINE, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

N
00

°1
4'

36
"W

  5
96

.3
4'

 D
ES

C

N87°44'58"E  561.08' D&M N88°21'18"E  724.60' D&M

S0
0°

09
'1

1"
W

  5
81

.6
2'

 D
&

M

S88°34'31"W  1306.99' D&M
UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

1.2'

6' CLF6' METAL FENCE

6' METAL FENCE
2.9'

0.3'E

COLUMN
(TYP)

6' CLF

CBW

CBW

1.4'

6' METAL FENCE

TRAFFIC BOX
TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLE

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

POB
SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

RETENTION AREARETENTION AREARETENTION AREARETENTION AREA

RETENTION AREA

FND 4"x4" CM
RLS #1916

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

FND 4"x4" CM
NO #

N
00
°1
4'
36
"W
  5
96
.3
5'
 M
EA
S

C1

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

STOP BAR

STOP BARYELLOW LINE

YELLOW LINE
YELLOW LINE
WHITE LINE

WHITE LINE

WHITE LINE

WHITE LINE

YE
LL

O
W

 L
IN

E

W
HI

TE
 L

IN
E

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

1.6'

6' CLF 6' CLF

0.9'N

CONTIGUOUS WITH
W. R/W LINE

CONTIGUOUS WITH
S. R/W LINE

PARCEL ID: 13-20-27-0000-00-008

A

B

B

N88°20'47"E
1357.89' DESC

POC
NE CORNER
NE 1/4, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

W. LINE
ORB 10756, PG 6799

S. LINE
ORB 10756, PG 6799

W. LINE
ORB 10756, PG 6799

NT

NT

N. LINE, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

L2
L3

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

D
D

O

N

L
Y

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

O
N

L
Y

O
N

L
Y

O

N

L
Y

8 spaces

10 spaces

D D

4 spaces

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

1
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

1
0
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8 spaces

6
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

1
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7 spaces

1
0
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

5 spaces6 spaces

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8 spaces

5
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7 spaces

8 spaces

1
0
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6+2 spaces

8 spaces

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

3
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

ONLY

ONLY

O
N

L
Y

Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746
phone:  407-323-0705
fax:  407-992-8650

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE
DESCRIPTION

Revisions

P
la

n
s 

n
o

t 
v

al
id

 u
n

le
ss

 S
ig

n
ed

,
D

at
ed

 a
n

d
 S

ea
le

d
 b

el
o

w
.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
at

e:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
F

L
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 #
5

8
7

7
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 #

2
9

6
6

5

G
E

O
F

F
R

E
Y

 L
. 
S

U
M

M
IT

T
, 
P

.E
.

OF

c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL  32803

(407) 835-9000
----

Kelly Park Rd.
Publix Center

City of Apopka, Florida
Final Master/Preliminary
Development Plan

4 10a

Overall Site
Plan

Publix Supermarkets, Inc.

A
p
ri

l 
8
, 
2
0
1
8

01/18 Initial Plans Release

Revised For City Of Apopka Comments04-18

--------

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

SOILS LEGEND:

CHANDLER FINE SANDS (0-5%)

CHANDLER FINE SANDS (5-12%)

CHANDLER APOPKA FINE SANDS

4

5

6

SITE DATA:

Parcel I.D. #: 13-20-27-0000-00-008

Existing FLU: Wekiva Parkway Interchange Mixed-Use (MU-WPI)

Existing Zoning: A-1

Proposed Zoning: Wekiva Parkway Interchange Mixed-Use (MU-WPI)

Design District: Village Center

Allowable Uses: All uses allowed under Section F Table 2 (Village Center)

Gross Land Area:   18.13 acres

Non-Developable Area:     0.00 acres

Dedicated ROW Area:     1.39 acres

Net Developable Area:   16.74 acres

Proposed Commercial Sqft.: 68,231 sqft. (phase 1A-D)

Total Commercial Sqft.: 68,231 sqft. (phase 1)

Proposed Floor Area Ratio: 0.16 F.A.R.

Minimum Lot Width: 80'

Minimum Lot Depth: N/A

Minimum Lot Size: 6,000 sqft.

Maximum ISR: 90%

Minimum Open Space %: 10% (Common Open Space)

Setbacks:

Front: 8' Min.; 20' Max.

Side: 0', 20'(adjacent to Neighborhood)

Side Street: 8' Min.; 20' Max.

Rear: 10' Min.; 20' Max.

Kelly Park Rd.: 8' Min.; 20' Max. (from ROW line)

Plymouth Sorrento Rd.: 8' Min.' 20' Max. (from ROW line)

Additional Notes:

1.Billboards  and  pole  signs  shall  be  prohibited.

2. There are no onsite wetland areas, existing ponds are not considered surface waters.

3.All common areas to maintained by a Property Owners Association.

Off-Street Parking:

Required Parking:

Block B "Publix"

Commercial Retail Space:  3.5spaces per 1,000 sqft.:  (46,031 sqft. (phase 1A))=   162

Total Required Parking:                       162

Provided Parking:

Surface 10X18 Parking Spaces Provided:         230 spaces

Handicap 12X20 Parking Spaces Provided:    7 spaces

Total Parking Provided:                237 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                     7 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:             8 spaces

  Block B (Building 1)

  Restaurant Space:  4 space + 1 space per 3 Seats:  (80 seats) =   31

Total Required Parking:      31

Provided Parking:

Surface 10X18 Parking Spaces Provided:       32 spaces

Handicap 12X18 Parking Spaces Provided: 2 spaces

Total Parking Provided:              33 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                 2 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:         2 spaces

  Block B (Building 2)

Commercial Retail Space:  3.5spaces per 1,000 sqft.: (6,000 sqft. (phase 1b)) =   21

Total Required Parking:                 21

Provided Parking:

Surface 9X18 Parking Spaces Provided:             22 spaces

  Handicap 12X18 Parking Spaces Provided: 1 spaces

Total Parking Provided:              23 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                 1 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:         1 spaces

  Block A (Building 1)

Commercial Retail Space:  3.5spaces per 1,000 sqft.: (7,200 sqft. (phase 1c)) =   26

Total Required Parking:                 26

Provided Parking:

Surface 9X18 Parking Spaces Provided:             27 spaces

  Handicap 12X18 Parking Spaces Provided: 2 spaces

Total Parking Provided:              29 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                 2 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:         2 spaces

  Block B (Building 3)

Commercial Retail Space:  3.5spaces per 1,000 sqft.: (6,000 sqft. (phase 1d)) =   21

Total Required Parking:                 21

Provided Parking:

Surface 9X18 Parking Spaces Provided:             22 spaces

  Handicap 12X18 Parking Spaces Provided: 1 spaces

Total Parking Provided:              23 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                 1 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:         1 spaces

Phasing:

Project will be constructed in multiple phases see phasing plan for details.

Stormwater Management:

The project will meet the requirements for the City of Apopka Code Sec. 6.05 and the

requirements of the St. Johns Rivier Water Management District.

Needed Fire Flow (NFF): (Based on FFPC 2012 Edition Chapter 18 & Annex I)

Phase 1A: 3,750 gpm (Type II 200 non-sprinklered);  1,875 gpm sprinklered

Building 1 Phase 1B: 1,500 gpm (Type V 200 non-sprinklered);   1,000 gpm sprinklered)

Building 2 Phase 1B: 2,000 gpm (Type V 200 non-sprinklered);   1,000 gpm sprinklered)

Phase 1C: 1,750 gpm (Type III 200 non-sprinklered); 1,000 gpm sprinklered

Phase 1D: 1,750 gpm (Type III 200 non-sprinklered); 1,000 gpm sprinklered)

Trip Generation Rates:

Average Daily Trips: Phase 1A: 46,031 sqft x 68.73 trips/1,000sqft. x day = 3,164 trips/day

Phase 1B:   9,000 sqft x 68.73 trips/1,000sqft. x day = 619 trips/day

Phase 1C:   7,200 sqft x 68.73 trips/1,000sqft. x day = 495 trips/day

Phase 1D:   6,000 sqft x 68.73 trips/1,000sqft. x day = 412 trips/day

          Total ADT = 4,690 trips/day

PM Peak Hour Trips: Phase 1A: 46,031 sqft x 6.06 trips/1,000 sqft. x day =  279 PM Peak Trips

Phase 1B: 9,000 sqft x 6.06 trips/1,000 sqft. x day   =   55 PM Peak Trips

Phase 1C: 7,200 sqft x 6.06 trips/1,000 sqft. x day   =   44 PM Peak Trips

Phase 1D: 6,000 sqft x 6.06 trips/1,000 sqft. x day   =   37 PM Peak Trips

       Total PM Peak Trips = 415 PM Peak Trips

Form Based Code Requirements:

1.Per Section 4.C of the FBC, buildings exceeding 20,000 square feet in area must be articulated to appear

as multiple buildings grouped together.

2.Per Section 7.b of the FBC, all non-residential first floor requires a minimum of 30% glazing.

3.Per Section 3 of the FBC, all building facades shall be designed with Articulation.

4.Per Section K.11 of the FBC, all building mechanical equipment shall be integrated into the overall mass of

a building by screening the equipment behind parapets or recessing equipment into hips, gables or similar

features.

5.Per Section K.11 of the FBC, shopping cart storage shall be located inside the building or shall be screened

by a 4-foot wall consistent with the building architecture and materials.

6.Per Section K.3 of the FBC, Green Building principles are encouraged for development with the FBC

boundary.

7.Per Section M of the FBC , Section 5.01.00 and Water Wise Ordinance 2069; a landscape and irrigation

plan shall be prepared by a Florida licensed Landscape Architect and submitted with the Final Development

Plan.

8.Per Section 5.01.07 of the City Code a Tree Removal and Replacement plan shall be provided with the Final

Development Plan.

9.Per Section P(e) of the FBC, a photometric plan showing light fixtures and footcandle measurements shall

be submitted with the Final Development Plan.

10. Per Section O of the FBC, all signage shall be consistent with the requirements of the FBC and a master

sign plan shall be submitted with the Final Development Plan.

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

5

5

5

6

BLOCK B

PUBLIX

SUPERMARKET

 BUILDING 1

46,031 SQFT.

BLOCK B

 BUILDING 1

3,000

SQFT.

BLOCK B

 BUILDING 2

6,000

SQFT.

B
L
O

C
K
 
B

 
B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
3

6
,
0
0
0
 
S
Q

F
T
.

B
L
O

C
K
 
A

 
B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
1

7
,
2
0
0
 
S
Q

F
T
.

BLOCK C

 FUTURE DEVELOPEMNT

7.33 AC.

BLOCK C

 FUTURE DEVELOPEMNT

7.33 AC.

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
T
Y
P
E
 
B

T
H

O
R
O

U
G

H
F
A
R
E

(
1
0
0
'
 
R
O

W
)

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
T
Y
P
E
 
B

T
H

O
R
O

U
G

H
F
A
R
E

(
1
0
0
'
 
R
O

W
)

OUTPARCEL

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

 0.90 AC.

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

100.0'

(PUBLIC ROW)

LANDSCAPE GATEWAY

ENTRY FEATURE W/

WATER FEATURE

LANDSCAPE GATEWAY

ENTRY FEATURE W/

WATER FEATURE

100.0'

(PUBLIC ROW)

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

0

60 60 120 24030

F
U

T
U

R
E
 
L
A
N

D
 
U

S
E
:
 
R
U

R
A
L
 
(
C
O

U
N

T
Y
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
A
-
1

E
X
I
S
T
I
N

G
 
U

S
E
:
 
W

E
K
I
V
A
 
P
A
R
K
W

A
Y

(
S
.
R
.
 
4
2
9
)

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL (COUNTY)

 ZONING: A-1

EXISTING USE: SINGLE-FAMILY  RESIDENTIAL

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL (COUNTY)

ZONING: A-1

EXISTING USE: NURSERY

F
U

T
U

R
E
 
L
A
N

D
 
U

S
E
:
 
R
U

R
A
L
 
(
C
O

U
N

T
Y
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
A
-
1

E
X
I
S
T
I
N

G
 
U

S
E
:
 
S
I
N

G
L
E
-
F
A
M

I
L
Y
 
 
R
E
S
I
D

E
N

T
I
A
L

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL (COUNTY)

ZONING: A-1

EXISTING USE: NURSERY

F
U

T
U

R
E
 
L
A
N

D
 
U

S
E
:
 
R
U

R
A
L
 
(
C
O

U
N

T
Y
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
A
-
1

E
X
I
S
T
I
N

G
 
U

S
E
:
 
S
I
N

G
L
E
-
F
A
M

I
L
Y
 
 
R
E
S
I
D

E
N

T
I
A
L

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL (COUNTY)

 ZONING: A-1

EXISTING USE: SINGLE-FAMILY  RESIDENTIAL

F
U

T
U

R
E
 
L
A
N

D
 
U

S
E
:
 
R
U

R
A
L
 
(
C
O

U
N

T
Y
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
A
-
1

E
X
I
S
T
I
N

G
 
U

S
E
:
 
W

E
K
I
V
A
 
P
A
R
K
W

A
Y

(
S
.
R
.
 
4
2
9
)

BLOCK B

TEMPORARY

RETENTION

POND

MONUMENT

SIGN

MONUMENT

SIGN



O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

D
D

D D

Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746
phone:  407-323-0705
fax:  407-992-8650

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE
DESCRIPTION

Revisions

P
la

n
s 

n
o

t 
v

al
id

 u
n

le
ss

 S
ig

n
ed

,
D

at
ed

 a
n

d
 S

ea
le

d
 b

el
o

w
.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
at

e:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
F

L
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 #
5

8
7

7
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 #

2
9

6
6

5

G
E

O
F

F
R

E
Y

 L
. 
S

U
M

M
IT

T
, 
P

.E
.

OF

c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL  32803

(407) 835-9000
----

Kelly Park Rd.
Publix Center

City of Apopka, Florida
Final Master/Preliminary
Development Plan

5 10a

Block Plan

Publix Supermarkets, Inc.

A
p
ri

l 
8
, 
2
0
1
8

01/18 Initial Plans Release

Revised For City Of Apopka Comments04-18

--------

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

0

50 50 100 20025

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

NOTE:

1.  NOTE CONSTRUCTION OF BLOCK A-C MAY NOT BE IN THE SEQUENTIAL ORDER.

BLOCK A  7,200 SQFT.

BLOCK C TBD

PROJECT PHASING BREAKDOWN:

BLOCK B 61,031 SQFT.

BLOCK B

BUILDING 1

BLOCK B

BLOCK A

BLOCK B

BUILDING 2

BLOCK B

BUILDING 3

B
L
O

C
K
 
B

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
4

B
L
O

C
K
 
A

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
1

BLOCK A

PARCEL 1

BLOCK C

BLOCK C

BLOCK C

BLOCK C

BLOCK C

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK A

BLOCK A

BLOCK A

BLOCK ABLOCK A

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK B



 
 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: June 12, 18 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
 OTHER:   Vicinity Map 
    Future Land Use Map 
    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Aerial Map 
    WPIVP1 Map   
    WPIVP Character Districts 
    Comp Plan Objectives 
    JPA Amendment No. 2 

  

SUBJECT:    COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT – MIN SUN CHO ET. AL. (AKA RESERVE AT KELLY PARK) 

    

REQUEST:  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT – MIN SUN CHO ET. AL. (AKA RESERVE AT KELLY PARK) 

  FROM: RESIDENTIAL VERY LOW SUBURBAN (0-2 DU/AC) 

  TO: MIXED USE INTERCHANGE (0-5 DU/AC) 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNERS/APPLICANTS: Min Sun Cho, Hong Sik & Deok Hwa Kim 
 
LOCATION: 4068, 4046, & 4022 Plymouth Sorrento Road (West of Plymouth Sorrento Road & 

North of Appy Lane) 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 13-20-27-0000-00-019; 13-20-27-0000-00-020; 13-20-27-0000-00-021; and 

13-20-27-0000-00-058 
 
EXISTING USE: Nurseries, Single Family Homes, and Woodlands 
  
CURRENT ZONING:  R-1AAA 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Single Family Lot Subdivision 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Mixed Use Interchange Zoning District with Neighborhood Overlay Zone 

TRACT SIZES:   20 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE  
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: Max. 40 residential units 

PROPOSED: Max. 100 residential units 
   
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

                                                           
1 WPIVP – Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

MIN SUN CHO ET. AL. – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 2 

 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The applicant requests a future land use designation of “City” Mixed Use 
Interchange.  
 
Policy 20.9, Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan, requires that a Mixed Use Interchange 

future a land use designation must be assigned to the property. 

 

The subject parcels are located within the one-mile radius from the Wekiva Parkway interchange at Kelly 

Park Road; and therefore is required to adhere to the Kelly Park Crossing Form Based Code.  The properties 

are located within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area.  Therefore, the property must comply 

with Objectives 18 – 20 and related policies within the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive 

Plan and the recently adopted Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code.  The applicant’s request is consistent 

with the Mixed Use Interchange future land use designation and the Overlay District covering the property 

within the Vision Plan. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is compatible with the 

character of the surrounding area, is within one mile of the SR 429/Kelly Park Road interchange, and is 

consistent with the Mixed Use Interchange Land Use designation.  City planning staff supports the FLUM 

amendment given the consistency with the Comprehensive Plan policies listed below and the intent of the 

Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan a (see Land Use Analysis below).   Site development cannot 

exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies.  

 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.r The primary intent of the Mixed Use land use category is to allow a mixture of 
residential, office, commercial, industrial, recreation, institutional and public facilities uses to serve 
the residential and non-residential needs of special areas of the City.  The mix of land uses may occur 
on a single parcel or multiple parcels … 
 
The designation of a mixed use category may occur only in certain areas of the city, including “land 
anticipated for inclusion within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Land Use Plan…” These 
properties are within the 1-mile radius of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange depicted on the Wekiva 
Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Map located within the Future Land Use Element of the Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 

2. Policy 18.1 The City shall implement the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan, which guides 
the location of a range of uses, such as residential, office, commercial, industrial, recreation, public 
and institutional, at various densities and intensities around the proposed interchange. 
 
The proposed Mixed Use Future Land Use Designation allows for residential densities and non-
residential uses and intensities to implement the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan, 
consistent with Objective 18 and related policies.  
 

3. Policy 18.2 Prior to rezoning any property within a one-mile radius of the interchange Study Area, 
the City shall amend its LDC to incorporate development standards that will implement the Vision 
Plan. 
 
This future land use amendment does not include a corresponding proposed zoning category because 
the City has yet to adopt development standards or form-based code consistent with this policy.  
Future densities/intensities and design character for the subject properties will be regulated at the 
time of rezoning once Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan design standards and form-based 
code are adopted.   



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

MIN SUN CHO ET. AL. – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 3 

 
 

4. Policy 20.4 Prior to approving the first development plan with the Wekiva Parkway Interchange 
vision Plan Area, the City shall adopt the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Form-Based Cod establishing 
the design and development standards for the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area. 
 
The subject properties will be required to comply with the above policy should the development 
submit a development plan to ensure consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Wekiva Parkway 
Interchange Vision Plan. 
 

5. Policy 20.9 Development within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Area shall be assigned a 
Mixed-Use Interchange future land use designation and shall accomplish an overall mix of residential 
and non-residential uses as outline in Policy 3.1.r.  Assignment of the Mixed-Use Interchange Land 
Use future land use designation shall require an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The applicant’s request for a Mixed Use future land use designation is consistent with this policy, 
as well as the intent of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan area, which intends to 
concentrate a mixture of land uses with varying densities and intensities within one mile of the 
Wekiva Parkway Interchange. 
 

6. Policy 20.3.  The annexation, land use change, and subsequent development of lands located within 
the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Area for Apopka and the Wekiva Interchange Land Use Plan 
Overlay for the County shall be consistent with the adopted Interlocal Agreement between Orange 
County and the City of Apopka regarding Wekiva Interchange Land Use Plan Overlay. 
 

7. Objective 19 and 20, and their associated policies.  See objectives and policies within the 
supporting information. 

 
Transportation Element 
 

1. Policy 4.2 The City of Apopka shall promote, through the implementation of programs such as 

mixed-use land development, projects that support reduced travel demand, short trip lengths and 

balanced trip demand. 

 

The Mixed Use future land use designation allows for a mixture of land use types such as residential 

and non-residential, which promotes shorter trip lengths, concentrated development to reduce travel 

demand. 

 

2. Policy 3.1.r The primary intent of the Mixed Use land use category is to allow a mixture of 

residential, office, commercial, industrial, recreation, institutional uses and public facilities 

uses…This mix of land uses may occur on a single parcel or multiple parcels in the form of: a 

permitted single use; a vertical combination of different permitted uses; or a horizontal mix of 

different permitted uses. 

 

3. Policy 4.2 The City of Apopka shall promote, through the implementation of programs such as 

mixed-use land development, projects that support reduced travel demand, shorter trip lengths and 

balanced trip demand. 

 

4. Objective 20 and associated Policies, Future Land Use Element.  Provided with the Supporting 

Information. 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

MIN SUN CHO ET. AL. – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 4 

 

 

VISIONING AND SPECIAL STUDIES:  The properties are located within the boundaries of the Wekiva 

Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area, making it subject to the Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code, 

Mixed- Use Interchange Zoning District and Neighborhood Overlay District.  A copy of the Wekiva 

Parkway Interchange Vision Plan is provided with the support material. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:   An executed capacity enhancement agreement with Orange County 

Public Schools will be required prior to adoption of the future land use amendment. 

 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 
any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on May 10, 2018.    
Notification has already occurred through the Second Amendment to the Joint Planning Agreement with 
Orange County government.  The second amendment acknowledges that the City will assign a land use 
designation similar to the overlay district illustrated in the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

June 12, 2018 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm)  

June 20, 2018 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading & Transmittal 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

May 29, 2018 – Public Notice and Notification 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval to transmit a change in Future Land Use to 

Mixed Use Interchange for the property owned by Min Sun Cho, Hong Sik & Deok Hwa Kim subject to 

the information and findings in the staff report. 

 

Recommended Motion:  Find the Future Land Use Designation consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 

and recommend a change in Future Land Use Designation to Mixed Use Interchange subject to the 

information and findings in the staff report for the properties owned by Min Sun Cho, Hong Sik, and Deok 

Hwa Kim and located at 4068, 4046, & 4022 Plymouth Sorrento Road 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

MIN SUN CHO ET. AL. – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 5 

 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural “County” A-2 Vacant 

East (City) Residential Very Low Suburban “City” R-1AAA 
Plymouth-Sorrento Road\ 

Oak Ridge Phase 2 

South (County) Rural “County” A-2 Single Family Homes 

West (County) Rural “County” A-1 Single Family Homes 

 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
Analysis for the Future Land Use Designation was performed as part of the adopted Wekiva Parkway 
Interchange Vision Plan.  This Vision Plan has been incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan.  The subject 
property straddles the one-mile radius from the interchange, and the property owner has selected to pull the 
entire property into the Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code Area (aka Wekiva Parkway Interchange 
Vision Plan Area). 
 
Therefore, the proposed Mixed Use Interchange future land use designation is consistent with the general 
future land use character and long-range planning goals of the surrounding area.  
 
 Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area: Yes 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement 
on October 26, 2004 and amended the JPA in October 19, 2010 to address the Wekiva Parkway Interchange 
Vision Plan.  The subject property is consistent with the Vision Plan incorporated into Amendment 2 of the 
Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan. 
 

Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the 
adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 
reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 
Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and storm water run-off through the 
following policies: 

 
 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2; Objective 19, 20. 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that the parcels appear to occur within an area having a potential for  karst features. 
  

Analysis of the character of the Property:  The current use of the property is for agriculture. Analysis 
of the FLUM designation occurred as part of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan. 
 

Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: Based on the adoption 
of the JPA, the size of the property, and the proposed land use change, the amendment will increase the 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

MIN SUN CHO ET. AL. – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 6 

 
population by as many as 265 residents.  The applicant proposes to develop the property as single family 
residential subdivision. Land use analysis was conducted as part of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision 
Plan. 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
 
 ADOPTED: 40 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 106 persons   

PROPOSED: 100 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 265 persons 
   
 Housing Needs:  The housing need is demonstrated through the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision 
Plan Area Study. 
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is required 
for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  At the time the Master Site Plan or Preliminary 
Development Plan is submitted to the City, the development applicant must conduct a species survey and 
submit a habitat management plan if any threatened or endangered species are identified within the project 
site. 
 
 Transportation: Road access to the site is from Plymouth Sorrento Road.  The City of Apopka is a 
Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 
Comprehensive Plan. The road system shall be consistent with the intent of the Kelly Park Crossing Form-
Based Code. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None; 81 GPD/Capita ; 81 GPD 
/ Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  7,840    GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:    19,600  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available:  Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation: 81  GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard: None; 177 GPD/Capita ; 177 
GPD / Capita 

  
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka 
  

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:     8,400  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   21,000  GPD 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

MIN SUN CHO ET. AL. – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 7 

 
4. Capacity available: Yes 

 
5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD / Capita 

 
6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD / Capita 

 
7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 
 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  Yes 
 
 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of 
Apopka 

 
3. Projected LOS under existing designation:     424    lbs/  day 

 
4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:   1,060    lbs /  day 

 
5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None  
 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 
 Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John’s River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  9.353  MGD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696  MGD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:   None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm 
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On site retention / detention ponds 
 

 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

MIN SUN CHO ET. AL. – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 8 

 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System ;  3 acre / 1000 capita 
 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.318  acres 
 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.795    acres 
 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment: None 

 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

MIN SUN CHO ET. AL. – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 9 

 

Min Sun Cho, Hong Sik & Deok Hwa Kim  
20 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From:  Residential Very Low Suburban 

To: Mixed Use Interchange 
Parcel ID #: 13-20-27-0000-00-019, 020, 021, 058 

  
 

VICINITY MAP  

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

MIN SUN CHO ET. AL. – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 10 

 

 

Future Land Use Map 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

MIN SUN CHO ET. AL. – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 11 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

MIN SUN CHO ET. AL. – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 12 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

MIN SUN CHO ET. AL. – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 13 

 

 

Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code Area 

 

        

 

 























































 
 

 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: June 12, 2018 
 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
 OTHER:   Vicinity Map 
    Future Land Use Map 
    Adjacent Zoning 
    Adjacent Uses 

  

SUBJECT:    COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT – 3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC 

    

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL 

SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT  

  FROM: AGRICULTURE 

  TO: INDUSTRIAL (MAX. 0.6 FAR) 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER: 3255 Clarcona Road LLC (aka Randall Mechanical) 
 
APPLICANT: Vihlen & Associates, P.A. c/o Sidney L Vihlen, III 
 
LOCATION: 3307 Clarcona Road  
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 27-21-28-0000-00-045 
 
EXISTING USE: Warehousing (Site used by Randall Mechanical for commercial and industrial uses) 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  Agriculture  
 
DEVELOPMENT  
POTENTIAL:    1 Dwelling Unit  (site currently used for I-1 industrial uses) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: I-1 (Note: this Future Land Use amendment request is being processed along with a 

request to change the zoning classification from Agriculture to I-1 (Restricted 
Industrial District)).  

 
TRACT SIZE:   4.75 +/- acres  
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING:    1 Dwelling Unit  
    PROPOSED:  up to 124,146 sq. ft. gross floor area 
   
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING/Small Scale Flu Amends/2018/Vihlen & Associates 
 
 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcel was annexed in the city on February 21, 1996 by 
Ordinance 918.   The applicant requests a future land use designation of Industrial.   The site has been used 
for industrial purposes for several years.  Parcels to the north  
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Industrial Future Land Use designation.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future 

Land Use policies.   Planning & Zoning staff determines that the below policies support an Industrial FLUM 

designation at the subject site:  

 
Future Land Use Element, Policy 3.1.l, Industrial  
 
The primary use shall be industrial, intensive commercial, agricultural and business/research parks. Also 
allowed are public facilities and supporting infrastructure. The use of the Planned Unit Development 
process shall be encouraged. The maximum floor area ratio shall be .60. Planned Unit Development uses 
may include:  
 

(1) All primary uses  
(2) Other uses deemed compatible with and complimentary to the other proposed master planned uses 

and the surrounding neighborhoods. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed Industrial Future Land Use Designation will not 
generate any additional student population.  Therefore, the property is exempt from school capacity 
enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning Agreement. 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on May 10, 2018.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE:  
June 12, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

June 20, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

August 1, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2nd Reading and Adoption  

 

DULY ADVERTISED:  

May 25, 2018 – Public Notice and Notification 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Future Land Use Designation of Industrial for the property owned by 3255 Clarcona Road LLC, and located 
at 3307 Clarcona Road.  
 
Planning Commission Recommended Motion:  Find the proposed Future Land Use amendment 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, and 
recommend approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from Agriculture to Industrial, subject 
to the findings of the Staff Report, for the property owned by 3255 Clarcona Road LLC, and located at 3307 
Clarcona Road.  
 
Note: This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) “City” Industrial “City” I-1 Industrial 

East (County) “County” Rural “County” A-1 Single Family Homes 

South (County) “County” Rural “County” A-1 Stone Road \ Woodlands and Single Family Home 

West (County) “County” Rural “County” A-1 West Orange Trail & House of Worship 

 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS: 
 
The subject property is located on a site that is ideal for Industrial use, which makes the request for Industrial 
future land use designation consistent with the Comprehensive Plan policies listed above, as well as the 
general future land use character of the surrounding area. 
 
The subject property is located off a major road, Clarcona Road, with an industrial use to the north. 
 
The proposed Commercial future land use designation is consistent with the general future land use 
character of the surrounding area.  
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No  
 
 Transportation:  Road access to the site is from Clarcona Road 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the 
adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 
reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 
Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the 
following policies: 

 
 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are karst features in the vicinity of this property.   
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The property is developed with a warehouse used by 
Randall Mechanical for industrial and commercial purposes. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future 
land use designation for the property is Industrial (Max. 0.60 FAR).  Based on the housing element of the 
City's Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will not increase the City’s future population 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 
Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is required for 
developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This site is already developed and is less than ten acres. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis   NOTE:  Orange County Service Area 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:   
 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: Orange County 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:      GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:      GPD 
   

4. Capacity available:   
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:   GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:   GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment:  
 
 Potable Water Analysis   NOTE:  Orange County Service Area 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  
  
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  Orange County 
  

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:       GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:     GPD 
 

4. Capacity available:  
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:    GPD / Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:    GPD / Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment:  

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:   

 
Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of 
Apopka 

 
3. Projected LOS under existing designation:     4.0  lbs/  day 

 
4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:    248  lbs /  day 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment: None 

 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 
 Infrastructure Information   NOTE:  Orange County Service Area 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number:  
 
 Permitting agency: St. John’s River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):    MGD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):    MGD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property:  
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property:  
 
 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:   None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year – 24 hour design storm 
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  100 year – 24 hour design storm 
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On site retention / detention ponds 
 

 Recreation   Note:  The use of the site for industrial or commercial purposes will not impact of 
affect the City’s recreation facilities. 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System ;  3 acre / 1000 
capita 

 
2. Projected facility under existing designation:   0. 009  acres 

 
3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A    acres 

 
4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 
 

Standards set forth in the City’s Land Development Code will require any development plans to provide 
parkland and recreation facilities and open space for residents residing with the new development. 
 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

3255 Clarcona Road LLC 
4.75 +/- acres  

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: Agriculture  

To: Industrial 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: Agriculture 
To: I-1 

Parcel ID #: 27-21-28-0000-00-045 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

  

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 
 

 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: June 12, 2018 
 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
 OTHER:   Vicinity Map 
    Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses 

  

SUBJECT:    CHANGE OF ZONING – 3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC 
    

REQUEST:  CHANGE OF ZONING – 3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC 

  FROM: AG (AGRICULTURE) 

  TO: I-1 (RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL) 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER: 3255 Clarcona Road LLC (aka Randall Mechanical) 
 
APPLICANT: Vihlen & Associates, P.A. c/o Sidney L Vihlen, III 
 
LOCATION: 3307 Clarcona Road  
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 27-21-28-0000-00-045 
 
EXISTING USE: Warehousing  
 
CURRENT ZONING:  Agriculture  
 
DEVELOPMENT  
POTENTIAL:  1 Dwelling Unit  (currently used for industrial and commercial uses by Randall 

Mechanical) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: I-1 (Note: this Future Land Use amendment request is being processed along with a 

request to change the zoning classification from Agriculture to I-1 (Restricted 
Industrial District)).  

 
TRACT SIZE:   4.75 +/- acres  
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING:    1 Dwelling Unit  
    PROPOSED:  up to 124,146 sq. ft. gross floor area 
   
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2018\Vihlen 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

3255 CLARCNA ROAD LLC - REZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The subject parcel was annexed in the city on February 21, 1996 by 
Ordinance 918.  The applicant requests a future land use designation of Industrial and the zoning to I-1 
Industrial. 
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to I-1 is compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications and with 
the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area. The change of zoning request is being 
processed in conjunction with a future land use amendment from Agriculture to Industrial. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 
with the proposed Industrial (Max. FAR 0.6) Future Land Use designation. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: The proposed zoning change will not generate any residential units and 
thus not generate any additional school-age population. Therefore, the property is exempt from school 
capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning Agreement. 
  
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on May 10, 2018.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
June 12, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

June 20, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

August 1, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2nd Reading and Adoption  
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  
Public Notice and Notification- May 25, 2018 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Change of Zoning from Agriculture to I-1 (Restricted Industrial District) for the property owned by 3255 
Clarcona Road LLC, and located east of Clarcona Road and north of Stone Road.  
 
Recommended Motion: Planning Staff recommends finding the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, recommending approval 
of the proposed Change of Zoning from Agriculture to I-1 (Restricted Industrial District) for the property 
owned by 3255 Clarcona Road LLC, and located east of Clarcona Road and north of Stone Road. 
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

3255 CLARCNA ROAD LLC - REZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) “City” Industrial “City” I-1 Industrial 

East (County) “County” Rural “County” A-1 Single Family Homes 

South (County) “County” Rural “County” A-1 Stone Road\Woodlands and Single Family Home 

West (County) “County” Rural “County” A-1 West Orange Trail & House of Worship 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC  

COMPATIBILITY: The property is currently accessed by Clarcona Road.   

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

COMPLIANCE:  The proposed I-1 zoning is consistent with the proposed Future Land 

Use designation, “Industrial” (Max. FAR 0.6) and with the character 

of the surrounding area and future proposed development. 

Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the 

adopted Future Land Use designation.   
         

ALLOWABLE USES:   

1. Any C-3 Commercial District permitted use. 

 

2.  Manufacture and processing of novelties, souvenirs, bakery or 

confectionery products, garments, scientific, electrical, optical 

and precision instruments or equipment, computers, advanced 

electronics, lasers and robotics, batteries, boats, building 

products, ceramics, chemical products, dairy products, electrical 

machinery and equipment, furniture, decorating materials, 

upholstering materials, glass and glass products, metal plastic or 

cardboard containers, paint or varnish, pharmaceutical products, 

photographic equipment and supplies, shoes and leather goods, 

signs, textiles, and tires, etc. 

 

3.  Bus, cab and truck repair. 

 

4.  Dyeing, dry cleaning and laundering. 

 

5.  Machinery sales. 

 

6.  Machine shops. 

 

7.  Meat storage, cutting and distribution. 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

3255 CLARCNA ROAD LLC - REZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

8.  Adult entertainment consistent with the standards of the Apopka 

Municipal Code. 

 

9. Bottling and distribution plants; ice cream manufacturers. 

 

10.  Warehouses. 

 

11.  Testing of materials, equipment and products. 

 

12.  Cold storage and frozen food lockers. 

 

13.  Frozen food lockers. 

 

14.  Book binding, lithography and publishing plants. 

 

15.  Other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses 

permitted herein which adhere to the intent of the district and 

which are not prohibited as specified in this Code. Use 

determination shall be based upon the community development 

director's recommendation. 

 

16. Guard or custodian living quarters may be permitted as an 

accessory use when attached to one primary structure. 

 

ZONING REGULATIONS: 

 

Minimum Site Area: 15,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width: 100 ft.  

Front Setback:    25 ft. 

Side Setback:     10 ft. 

Rear Setback:     10 ft. (30 ft. from residential districts)  

Corner Setback:    25 ft. 

 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

3255 CLARCNA ROAD LLC - REZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

3255 Clarcona Road LLC 
4.75 +/- acres  

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: Agriculture  

To: Industrial 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: Agriculture 
To: I-1 

Parcel ID #: 27-21-28-0000-00-045 
 

VICINITY MAP 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

3255 CLARCNA ROAD LLC - REZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 

 
ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

3255 CLARCNA ROAD LLC - REZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES MAP 
 

 



 
 

 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 
X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: June 12, 2018 
 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
 OTHER:   Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning 
    Adjacent Uses 

  
SUBJECT:    CHANGE OF ZONING – SUNTRUST BANK 
    
REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE CHANGE OF ZONING FOR 

SUNTRUST BANK  
  FROM: C-2 (GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT)  
  TO: C-1 (COMMERCIAL RETAIL DISTRICT) 
  
SUMMARY 
 
OWNER:    SunTrust Bank 
 
APPLICANT:    Causseaux, Hewett, and Walpole, Inc. 
 
LOCATION:  936 E Semoran Blvd  
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER:  11-21-28-0750-00-070 
 
EXISTING USE:   Vacant  
 
CURRENT ZONING:  “City” C-2  
 
FUTURE LAND USE:  Commercial 
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTAIL: 5,304 sq. ft. commercial space 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” C-1  
 
TRACT SIZE:    0.49 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: 5,304 sq. ft. commercial space 
ZONING DISTRICT:                         PROPOSED: 5,304 sq. ft. commercial space  
 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2018\Suntrust Easr 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
SUNTRUST BANK - REZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: SunTrust Bank owns three vacant parcels east-adjacent of the bank. The 
eastern-most adjacent parcel, 920 E. Semoran Boulevard was annexed in the City on April 18, 2018. The 
City Council is scheduled to vote for a Commercial future land use designation and C-1 zoning for 920 E. 
Semoran Boulevard on June 6, 2018, which is located two parcels to the east.  The three parcels will be 
assembled for a proposed Zaxzby’s restaurant.  A utility easement runs across the majority of this property, 
and the majority of the parcel will likely be used for open space within a future site plan.  
 
A request to assign a change of zoning for 936 E. Semoran Boulevard to C-1 is compatible to the adjacent 
zoning classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 
with the proposed C-1 (Commercial Retail) Future Land Use designation. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: The proposed future land use change will result in an insignificant 
increase (less than 9) in the number of residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  
Therefore, the property is exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning 
Agreement. 
  
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 
any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on May 10, 2018.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
June 12, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
June 20, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 
August 1, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2nd Reading and Adoption  
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  
Public Notice and Notification- May 22, 2018 
   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Change of Zoning from C-2 (General Commercial District) to C-1 (Commercial Retail District) for the 
property owned by SunTrust Bank, and located at 936 E Semoran Blvd.  
 
Recommended Motion: Planning Staff recommends finding the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas; and recommending 
approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from C-2 (General Commercial District) to C-1 (Commercial 
Retail District) for the property owned by SunTrust Bank, and located at 936 E Semoran Blvd. 
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
SUNTRUST BANK - REZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 
North (County) “County” Commercial “County” C-3 Retail Uses 
East (City) “City” Commercial “City” C-2 Auto Parts Vendor and Utility Station 
South (City) “City” Commercial “City” C-2 Vacant  
West (City) Commercial “City” C-1 Bank and Vacant Lots 

 
LAND USE & TRAFFIC  
COMPATIBILITY: The property is currently accessed by East Semoran Blvd. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  
COMPLIANCE:  The proposed C-1 zoning is consistent with the proposed Future Land 

Use designation, “Commercial” (Max 0.25 FAR) and with the 
character of the surrounding area and future proposed development. 
Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the 
adopted Future Land Use designation.   

      
ALLOWABLE USES: 1. Any nonresidential permitted use in the PO/I or CN districts. 

2.  Retail establishments. 

3.  Banks, savings and loan and other financial institutions. 

4. Bowling alleys, skating rinks, billiard parlors and similar 
amusement centers, provided such activities and facilities are 
enclosed within a sound-proof building. 

5.  Churches and schools. 

6.  Day nurseries, kindergartens and other child care centers. 

7.  Drive-in restaurants, with property lines no closer than 200 feet 
from any residential districts or uses. 

8.  Florist shops, the products of which are displayed and sold 
wholly within an enclosed building. 

9.  Hotels, motels, bed and breakfast facilities. 

10.  Personal service establishments such as barbershops, beauty 
parlors, professional and other offices, parking garages and lots, 
laundry and dry cleaning pickup station, self-service coin-
operated laundry and dry cleaning establishments, shoe shine and 
repair, tailoring, travel services, watch and clock repair and 
locksmiths, etc. 

11.  Post offices. 

12.  Restaurants. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
SUNTRUST BANK - REZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

13.  Theaters, enclosed in structures. 

14.  Clubs and lodges. 

15. Funeral parlors, when the sole use of the facility shall be for 
funeral rites. 

16.  Animal clinics for the treatment of small animals, excluding farm 
animals, but including those animals no larger than a dog, 
commonly kept as pets in a residence, provided the care, 
treatment or housing of such animals shall not be allowed on the 
outside. 

17.  Other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses 
permitted herein which adhere to the intent of the district and 
which are not prohibited as specified in this code. Use 
determination shall be based upon the community development 
director's recommendation. 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
SUNTRUST BANK - REZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

SunTrust Bank 
0.49 +/- acres  

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: C-2 (General Commercial District) 

To: C-1 (Retail Commercial District) 
Parcel ID #: 11-21-28-0750-00-070  

 
VICINITY MAP 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
SUNTRUST BANK - REZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 
 

ADJACENT ZONING MAP 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
SUNTRUST BANK - REZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 
 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 



 

 

 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: June 12, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: PUD Master Plan/PDP   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Existing Use Map 

    Ex. A – PUD Master Plan/PDP  

    Ex. B – Architectural Elevations  
  

SUBJECT:    CHANGE OF ZONING – PUD MASTER PLAN AND PRELIMINARY 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN – VISTA RESERVE 

    

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE CHANGE OF ZONING; AND 

APPROVAL OF THE PUD MASTER PLAN FOR VISTA RESERVE 

  FROM: R-1AA (RESIDENTIAL SINGLE FAMILY DISTRICT) 

  TO: PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT) 
  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNERS:    Mikhail Wafaa, Abdelsayed George, Abdelsayed Lucy, Abdelsayed 

Wafeek 
 
APPLICANT:    Pulte Home Corporation  
 
LOCATION: East side of Rogers Road, approximately one half mile north of the 

intersection of Rogers Road and Lester Road 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 29-20-28-0000-00-003 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  Low Density Residential 
 
CURRENT ZONING: R-1AA (Residential Single Family District)  
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: 153 single family homes; developed in one phase 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD)  
 
TRACT SIZE:    61.1 +/- acres 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

VISTA RESERVE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

SUMMARY:  The subject property is approximately 61.1 acres in size and is zoned R-1AA (Residential 

Single Family District) and has a future land use designation of Low Density Residential. The subject 

property is located on the east side of Rogers Road, approximately one half mile north of the intersection 

of Rogers Road and Lester Road. The proposed change of zoning to PUD (Planned Unit Development) is 

being requested by the prospective developer, Pulte Homes who proposes to construct 153 single-family 

units in one phase on the property. The subdivision is proposed to be developed at a density of 2.53 dwelling 

units per acre. The Low Density Residential future land use designation permits up to 3.5 dwelling units 

per acre.  

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:   The Master Plan proposes153 lots consistent of 140 65-foot wide lots and 

13 90-foot wide lots, a community park with a swimming pool and cabana and tot-lot, and a buffer tract 

along the entire peremiter of the community.  Further, is proposed to be accessed via Rogers Road. The 

surrounding properties consist primarily of single-family residential subdivisions and include the Carriage 

Hills subdivision located to the south which is currently under construction, Oak Hill Reserve to the south 

and east, and Wekiva Run to the west. Average lot widths in the Carriage Hills subdivision is 75-feet, Oak 

Hill Reserve is 95-feet, and 95-feet in Wekiva Run.  

 

A.  Lot Size. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

While a PUD zoning requires a minimum lot width of 70 feet with a minimum lot area of 7,500 sq. ft., Vista 

Reserve proposes 65-foot and 90-foot wide lots with a minimum average lot area of 8,125 square feet for 

the 65-foot wide lots and 11,250 square feet for the 90-foot wide lots, contained within an open space tract 

not less than 15 feet wide on the north, east, and south project lines and 10 feet wide on the western project 

line abutting Rogers Road. The minimum lot depth is proposed at 125-feet. The minimum living area is 

proposed at 2,190 square feet. The subdivision will be accessed via Rogers Road. Rogers Road will 

terminate at the main entrance of the development. The developer will be dedicating a 0.68 acre portion of 

right-of-way along Rogers Road to the City. The subdivision will consist of public roads and infrastructure 

that is owned and maintained by the City. Vehicular and pedestrian connections are provided to the property 

to the north and to the Carriage Hills subdivision located to the south. A continuous open space tract is 

provided around the perimeter of the subdivision to buffer the homes from the surrounding existing 

subdivisions. Thirty percent of the site, or 18.13 acres of open space is provided, and will be owned and 

maintained by the homeowners association. Two tracts located on the northwestern and northeastern corners 

of the site are reserved for stormwater retention. The stormwater retention areas will be owned and 

maintained by the homeowners association. A 1.67 acre tract is reserved for the community recreation 

facility that will be owned and maintained by the homeowners association. Included within the recreation 

facility is a picnic area, pool, pool cabana building, play structure, open play area, bicycle parking, and a 

parking area for 8 cars.    

 

B.  Deviations. The applicant is requesting one deviation to the City’s required development standards.  For 

a PUD Master Plan, a deviation from the City’s Land Development Code does not represent a variance 

but a development standard or zoning condition unique to and approved as part of the Planned Unit 

Typical Lot 

Width 
Number of units 

Percentage of 

development 

Typical lot area 

(minimum size) 

65-feet 140 91.5% 8,125 square feet 

90-feet 13 8.5% 11,250 square feet 

Total 153            100%  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

VISTA RESERVE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

Development zoning. PUD’s are required to satisfy the requirements of the Land Development Code 

unless the City Council finds that, based on substantial evidence, a proposed alternative development 

guideline is adequate to protect to the public health safety, and welfare.  Any deviations must be 

consistent with the policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

1. Typical Lot Width Standard, Land Development Code Section 2.02.18.D.11. requires a minimum 

lot size within a PUD to be 70-feet in width, and to have a minimum site area of 7,500 square feet. 

The developer is proposing 140, 65-foot and 13, 90-foot wide lots with minimum lots sizes of 8,125 

square feet and 11,250 square feet respectively. These lot sizes exceed the required single-family 

minimum lot area of 7,500 square feet.  

 

C. Justification for Deviations/Development Standard.  The following justifications are provided for the 

three deviations that are proposed. 

 

1. Reduced Density. The future land use designation of the property is Low Density Residential which 

allows up to 3.5 dwelling units per acre. The PUD Master Plan proposes a density of 2.53 dwelling 

units per acre, which is 0.97 dwelling units per acre less than the maximum density permitted in the 

Low Density Residential future land use category. 

 

2. Dedication of right-of-way for the extension of Rogers Road. The PUD Master Plan proposes the 

dedication to the City of a 0.68 acre tract for right-of-way for Rogers Road. This will allow for the 

future extension of Rogers Road to the north to allow Rogers Road to serve as a future connector 

road between Ponkan Road and Lester Road.  

 

3. An improved recreation amenities package is proposed. The recreation package will consist of a 

picnic area, pool, pool cabana building, play structure, open play area, bicycle parking, and a parking 

area for 8 cars. The recreation area is proposed at 1.67 acres in size, which is in excess of the 1.43 

acres required by code.  

 

4. Preservation of Open Space.  The PUD master plan provides a continuous open space tract is around 

the perimeter of the subdivision to buffer the homes from the surrounding existing subdivisions. 

This area will consist of Bahia sod and Live Oak and Magnolia trees, which upon maturity is 

anticipated to ensure the homes within the development are not visible from the surrounding existing 

residential subdivisions.  

 

5. Increased minimum living area size. The applicant is proposing a minimum living area of 2,190 

square feet. The R-1AA zoning district requires a minimum living area of 1,700 square feet.  Also, 

the larger lots, the 90-foot width, are located on the eastern project perimeter consistent with lot 

width and size occurring in the Oak Hill Reserve community abutting to the east. 

 

PUD RECOMMENDATIONS:  That the zoning classification of the following described property be 

designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and 

with the following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be single-family residential uses. 
B. Terms of Expiration for this PUD shall be as follows: 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

VISTA RESERVE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City 

within three years, and site development has not commenced within four years after approval of 

these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. At such time, 

the City Council may: 

 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development Plan; 

 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new 

Master Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Low Density Residential Future Land Use designation and is consistent with the Land Development Code.   

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: Per Orange County Public Schools, the project is vested to satisfy 

capacity, however there are outstanding concurrency issues that will be required to be satisfied prior to 

approval of a plat.  

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: Pursuant to Section 7 of the Joint Planning Area agreement, 

notification to Orange County is not required for a rezoning application as the subject parcels are not 

adjacent to unincorporated Orange County.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

June 12, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

July 18, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

August 1, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

June 1, 2018 – Public Notice; Letter, Poster 

July 20, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed rezoning to Planned Unit Development (PUD), 

PUD Master Plan, and the Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 

Land Development Code and recommends approval of the Vista Reserve Planned Unit Development Master 

Plan and Preliminary Development Plan. 

 

Recommended Motion:  Find the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 

recommend approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from R-1AA (Residential Single Family District) 

to PUD (Planned Unit Development); and approval of the PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan 

based on the findings and facts presented in the staff report and exhibits for the property owned by Mikhail 

Wafaa, George Abdelsayed, Lucy Abdelsayed, and Wafeek Abdelsayed and located east side of Rogers 

Road, approximately one half mile north of the intersection of Rogers Road and Lester Road. 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

VISTA RESERVE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

VISTA RESERVE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Low Density Residential (0-5 du/ac) R-1AA Vacant, Lake Merril 

East (City) Low Density Residential (0-5 du/ac) PUD  Oak Hill Reserve subdivision  

South (City) Low Density Residential (0-5 du/ac) R-1AA, R-1 Carriage Hills subdivision (under 

construction), Vacant property 

West (City) Low Density Residential (0-5 du/ac) R-1AA Wekiva Run subdivision  

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property is accessed via Rogers Road. Internal streets are public 

and will be owned and maintained by the City of Apopka. Future land 
use designations and zoning categories assigned to properties to the 
north, south, east, and west are predominantly residential.   

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PUD zoning is compatible with policies set forth in the 

Comprehensive Plan.  
 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Single-family residential uses as set forth within the Planned Unit 

Development Master Plan. 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

VISTA RESERVE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

Project: VISTA RESERVE 

Owned by:  Mikhail Wafaa, Abdelsayed George, Abdelsayed Lucy, Abdelsayed Wafeek 
Located:         East side of Rogers Road, approximately one half mile north of the intersection of  

Rogers Road and Lester Road 
Parcel ID#: 29-20-28-0000-00-003 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

VISTA RESERVE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

VISTA RESERVE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 
 

 































































































 

 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: June 12, 2018 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:  Variance  Aerial Map 

    Zoning Map 

    Application 

    Site Plan 

    Proposed Fence 
  
SUBJECT:    BUFFER VARIANCE REQUEST – 359 WEST LESTER ROAD 

    

REQUEST:  APPROVE A VARIANCE OF THE APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES, 

PART III, LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE II, SECTION 

2.02.05(H)(2), TO ALLOW A 6-FOOT TALL COMPOSITE FENCE 

WITHIN A 5-FOOT WIDE BUFFERYARD IN LIEU OF REQUIRED 6 

FOOT TALL BRICK, STONE OR DECORATIVE BLOCK WALL 

WITHIN A 5-FOOT WIDE BUFFERYARD ON THE WESTERN, 

NORTHERN AND EASTERN PERIMETERS. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER:  Laura R. Murphy c/o Luke Classon, P.E. 
 
LOCATION:  359 West Lester Road 

 
PARCEL ID #: 28-20-28-0000-00-060 
 
LAND USE:  Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 unit(s)/acre) 
 
ZONING:  R-1 (Single Family Residential) 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
TRACT SIZE:  19.94 +/- Acres 
  
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

 

 
 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\VARIANCES\2018 - Variances\VAR18-03 Equestrian Center Subdivision-Laura R. Murphy 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
LAURA R. MURPHY - BRIDLEWOOD (FKA EQUESTRIAN CENTER) - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 2 
 
 

VARIANCE REQUEST SUMMARY:  Section 2.02.05 (H)(2) – Bufferyard requirements. Areas adjacent 
to agricultural districts or activities shall provide a minimum five-foot bufferyard and a minimum six-foot 
high brick, stone or decorative block finished wall.  The applicant proposes to install a 6-foot tall composite 
fence in lieu of the required brick or decorative wall block on the western, northern and eastern perimeters 
abutting existing agricultural zoning districts or activities. 
 
Variance Request - Code Standard, Sec. 2.02.05(G)(5) – Bufferyard requirements – Areas adjacent to 
agricultural districts or activities shall provide a minimum five-foot bufferyard and a minimum six-foot 
high brick, stone or decorative block finished wall. 

 
 Applicant Request - Allow a 6-foot tall composite fence in lieu of the required brick or decorative 

wall block on the western, northern and eastern perimeters abutting existing agricultural zoning 
districts or activities. 
 

VARIANCE PROCESS:  Per Land Development Code Section 10.02.00, the Planning Commission shall 
follow two steps to approve a variance: 
 
Step 1: Section 10.02.02.A, Limitations on Granting Variances. The Planning Commission “shall first 

determine whether the need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, 
shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment conditions that are unique to 
the specific property involved.” This is known as a physical hardship. If the Planning 
Commission makes this determination, then it must take action on the seven variance criteria set 
forth in Section 10.02.02.B. 

 
Step 2: Section 10.02.02.B, Required Findings.  Once a “physical hardship” has been determined, the 

Planning Commission shall not vary from the requirements of any provision of the LDC unless 
it makes a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on the seven variance 
criteria.  

 
APPLICABLE CITY CODES:   
 

1. Section 2.02.15(G)(3) – Areas adjacent to residential uses or districts shall provide a six-foot-high 
masonry wall within a minimum of 50-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

Variance Hardship Determination (Step 1):  The first step of the variance determination process is to 
determine if a hardship occurs pursuant to Section 10.02.02.A, “whether the need for the proposed variance 
arises out of the physical surroundings, shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment 
conditions that are unique to the specific property involved.”  
 
Staff Response:     
 
Summary -- While active agricultural uses occur on property abutting to the east, west, and north, growth 
trends in the surrounding areas show transition to residential uses within the near future.  These growth 
pressures will likely result in rising land prices and expanding housing demands pressuring adjacent 
properties to develop as residential communities in the near future.  Furthermore, unincorporated parcel to 
the west and north presently have a “County” Future Land Use Designation of Low Density Residential 
assigned to them.  This means that the County’s Growth Management Plan, its Comprehensive Plan, 
supports and encourages residential development on the western and northern parcels.   
 
Ponkan Road to the north is a dividing line between urban densities to the south and lower residential 
densities to the north.  Policy in the City’s Comprehensive Plan limits residential development to no more 
than two units per acre unless within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area.  Development is 
encouraged by policies in the City’s Comprehensive Plan to concentrate higher residential density south of 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
LAURA R. MURPHY - BRIDLEWOOD (FKA EQUESTRIAN CENTER) - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 3 
 
Ponkan Road.  This policy further encourages the transition of agriculturally zoned lands south of Ponkan 
Road to residential use. 
 
Other trends supporting residential development along Lester Road include:  close proximity to existing 
and planned commercial retail and grocery stores as well as schools and regional recreation facilities (West 
Orange Trail).  Water, sewer and reclaimed lines are accessible to the proposed Bridlewood parcel. 
 
The parcel to the east, the Avian Recondition Center, is within the City of Apopka and assigned an 
Agriculture Future Land Use and Zoning. 
 
Seven Variance Criteria Findings (Step 2): If the Planning Commission accepts the hardship in Paragraph 
A. above, the second step is to make a finding on the seven criteria below.  The Planning Commission must 
make a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on each of the following seven criteria: 
 

1. There are practical difficulties in carrying out the strict letter of the regulation [in] that the requested 
variance relates to a hardship due to characteristics of the land and not solely on the needs of the 
owner.  

 
Applicant’s Response:  Yes.  The variance has also previously been discussed with City 
Staff to ensure it will conform to the intended outline of the City's comprehensive plan. 

 
Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

 
2. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of developing the site. 

 
Applicant’s Response:  No, the request is based on what the surrounding properties with 
eventually become based on the City of Apopka's comprehensive plan. 

 
Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

 
3. The proposed variance will not substantially increase congestion on surrounding public streets. 

 
Applicant’s Response:  No. The proposed variance will not increase congestion at all on 
surrounding public streets. 

 
Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

 
4. The proposed variance will not substantially diminish property values in, nor alter the essential 

character of, the area surrounding the site.  
 

Applicant’s Response:  No, the proposed variance will not diminish property values at 
all.  The proposed variance in conjunction with the proposed development will increase 
surrounding property values.  The variance will also not result in any alteration of the 
essential character of the area surrounding the site. 

 
Staff’s Response:  City staff does not hold professional expertise to address property 
values.   

 
5. The effect of the proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of this code and the specific 

intent of the relevant subject area(s) of the code.  
 

Applicant’s Response:  Yes. The proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent 
of the current code and the specific intent of the relevant subject area. 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
LAURA R. MURPHY - BRIDLEWOOD (FKA EQUESTRIAN CENTER) - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 4 
 

Staff Response:  No objection.   
 

6. Special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.   
 

Applicant’s Response:  No special conditions or circumstances do not result from the 
actions of the applicant. 

 
Staff Response: No objection.  The applicant does not have control over development 
trends along Lester Road to residential uses. 

 
7. That the variance granted is the minimum variance which will make possible the reasonable use of 

the land, building or structure. The proposed variance will not create safety hazards and other 
detriments to the public.  

 
Applicant’s Response:  Yes.  The proposed variance is minor to what the current code 
specifies.  The proposed variance will not create any safety hazards or other detriments to 
the public. 
 
Staff Response:  No objection. 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

Planning Commission Role:   Based on the information provided by the applicant at the hearing for the 
variance requested, Planning Commission must first determine that sufficient substantially competent 
information indicates “whether a need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, 
shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment conditions that are unique to the specific 
property involved.”  If so, then the Planning Commission must find that substantially competent information 
occurs to accept each of the seven variance criteria. 
 
Planning Staff has no objection to the proposed request.  Based on recent residential development existing 
and proposed in this area, as well as neighborhood commercial uses proposed in the northwest intersection 
of Lester Road and Rock Springs Road, Staff anticipates residential development will continue on Lester 
Road. 
 
Planning Commission Role:  Planning Commission has the authority to approve, deny, or approve with 
conditions.  
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
LAURA R. MURPHY - BRIDLEWOOD (FKA EQUESTRIAN CENTER) - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 5 
 

Owner:   Laura R. Murphy c/o Luke Classon, P.E. 

Applicant:  Luke Classon, P.E., Appian Engineering 

Parcel I.D. No:    28-20-28-0000-00-060 

Location:  359 West Lester Road 

Total Acres:   19.94 +/- Acres   
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

  

 

 
 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
LAURA R. MURPHY - BRIDLEWOOD (FKA EQUESTRIAN CENTER) - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Subject Property 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
LAURA R. MURPHY - BRIDLEWOOD (FKA EQUESTRIAN CENTER) - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

 

 

ZONING MAP 
 

















MARCH 22, 2018                                AVX-001 

PAGE 1 OF 2 
 

 
~ STATE of FLORIDA ~ FBPE CERTIFICATE NO. 32174 

 

City of Apopka – Community Development 

Attn: Mr. Jean Sanchez, Planner I 

120 E. Main Street 

Apopka, FL 32703 

 

 

Re: Equestrian Center Subdivision  

  Application for Variance 

  Response to Hardship Criteria 

 

 

DEAR MRS. SANCHEZ: 
 

 

Appian Engineering, LLC, is pleased to submit this narrative as responses to the Hardship Criteria outlined 

under attachment ‘A’ of the Application for Variance Request. This Application for Variance is being 

submitted as part of the Equestrian Center Subdivision located at 359 W. Lester Road in Apopka FL. 

 

More specifically, the responses are detailed in bold for each Hardship Criteria for your review and 

approval.  

 

We appreciate the opportunity to provide this response.  Should you have any questions regarding its 

contents or if we can be of further assistance in any way, please do not hesitate to contact us at your 

convenience. 

 

 

VERY TRULY YOURS, 

APPIAN ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS LLC 

 

 

 
 

Luke M. Classon, P.E. 

Principal / Sr. Project Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



MARCH 22, 2018                                AVX-001 

PAGE 2 OF 2 
 

 
~ STATE of FLORIDA ~ FBPE CERTIFICATE NO. 32174 

 

Demonstration of Hardship Findings/Comments 

 

1. There are practical difficulties in carrying out the strict letter of the regulation [in] that the requested variance 

relates to a hardship due to characteristics of the land and not solely on the needs of the owner. 

 

Response: Yes. The variance has also previously been discussed with City Staff to ensure it will conform 

with the intended outline of the City’s comprehensive plan.  

 

2. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of developing the site. 

 

Response: No, the request is based on what the surrounding properties will eventually become based on 

the City of Apopka’s comprehensive plan.  

  

3. The proposed variance will not substantially increase congestion on surrounding public streets.  

 

Response: No. The proposed variance will not increase congestion at all on surrounding public streets.  

 

4. The proposed variance will not substantially diminish property values in, nor alter the essential character of, 

the area surrounding the site.  

 

Response: No, the proposed variance will not diminish property values at all. The proposed variance in 

conjunction with the proposed development will increase surrounding property values. The variance 

will also not result in any alteration of the essential character of the area surrounding the site.  

 

5. The effect of the proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of this code and the specific intent 

of the relevant subject area(s) of the code.  

 

Response: Yes. The proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of the current code and the 

specific intent of the relevant subject area. 

 

6. Special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.  

 

Response: No special conditions or circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.  

 

7. That the variance granted is the minimum variance which will make possible the reasonable use of the land, 

building or structure. The proposed variance will not create safety hazards and other detriments to the public.   

 

Response: Yes. The proposed variance is minor to what the current code specifies. The proposed 

variance will not create any safety hazards or other detriments to the public.  

 



CAVESSON

HALTER

CAVESSON

HALTER

H
A

LTER

H
A

LTER

A
A

B
B

C

C

D
D

EE

1"=30'
LIFT STATION TRACT  DETAIL

3/22/18

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

A
P

P
IA

N
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 L
L

C
.

ST
A

T
E

 O
F

 F
L

O
R

ID
A

 C
E

R
T

IF
IC

A
T

E
 O

F
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 N
O

. 3
21

74

SITE DATA:
OCPA - PARCEL ID #:    28-20-28-0000-00-060

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 359 W LESTER RD
APOPKA, FL 32712

TOTAL PROPERTY AREA: ±19.91 Ac.

EXISTING FUTURE LAND USE: AG

PROPOSED FUTURE LAND USE: RLS

ADJACENT FUTURE LAND USE:

NORTH LD (ORANGE CO.)
SOUTH RL (APOPKA)   LM (ORANGE CO.)
EAST AG (APOPKA)
WEST LD (ORANGE CO.)

EXISTING ZONING: AG

PROPOSED ZONING: R-1

ADJACENT ZONING:

NORTH A-1 (ORANGE CO.)
SOUTH R-2 (APOPKA)   A-2 (ORANGE CO.)
EAST AG (APOPKA)

                     WEST A-1 (ORANGE CO.)

SETBACK REQUIREMENTS: FRONT: 25'*
REAR: 20'
SIDE: 10'
CORNER: 25'

MINIMUM LOT AREA: 8,000 SF
MINIMUM LIVING AREA: 1,500 SF

WAIVER REQUEST: NO
VARIANCE REQUEST: YES: A 6' HIGH PVC FENCE IS 

PROPOSED ALONG THE NORTH, 
EAST, AND WEST SIDES OF THE 
SITE IN LIEU OF A 6' HIGH 
MASONRY WALL.  REFER TO 
VARIANCE TABLE ON COVER 
SHEET.

THE PLAT FOR THE SUBDIVISION SHALL BE SUBMITTED WITH THE
FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

DRIVEWAYS WILL BE CONSTRUCTED PER CITY OF APOPKA LAND
DEVELOPMENT CODE SECTIONS 6.02.10(C)(9) & 6.02.10(C)(10). NO
RESIDENTIAL DRIVEWAYS SHALL BE PERMITTED WITHIN 40 FT OF AN
INTERSECTION OR SHALL BE CLOSER THAN 5 FT TO AN ADJOINING
PROPERTY.

SIGNS SHALL BE PERMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE VIII OF
THE CITY OF APOPKA LA ND DEVELOPMENT CODE.

*FRONT ENTRY GARAGES SHALL BE LOCATED A MINIMUM OF 30'
FROM THE FRONT PROPERTY LINE PER CITY OF APOPKA
DEVELOPMENT DESIGN GUIDELINES SECTION 3.2.1

SHEET 7 OF 20



MATCHLINE A-AMATCHLINE A-A

C
A

V
ES

SO
N

H
A

LT
ER

HALTER

AA

B
B

E
E

3/22/18

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

A
P

P
IA

N
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 L
L

C
.

ST
A

T
E

 O
F

 F
L

O
R

ID
A

 C
E

R
T

IF
IC

A
T

E
 O

F
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 N
O

. 3
21

74

SHEET 8 OF 20

TYPICAL LOT
SIZE/PROPOSED
BUILDING PAD
FOR 75' LOTS

85'

13
5'

50'

90
'

25'

25' FRONT
SETBACK

20' REAR
SETBACK

CORNER LOT
SIZE/ BUILDING

PAD FOR 75' LOTS

10'

11,475 SF (0.26 AC.)

75'

13
5'

10,125 SF (0.23 AC.)

55'

90
'

10'

25' FRONT
SETBACK

20' REAR
SETBACK



MATCHLINE A-AMATCHLINE A-A

C
A

V
ES

SO
N

H
A

LT
ER

HALTER

AA

B
B

C

C

D
D

3/22/18

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

A
P

P
IA

N
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 L
L

C
.

ST
A

T
E

 O
F

 F
L

O
R

ID
A

 C
E

R
T

IF
IC

A
T

E
 O

F
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 N
O

. 3
21

74

SHEET 9 OF 20



HALTER

HALTER

3/22/18

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

A
P

P
IA

N
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 L
L

C
.

ST
A

T
E

 O
F

 F
L

O
R

ID
A

 C
E

R
T

IF
IC

A
T

E
 O

F
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IZ

A
T

IO
N

 N
O

. 3
21

74

N.T.S.
TYPICAL STREET SECTION

N.T.S.
ENTRANCE DETAIL

N.T.S.
SECTION A-A

N.T.S.
SECTION B-B

N.T.S.
SECTION C-C

N.T.S.
SECTION D-D

SHEET 10 OF 20

1"=30'
DRIVEWAY DETAIL DRIVEWAYS TO BE CONSTRUCTED WITHIN DEDICATED PUBLIC ROW

INTENDED FOR A FUTURE CONNECTION TO THE WEST. WHEN THE
FUTURE ROAD CONNECTION IS CONSTRUCTED, THE DRIVEWAYS
WITHIN THE ROW WILL BE RECONSTRUCTED TO CONNECT TO THE
NEW ROADWAY IN FRONT OF THEIR LOTS.

SECTION E-E
N.T.S.

1"=30'
FUTURE DRIVEWAY DETAIL FUTURE DRIVEWAY DETAIL SHOWN

FOR REFERENCE PURPOSES ONLY.



WOODLAND SELECT™  
P R E M I U M  F E N C E  T O  L A S T  A  L I F E T I M E  

THE PLY GEM PROMISE:  Ply Gem is a 70-year leader in pioneering performance home exteriors, 
with a superior warranty for exactly the home you want for decades to come.



 

 

 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: June 12, 2018 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:  Variance  Aerial Map 

    Zoning Map 

    Application 

    Site Plan 

    Proposed Fence 

    OCPS DRC Comments 
  
SUBJECT:    BUFFER VARIANCE REQUEST – 501 OLD DIXIE HIGHWAY 

    

REQUEST:  APPROVE A VARIANCE OF THE APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES, 

PART III, LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE II, SECTION 

2.02.07(H)(1)(a), TO ALLOW A 6-FOOT HIGH ALUMINUM FENCE WITH 

MASONRY COLUMNS FOR PORTIONS OF THE PROPOSED WALL 

LENGTH AND A 6-FOOT HIGH VINYL FENCE AS PART OF SCREENING 

IN AREAS ADJACENT TO NORTH BRADSHAW ROAD OR EASTERN 

PROPERTY LINE IN LIEU OF REQUIRED 6 FOOT TALL BRICK, STONE 

OR DECORATIVE BLOCK WALL. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER:  TGINF, LLC c/o Alan Goldberg 
 
LOCATION:  501 Old Dixie Highway 

 
PARCEL ID #: 09-21-28-0000-00-006 
 
LAND USE:  Medium Low Density Residential (0 – 7.5 du\ac) 
 
ZONING:  R-3 (Residential Multiple-Family) 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
TRACT SIZE:  15.88 +/- Acres 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\VARIANCES\2018 - Variances\VAR18-06 TGINF LLC-Hidden Lake 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 2 
 
 

VARIANCE REQUEST SUMMARY:  Section 2.02.07(H)(1)(a) – Bufferyard requirements. A six-foot-

high brick, stone or decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways, erected inside a 

minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. Landscape material shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way 

on the exterior of the buffer wall. The city may allow the developer the option to provide up to 50 percent 

of the buffer wall length in a six-foot wrought iron fence between solid columns. The columns shall be a 

minimum of 32 feet off-set and shall have a stone, brick or decorative block finish. 

 

Variance Request - Code Standard, Sec. 2.02.07(H)(1)(a) – Bufferyard requirements – A six-foot-high 

brick, stone or decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways, erected inside a minimum 

ten-foot landscaped bufferyard.. 

 

 Applicant Request - Allow a 6' high masonry wall or 6' high aluminum fence with columns for 50% of 

the proposed wall length and the use of a 6’ high vinyl fence or a landscape barrier as a screening method 

in areas with excessive sloping conditions for a substitute to the required six-foot-high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall adjacent to the North Bradshaw Road or eastern property line. 

 

VARIANCE PROCESS:  Per Land Development Code Section 10.02.00, the Planning Commission shall 

follow two steps to approve a variance: 

 

Step 1: Section 10.02.02.A, Limitations on Granting Variances. The Planning Commission “shall first 

determine whether the need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, 

shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment conditions that are unique to 

the specific property involved.” This is known as a physical hardship. If the Planning 

Commission makes this determination, then it must take action on the seven variance criteria set 

forth in Section 10.02.02.B. 

 

Step 2: Section 10.02.02.B, Required Findings.  Once a “physical hardship” has been determined, the 

Planning Commission shall not vary from the requirements of any provision of the LDC unless 

it makes a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on the seven variance 

criteria.  

 

APPLICABLE CITY CODES:   
 

1. Section 2.02.15(G)(3) – Areas adjacent to residential uses or districts shall provide a six-foot-high 

masonry wall within a minimum of 50-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

Variance Hardship Determination (Step 1):  The first step of the variance determination process is to 

determine if a hardship occurs pursuant to Section 10.02.02.A, “whether the need for the proposed variance 

arises out of the physical surroundings, shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment 

conditions that are unique to the specific property involved.”  

 

Staff Response:  Staff supports a physical and environmental condition hardship because wetlands extend 

across the North Bradshaw Road right-of-way, and grade.  A staff recommendation is provided herein. 

 

Seven Variance Criteria Findings (Step 2): If the Planning Commission accepts the hardship in Paragraph 

A. above, the second step is to make a finding on the seven criteria below.  The Planning Commission must 

make a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on each of the following seven criteria: 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 3 
 

1. There are practical difficulties in carrying out the strict letter of the regulation [in] that the requested 

variance relates to a hardship due to characteristics of the land and not solely on the needs of the 

owner.  

 

Applicant’s Response:  Yes.  The variance has also previously been discussed with City 

Staff to ensure it will conform to the intended outline of the City's comprehensive plan.  

The Hidden Lake Reserve eastern property line abuts the existing 25’ wide North 

Bradshaw Road right-of-way.  Currently, North Bradshaw Road is an unimproved right-

of-way.  Wetlands extend across the right-of-way, creating a difficulty to construct a ten-

foot buffer and a brick wall.  In addition, the Hidden Lake Reserve natural topography 

has excessive slopes to the unnamed waterbody. This sloping condition is most 

prominent along the eastern property line (North Bradshaw Road). 

 

Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

 

2. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of developing the site. 

 

Applicant’s Response:  The Hidden Lake Reserve grading must address excessive 

sloping while meeting existing grades along the eastern property line. This sloping 

condition provides challenges in the constructability of a brick, stone or decorative block 

wall to screen an unimproved right-of-way, while dealing with an existing waterbody. 

 

Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

 

3. The proposed variance will not substantially increase congestion on surrounding public streets. 

 

Applicant’s Response:  The Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard proposes a 

screening option and will not increase congestion on any surrounding public streets. 

Additionally, there is no increase in the proposed PDP application units or traffic 

distribution to the unimproved North Bradshaw Road. 

 

Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

 

4. The proposed variance will not substantially diminish property values in, nor alter the essential 

character of, the area surrounding the site.  

 

Applicant’s Response:  The proposed Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard will not 

diminish property values, nor alter the essential character of the area surrounding the 

site. The subject property will provide the code required bufferyard width along the 

eastern property line. 

 

Staff’s Response:  City staff does not hold professional expertise to address property 

values.   

 

5. The effect of the proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of this code and the specific 

intent of the relevant subject area(s) of the code.  

 

Applicant’s Response:  The proposed Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard is in 

harmony with the intent of this code. The subject property will provide a 10’ wide 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 4 
 

landscaped bufferyard with optional forms of screening methods, which is the intent of 

the minimum 10’ wide bufferyard with six-foot-high brick, stone or decorative block 

finished wall. 

 

Staff Response:  No objection.   

 

6. Special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.   

 

Applicant’s Response:  The proposed Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard will not 

create a special condition or circumstance. The subject property will provide a 10’ wide 

landscaped bufferyard with optional forms of screening methods. 

 

Staff Response: No objection. 

 

7. That the variance granted is the minimum variance which will make possible the reasonable use of 

the land, building or structure. The proposed variance will not create safety hazards and other 

detriments to the public.  

 

Applicant’s Response:  The proposed Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard will provide 

a 10’ wide landscaped bufferyard with a minimum 6’ high vinyl fence or landscape barrier 

as a screening method on excessively sloped areas of the site.  Utilizing the use of a fence or 

landscape barrier will allow a more constructible screening method on the excessive slopes, 

thus providing a minimum variance from the code. The subject property will provide the 

code required bufferyard width and will not create a safety hazard or detriment to the public. 

 

Staff Response:  No objection. 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 5 
 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

Planning Commission Role:   Based on the information provided by the applicant at the hearing for the 
variance requested, Planning Commission must first determine that sufficient substantially competent 
information indicates “whether a need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, 
shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment conditions that are unique to the specific 
property involved.”  If so, then the Planning Commission must find that substantially competent information 
occurs to accept each of the seven variance criteria. 
 
Planning Commission Role:  Planning Commission has the authority to approve, deny, or approve with 
conditions the requested variance.  
 
If Planning Commission approves the Variance, the following language is recommended: 
 
Staff supports the following: 
 

(a) North of the lake -- A six-foot high brick wall and ten-foot buffer tract shall run from the northeast 
corner to a point nearest the lift station.  From that point south, a wrought-iron style fence or brick wall 
shall extend sourthward to a point no closer than 25 feet from the wetland line.  Staff supports variance 
to waive the brick wall from the southern-most upland buffer line to the northern-most 25-foot upland 
buffer line); and   

 
(b) South of the Lake:  A six-foot high brick wall shall extend from the southwest corner to the north-south 

apex, and a wrought-iron or brick wall shall be constructed to a point within 25 feet of the wetland line. 
 
Applicant requests:  Approve a variance from Section 2.02.07(H)(1)(a), Land Development Code, to allow 
a 6-foot tall vinyl fence 239 feet from the most southeastern point of the parcel along N. Bradshaw Road to 
the conservation point, 282 feet at length.  As well as, a vinyl fence after 273 feet from the most northeastern 
point to the lift station on N. Bradshaw Road to the conservation point, 141 feet at length.  The variance 
shall expire at the time the site redevelops, allowing conformance to the buffer requirements applicable at 
that time. 
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 6 
 

Owner:   TGINF, LLC c/o Alan Goldberg 

Applicant:  Alan Goldberg 

Parcel I.D. No:    09-21-28-0000-00-006 

Location:  501 Old Dixie Highway 

Total Acres:   15.88 +/- Acres   
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

    
 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject Property 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
TGINF, LLC - HIDDEN LAKE - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

ZONING MAP 
 



















Hidden Lake Reserve 
Application for Variance 
Parcel: 09-21-28-0000-00-006 
 
Old Dixie 15, LLC 
501 Old Dixie Highway 
Apopka, Florida  32712 
 
Type of Variance Request 
 
This is a request for: 
To provide a 6' high masonry wall or 6' high aluminum fence with columns for 50% of the proposed wall length and the 
use of a 6’ high vinyl fence or a landscape barrier as a screening method in areas with excessive sloping conditions for a 
substitute to the required six-foot-high brick, stone or decorative block finished wall adjacent to the North Bradshaw 
Road or eastern property line. 
 
As set forth in the Land Development Code Section: 
2.021.07 (H)(1a),  Residential Multi-Family District (R-3) buffer requirements. Multi-family developments shall provide a 
six-foot-high brick, stone or decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways, erected inside a minimum 
ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. 
 
Hardship Determination: 
 

1. The Hidden Lake Reserve eastern property line abuts the existing 25’ wide North Bradshaw Road right-of-way. 
Currently, North Bradshaw Road is an unimproved right-of-way and it does not appear that it will ever be 
improved due to an existing waterbody dividing the right-of-way. In addition, the Hidden Lake Reserve natural 
topography has excessive slopes to the unnamed waterbody. This sloping condition is most prominent along 
the eastern property line (North Bradshaw Road). 
 

2. The Hidden Lake Reserve grading must address excessive sloping while meeting existing grades along the 
eastern property line. This sloping condition provides challenges in the constructability of a brick, stone or 
decorative block wall to screen an unimproved right-of-way, while dealing with an existing waterbody. 

 
3. The Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard proposes a screening option and will not increase congestion on 

any surrounding public streets. Additionally, there is no increase in the proposed PDP application units or traffic 
distribution to the unimproved North Bradshaw Road. 

 
4. The proposed Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard will not diminish property values, nor alter the essential 

character of the area surrounding the site. The subject property will provide the code required bufferyard width 
along the eastern property line. 

 
5. The proposed Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard is in harmony with the intent of this code. The subject 

property will provide a 10’ wide landscaped bufferyard with optional forms of screening methods, which is the 
intent of the minimum 10’ wide bufferyard with six-foot-high brick, stone or decorative block finished wall. 

 
6. The proposed Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard will not create a special condition or circumstance. The 

subject property will provide a 10’ wide landscaped bufferyard with optional forms of screening methods. 
 

7. The proposed Hidden Lake Reserve eastern bufferyard will provide a 10’ wide landscaped bufferyard with a 
minimum 6’ high vinyl fence or landscape barrier as a screening method on excessively sloped areas of the site. 
Utilizing the use of a fence or landscape barrier will allow a more constructible screening method on the 
excessive slopes, thus providing a minimum variance from the code. The subject property will provide the code 
required bufferyard width and will not create a safety hazard or detriment to the public. 



SP-1

17039
05-24-2018

1"=50'
BW
BW
CHM

O
L
D
 
D
I
X
I
E
 
1
5
,
 
L
L
C



Legend® Decorative

The Legend Decorative privacy panel combines 
elegant appearance with superior performance.

Features:

• Large 2" x 7" rails with Decorative accent
• Tongue-and-groove fence boards
• Available in White, Tan and Khaki
• 8' wide panels - no aluminum insert needed
• 6' wide panels available in select markets in White and Tan only

Legend®

The Legend privacy panel offers superior privacy 
with anti-sag performance.

Features:

• Large 1¾" x 7" smooth rail with Friction Fit technology
• Friction Fit rails distribute weight across the top and 

bottom of the fence panel, minimizing panel sag
• Tongue-and-groove fence boards
• Available in White and Tan
• 8' wide panels - no aluminum insert needed

Impressions®

The Impressions privacy panel features solid 
performance and lasting appeal.

Features:

• 1¾" x 5½" smooth rail
• Tongue-and-groove boards 
• 6' wide panels  - no aluminum insert needed 
• 8' wide panels feature an aluminum insert in 

the bottom rail for added support

White Tan Khaki

White Tan

White Tan

Large 1¾" x 7" smooth rail with Friction Fit technology

Legend® Decorative Privacy - White

Legend® Privacy - White  

Impressions® Privacy - White

5



From: DiLuzio Boerger, Jamie E.
To: Jean Sanchez; Goldberg Allan
Cc: Singer Gary; Bobby Wanas; Daly Tom; James Hitt; David Moon; Bobby Howell; Edith Torres; Randall Fernandez;

Richard Earp
Subject: RE: VAR18-06 Hidden Lake/TGINF LLC
Date: Thursday, May 17, 2018 4:44:51 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg

Jean,
 
OCPS has reviewed all the information provided.  It is our recommendation that given OCPS’ history
with the stability of PVC fencing during strong wind events, we would not support the request for a
PVC fence adjacent to OCPS property.
 
Please add this to DRC comments.
 
Thank you,
 
Jamie
 
 

From: Jean Sanchez [mailto:JeSanchez@apopka.net] 
Sent: Thursday, May 17, 2018 8:46 AM
To: Goldberg Allan <goldgator@gmail.com>
Cc: Singer Gary <unibilt@mindspring.com>; Bobby Wanas <bobby@madden-eng.com>; Daly Tom
<tdaly@dalydesign.com>; James Hitt <jhitt@apopka.net>; David Moon <dmoon@apopka.net>;
Bobby Howell <HHowell@apopka.net>; Edith Torres <edithtorres@apopka.net>; DiLuzio Boerger,
Jamie E. <Jamie.DiLuzioBoerger@ocps.net>; Randall Fernandez <rfernandez@apopka.net>; Richard
Earp <REarp@apopka.net>
Subject: RE: VAR18-06 Hidden Lake/TGINF LLC
 
Good morning, Mr. Goldberg,
 
            In reference to the (attached) responses/statement of the variance request proposing a
6-foot tall PVC fence in lieu of the required brick/masonry/pre-cast wall adjacent to N.
Bradshaw Road, the Development Review Committee (DRC) is not in support of the proposed
fencing due to safety/enforcement issues and potential future improvement of the platted
right-of-way (ROW).  The decision was based on current enforcement issues facing the City for
subdivisions with vinyl fencing allowed on the perimeter of their subdivision, adjacent to the
ROW, and fence panels are being forcibly removed allowing for trespassing or creating
unapproved access.  We received a response from Bobby Wanas to proceed with the variance
application/public hearing.  The other issues/concerns cited in the variance request is
regarding the Code required buffer wall on the north that abuts Clayton Estates Subdivision. 
This was discussed at the February 7, 2018 DRC meeting for the first submittal of the PDP that
this buffer wall is not required due to the existing masonry/brick/pre-cast wall for Clayton



Estates.  Orange County Public Schools (OCPS) is in touch with their liaison to discuss the
proposed buffer on the western perimeter of the project site, abutting Apopka Elementary. 
Once we receive a response from OCPS, we will let you know.
 
Since the PDP is scheduled to be in front of DRC next week, Wednesday, May 23 at 9:00 A,M.,
the variance may certainly be brought up as it pertains to the site design of this subdivision. 
With that said, Staff has not determined a tentative public hearing schedule for the PDP
because the Community Development Department has not received all comments from DRC
members.  Comments are scheduled to be sent to the applicant on Monday, May 21 close of
business.  Based on those forthcoming comments and DRC discussion next week, Staff may
determine a tentative hearing schedule after the DRC meeting.
 
Thank you,

 
 
Jean Sanchez
Planner II
Phone: 407.703.1753 
jesanchez@apopka.net

 

From: Goldberg Allan [mailto:goldgator@gmail.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, May 16, 2018 5:15 PM
To: Jean Sanchez <JeSanchez@apopka.net>
Cc: Singer Gary <unibilt@mindspring.com>; Bobby Wanas <bobby@madden-eng.com>; Daly Tom
<tdaly@dalydesign.com>; James Hitt <jhitt@apopka.net>; David Moon <dmoon@apopka.net>;
Bobby Howell <HHowell@apopka.net>; Edith Torres <edithtorres@apopka.net>
Subject: Re: VAR18-06 Hidden Lake/TGINF LLC
Importance: High
 
Jean, I was disappointed that we didn’t receive notice of the DRC meeting this morning
discussing our variance requests.  I assumed incorrectly that the variance request would be
heard at the same DRC meeting as the PDP next week. Could you please specifically let me
know if all portions of the variance requests will not be supported with an explanation for
each?
Could you also verify that our PDP is going to the June 12 Planning Commission meeting
also?
 
Allan Goldberg
407-947-4225
goldgator@gmail.com
 
 



 

 

 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: June 12, 2018 
 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 
X OTHER: Final Development Plan   Aerial Map 
    Zoning Map 
    PDP Site Plan 
    Landscape Plan 
    OCPS DRC Comments 

  

SUBJECT:    PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – HIDDEN LAKE 

RESERVE SUBDIVISION 

    

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE 

SUBDIVISION 
  
SUMMARY 
 
OWNER:    TGINF, LLC c/o Alan Goldberg 
 
APPLICANT/ENGINEER:  Madden, Moorhead and Stokes, Inc., c/o Chad Moorhead, P.E.,  
 
LOCATION:   501 Old Dixie Highway 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 09-21-28-0000-00-006 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:   Medium Low Density Residential (0 – 7.5 du\ac) 
 
ZONING:    R-3 (Residential Multiple Family) 
 
EXISTING USE:   Vacant 
 
PROPOSED USE: 92 Townhome Units within 18 buildings; comprised of 8 buildings 

with 4 units and 10 builidngs with 6 units. Minimum Lot Size: 1 acre; 

Minimum Living Area:  1,350 square feet;  Building Height:  upt to 

35 feet. 
 
TRACT SIZE:    13.57 +/- acres (developable area); 15.88 +/- acres total 
 
DENSITY:    6.78 du/ac (proposed) 
 
 
  
DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SUBDIVISION PLANS\2018\Hidden Lake Reserve\4 Planning Com Hearing 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 2 

 
 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low R-2 Clayton Estates Residential Subdivision 

East (County) Office R-1 New England Heights Subdivision 

South (City and County) Commercial C-1 and C-2 Car sales, automobile service station and other 

commercial retail uses. 

West (City and County) Institution and Medium 

Density Residential 

PO/I and R-2 Apopka Elementary School and Single Family 

Residential 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan 

proposes a gated, townhome community with a maximum of 92 townhome units, private streets, and a 

community pool and cabana.  The minimum typical lot for a townhome building is one acres with a required 

minimum living area of 1,350 square feet for each residential units as set forth in Chapter 2 of the Land 

Development Code.   

 

Setbacks:  The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 

 

Setback Min. Standard 

Front 25’* 

Side 0, 10'** 

Rear 20’*** 

Corner 25’ 

*Front-entry garage must be setback 30 feet and 50 feet from to front between buildings 

**20 feet distance requirement between structures. 

***50 feet from rear to rear between buildings. 

 

Access:    Ingress/egress access point for the development will occur via full access onto Old Dixie 

Highway. In addition, an emergency road and gate connects the internal street with Shirley Drive within 

Clayton Estates.  The emergency road will provide additional access points for emergency vehicles for both 

Clayton Estates and for Hidden Lake Reserve.  A cross access easement is placed across the internal streets 

within Hidden Lake Reserve to allow students from Apopka Elementary School to walk from Clayton 

Estates to the school without having to use Vick Road.  Further, the children and families within Clayton 

Estates and Hidden Reserve can walk a short distance to visit friends in the abutting community.  Otherwise, 

the walk between the communities is a much as 1.3 miles via Old Dixie Highway and Vick Roads i stead 

of a few hundred feet in some cases. 

 

Stormwater:  The retention ponds, located on the north and south of existing water body or conservation 

area of the site, have been designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code requirements. 

 

Bufferyard:  Along Old Dixie Highway -- A 6-feet tall masonry and or 6-feet tall wrought iron fence with 

masonry columns within a 10-foot wide buffer tract is proposed by the applicant along Old Dixie Highway. 

Along Old Dixie Highway the Code requires a six foot-brick wall but the City may accept up to 50% of the 

wall to comprise wrought-iron style fence with columns.  As the applicant has not identified where the 50% 

wrought-iron type fence will be place, planning staff does not support the wrought-iron-style fence.  

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 3 

 

Northern Perimeter next to Clayton Estates -- A 6-feet high brick wall exists on the north perimeter within 

a 10-foot wide buffer tract within the Clayton Estates Residential Subdivision, which is owned and 

maintained by Clayton Estates.   

 

Eastern Project Line -- The City Code requires a ten-foot buffer and a six-foot high wall along Bradshaw 

Road.  The applicant has applied for a variance to allow a six foot vinyl fence along the eastern property 

line in lieu of a brick wall within the 10 foot landscape buffer.  The buffer and wall type shall be presented 

and determined through the variance application process. 

 

Western Project Line -- Also proposed is a 6-foot tall vinyl fence within a ten-foot wide buffer tract abutting 

the single-family homes at the southwestern corner of the project and along Apopka Elementary School.  

The Code requires a brick wall within a 10-foot landscape buffer adjacent to single-family residential. The 

Code does not require residential development to provide a buffer wall between the proposed residential 

homes and the school property.   A gate for cross access during school hours/sessions will also be provided 

between the school and Hidden Lake Reserve.  OCPS supports the gate and pedestrian cross access 

easement within Hidden Lake.  Both OCPS planning staff and City planning staff have asked the applicant 

to provide a brick wall in lieu of a vinyl fence next to the school for safety and appearance purpose, but the 

applicant states the he will only provide a vinyl fence.  The Code does not require residential development 

to provide a buffer wall between residential homes and the public school.   

 

Parking:    A minimum of two spaces within the lot is required for each townhome unit.  Applicant does not 

propose any requirement to have one- or two- car enclosed garages.  All parking, then, can occur within the 

driveway.  The garage is setback 30 feet from the front property line.   No over-flow parking is provided 

and no parking is provided at the pool facility.  Guests and cars not parked in the driveway will park in the 

street. 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

 

1. Wall within Old Dixie Highway bufferyard shall be a six-foot high brick or masonry wall.  Not 

wrought-iron fence will be allowed unless approved by the City at the Final Development Plan, and 

no more than 50% of the wall length along Old Dixie Highway shall be wrought-iron. 

 

2. A six-foot high brick wall shall be placed within a 10-foot wide bufferyard adjacent to the single-

family homes at the southeastern corner of the project. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  This development has an executed and recorded Capacity 

Enhancement Agreement with Orange County Public Schools (OCPS). School concurrency shall be 

required at Final Development Plan approval and no development activity can occur until such time that a 

concurrency mitigation agreement has been approved by OCPS.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

June 12, 2018 - Planning Commission, 5:30 p.m. 

July 18, 2018 - City Council, 7:00 p.m.  
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 4 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of the Hidden Lake Reserve 

Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan/Plat subject to the findings of this staff report and the 

buffer/wall variance public hearing for VAR18-06 TGINF. 

 

Planning Commission:  Find the Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and recommend approval of the 

Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan subject to the Conditions of Approval, 

findings of this staff report, and findings of the buffer/wall variance public hearing for VAR18-06 TGINF 

for the property owned by TGINF, LLC and located at 501 Old Dixie Highway.   

 

This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 5 

 

Owner:   TGINF, LLC c/o Alan Goldberg 

Applicant:  Alan Goldberg 

Parcel I.D. No:    09-21-28-0000-00-006 

Location:  501 Old Dixie Highway 

Total Acres:   15.88 +/- Acres   

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

   

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 6 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject Property 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE SUBDIVISION – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

PAGE 7 

 

 

ZONING MAP 

   
 

 

 





























SCALE

SHEET

PROJECT NO.

B
Y

D
A

T
E

R
E

V
.

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N

DATE

Date:

d
a
ly

 d
e
si

g
n
 g

ro
u
p

 in
c
.

U
rb

an
 P

la
nn

in
g,

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e,

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

su
lti

ng
9

1
3

 
N

 
P

e
n

n
s
y
l
v
a

n
i
a

 
A

v
e

,
 
W

i
n

t
e

r
 
P

a
r
k
,
 
F

L
 
3

2
7

8
9

 
 
(
4

0
7

)
 
7

4
0

-
7

3
7

3
 
 
w

w
w

.
d

a
l
y
d

e
s
i
g

n
.
c
o

m

L-202

MAY 2018

1"=60'

1722

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N

P
R

E
L
I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N

H
I
D

D
E

N
 
L
A

K
E

 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

A
P

O
P

K
A

,
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

N
O

R
T

H

0'

BUFFER TRACT B-3 (0.12 AC)

PEDESTRIAN TRAIL (MULCH)

5' WIDE LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

STREET TREES TO BE 3" DBH/30' O.C.

5
'
 
W

I
D

E
 
L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
T

R
E

E
S

 
T

O
 
B

E
 
3

"
 
D

B
H

/
3

0
'
 
O

.
C

.

5

'

 

W

I

D

E

 

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

S

T

R

E

E

T

 

T

R

E

E

S

 

T

O

 

B

E

 

3

"

 

D

B

H

/

3

0

'

 

O

.

C

.

LANDSCAPING AND IRRIGATION PLANS

SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH LDC

ARTICLE V, WATER-WISE ORD. NO. 2069

RECREATION EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS, AND SURFACES

WILL BE SUBMITTED WITH FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

PEDESTRIAN TRAIL (MULCH)

6' VINYL FENCE WITHIN

BUFFER TRACT B-3

(TAN)

PEDESTRIAN CONNECTION TO

APOPKA  ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

OPEN SPACE TRACT

OS-2  (0.12 AC)

BUFFER TRACT B-1 (0.09 AC)

ENTRY SIGN WALL & COLUMNS

ENTRY GATES

ENTRY SIGN WALL & COLUMNS

OPEN SPACE TRACT OS-7 (0.10 AC)

OPEN SPACE TRACT OS-1 (0.15 AC)

BOARDWALK &

OBSERVATION PIER

BUFFER TRACT B-2

(0.10 AC).

CANOPY TREES 40' O.C.

   LIFT

STATION

RECREATION TRACT

       R-1 (0.68 AC)

 UPLAND

 BUFFER

LIMITS OF WETLAND

 WETLAND

 UPLAND

 BUFFER

 UPLAND

 BUFFER

    POND

 TRACT  P-1

    POND

 TRACT  P-2

GENERAL NOTES: TREE LEGEND
I CERTIFY THAT THE LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION DESIGN FOR HIDDEN LAKE RESERVE

OF SUBDIVISION IS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF APOPKA'S ORDINANCE 2069

ADOPTED MAY 21,2008 WHICH ESTABLISHES WATERWISE LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION

STANDARDS.

______________________                      _____________________                   ______________

SIGNATURE                                              REG. NO                                             DATE

S

E

E

 

S

H

E

E

T

 

L

-

2

0

1

 

F

O

R

E

N

T

R

Y

 

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

E

6' VINYL FENCE WITHIN

BUFFER (TAN) OR

LANDSCAPE BARRIER

6' VINYL FENCE WITHIN

BUFFER TRACT B-3

(TAN)

OPEN SPACE TRACT OS-3 (0.03 AC)

OPEN SPACE TRACT

OS-4 (0.05 AC)

OPEN SPACE TRACT

OS-4 (0.05 AC)

6' BRICK WALL

EXISTING

6' BRICK WALL

EXISTING

6' MASONRY SCREEN WALL OR

6' WROUGHT IRON FENCE WITH

MASONRY COLUMNS (TYP)

6' MASONRY SCREEN WALL OR

6' WROUGHT IRON FENCE WITH

MASONRY COLUMNS (TYP)

OPEN SPACE TRACT

 OS-6 (0.07 AC)

6' MASONRY SCREEN WALL OR

6' WROUGHT IRON FENCE WITH

MASONRY COLUMNS (TYP)

BUFFER TRACT B-4 (0.27 AC)

6' MASONRY SCREEN WALL OR

6' WROUGHT IRON FENCE WITH

MASONRY COLUMNS (TYP)

UNDERSTORY TREES 35" O.C.

HEDGE AND GROUNDCOVERS

UNDERSTORY TREES 35" O.C.

HEDGE AND GROUNDCOVERS

CANOPY TREES 40' O.C.

PEDESTRIAN CONNECTION TO

CLAYTON ESTATES

6' BRICK WALL

EXISTING



From: DiLuzio Boerger, Jamie E.
To: Jean Sanchez; Goldberg Allan
Cc: Singer Gary; Bobby Wanas; Daly Tom; James Hitt; David Moon; Bobby Howell; Edith Torres; Randall Fernandez;

Richard Earp
Subject: RE: VAR18-06 Hidden Lake/TGINF LLC
Date: Thursday, May 17, 2018 4:44:51 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg

Jean,
 
OCPS has reviewed all the information provided.  It is our recommendation that given OCPS’ history
with the stability of PVC fencing during strong wind events, we would not support the request for a
PVC fence adjacent to OCPS property.
 
Please add this to DRC comments.
 
Thank you,
 
Jamie
 
 

From: Jean Sanchez [mailto:JeSanchez@apopka.net] 
Sent: Thursday, May 17, 2018 8:46 AM
To: Goldberg Allan <goldgator@gmail.com>
Cc: Singer Gary <unibilt@mindspring.com>; Bobby Wanas <bobby@madden-eng.com>; Daly Tom
<tdaly@dalydesign.com>; James Hitt <jhitt@apopka.net>; David Moon <dmoon@apopka.net>;
Bobby Howell <HHowell@apopka.net>; Edith Torres <edithtorres@apopka.net>; DiLuzio Boerger,
Jamie E. <Jamie.DiLuzioBoerger@ocps.net>; Randall Fernandez <rfernandez@apopka.net>; Richard
Earp <REarp@apopka.net>
Subject: RE: VAR18-06 Hidden Lake/TGINF LLC
 
Good morning, Mr. Goldberg,
 
            In reference to the (attached) responses/statement of the variance request proposing a
6-foot tall PVC fence in lieu of the required brick/masonry/pre-cast wall adjacent to N.
Bradshaw Road, the Development Review Committee (DRC) is not in support of the proposed
fencing due to safety/enforcement issues and potential future improvement of the platted
right-of-way (ROW).  The decision was based on current enforcement issues facing the City for
subdivisions with vinyl fencing allowed on the perimeter of their subdivision, adjacent to the
ROW, and fence panels are being forcibly removed allowing for trespassing or creating
unapproved access.  We received a response from Bobby Wanas to proceed with the variance
application/public hearing.  The other issues/concerns cited in the variance request is
regarding the Code required buffer wall on the north that abuts Clayton Estates Subdivision. 
This was discussed at the February 7, 2018 DRC meeting for the first submittal of the PDP that
this buffer wall is not required due to the existing masonry/brick/pre-cast wall for Clayton



Estates.  Orange County Public Schools (OCPS) is in touch with their liaison to discuss the
proposed buffer on the western perimeter of the project site, abutting Apopka Elementary. 
Once we receive a response from OCPS, we will let you know.
 
Since the PDP is scheduled to be in front of DRC next week, Wednesday, May 23 at 9:00 A,M.,
the variance may certainly be brought up as it pertains to the site design of this subdivision. 
With that said, Staff has not determined a tentative public hearing schedule for the PDP
because the Community Development Department has not received all comments from DRC
members.  Comments are scheduled to be sent to the applicant on Monday, May 21 close of
business.  Based on those forthcoming comments and DRC discussion next week, Staff may
determine a tentative hearing schedule after the DRC meeting.
 
Thank you,

 
 
Jean Sanchez
Planner II
Phone: 407.703.1753 
jesanchez@apopka.net

 

From: Goldberg Allan [mailto:goldgator@gmail.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, May 16, 2018 5:15 PM
To: Jean Sanchez <JeSanchez@apopka.net>
Cc: Singer Gary <unibilt@mindspring.com>; Bobby Wanas <bobby@madden-eng.com>; Daly Tom
<tdaly@dalydesign.com>; James Hitt <jhitt@apopka.net>; David Moon <dmoon@apopka.net>;
Bobby Howell <HHowell@apopka.net>; Edith Torres <edithtorres@apopka.net>
Subject: Re: VAR18-06 Hidden Lake/TGINF LLC
Importance: High
 
Jean, I was disappointed that we didn’t receive notice of the DRC meeting this morning
discussing our variance requests.  I assumed incorrectly that the variance request would be
heard at the same DRC meeting as the PDP next week. Could you please specifically let me
know if all portions of the variance requests will not be supported with an explanation for
each?
Could you also verify that our PDP is going to the June 12 Planning Commission meeting
also?
 
Allan Goldberg
407-947-4225
goldgator@gmail.com
 
 



 

 

 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
 

 PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: June 12, 2018 

X SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Final Development Plan/Plat  Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Existing Use Map 

    Final Development Subdivision 

    Plat 
  

SUBJECT:  STANTON RIDGE SUBDIVISION FINAL PLAT\REPLAT 

 

REQUEST: 
RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE STANTON RIDGE 

SUBDIVISION FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT 
  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER/APPLICANT:   Central Florida Expressway Authority  
 
LOCATION:  Straddles State Road 429, west of the intersection of Belgian 

 Street and Plymouth Sorrento Road. 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant single-family lot residential subdivision 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:    Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:  33 single family lots, replat of existing subdivision  
  (lots 95’ x 130’) impacted by S.R. 429 right-of-way 
 
ZONING:  R-1AA 
 
PROEJCT SIZE:    20.59 /- acres 
 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 
Direction Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North - City Agriculture AG SR 429 right-of-way 
East - City Residential Low Suburban R-1AA, A-

1 (ZIP) 
Single Family residences, 

agricultural uses 
South - County Low Density Residential  “County” 

A-1, R-1A 
SR 429 right-of-way, 

Single-family residences 
West – County, 

City 
“City” Institutional/Public Use, “City” 
Residential Low Suburban, “County” 

Low Density Residential 

“County” 
R-1, 

“City” A-1 
(ZIP) 

Single Family residences, 
City of Apopka Plymouth 

Regional Water Plant 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

STANTON RIDGE –FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:  Stanton Ridge was platted as a 65 lot subdivision in 2007 with access 

to Plymouth Sorrento Road from Belgian Street. Before homes were constructed in the platted Stanton 

Ridge subdivision, the Central Florida Expressway Authority (then the Orlando-Orange County 

Expressway Authority) acquired the subdivision to use the eastern portion for S.R. 429 right-of-way.  By 

minor redesign of the subdivision, thirty-three of the original lots can be saved, all on the west side of S.R. 

429.  Access to the subdivision will continue from Belgian Street, which now has a bridge extending over 

S.R. 429.  Belgian Street is a public road owned and maintained by the City.  The bridge will be maintained 

by the Central Florida Expressway Authority. 

 

Lots range from the smallest at 12,350 sq. ft. to the largest at 23,862 sq. ft. Majority of lots exceed 12,500 

sq. ft. 

 

A development agreement will accompany the new final development plan and plat when they appear 

before City Council at a public hearing.  Development agreement is to address the following: 

1. Delay landscaping and tree planting along the streets and common areas until a homebuilder 

acquires the project from the Central Florida Expressway Authority. 

2. Delay completion of the park and recreation facilities until a homebuilder acquires the project. 

3. Belgian Street landscape maintenance by the Stanton Ridge HOA. 

4. Maintenance of the bridge. 

5. Assurances to the future homebuilder that entitlements are in place, allowing home construction to 

proceed. 
 

Development Profile: 

 

No. of residential lots: 33 single family residential lots 

Minimum lot width: 95  feet  

Minimum lot depth: 130 Feet  

Minimum lot size: 12,350  square feet  

Minimum house livable area: 1,700 square feet 

 

Setbacks:   

 Front: Min. 25 feet  

 Rear: Min. 20 feet 

 Side: Min. 10 feet 

 Garage: 30 feet (front entry) 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Residential Low Suburban Future Land Use Designation and the R-1AA zoning category.  

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: A School Capacity Enhancement Agreement has been approved by 

OCPS. The location is served by the following schools: Wolf Lake Elementary, Wolf Lake Middle, and 

Apopka High School.   As the plat was previously recorded, school capacity enhancement and concurrency 

have already been satisfied.   

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

STANTON RIDGE –FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT 
PAGE 3 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  Notification occurred to Orange County occurred through the 

Development Review Committee agenda distribution, of which Orange County is on the notification list. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

June 12, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

July 18, 2018 – City Council (7:00 pm)  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Stanton Ridge Final Development 

Plan and Plat 

 

Planning Commission:  Find the Stanton Ridge Final Development Plan and Plat consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommend approval of the Stanton Ridge Final 

Development Plan and Plat, subject to City Council approval of a Development Agreement.  

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

STANTON RIDGE –FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT 
PAGE 4 
 

Project: STANTON RIDGE 

Owned by:  Central Florida Expressway Authority 

Located: West of Plymouth-Sorrento Road and Belgian Street 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

STANTON RIDGE –FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT 
PAGE 5 
 

 

PREVIOUSLY APPROVED  

SUBDIVISION PLAN/PLAT 
 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 

STANTON RIDGE –FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 
 



GTC Engineering Corporation

SITE LOCATION

PREPARED FOR

SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION

1

2

3

COVER SHEET

GENERAL NOTES

OVERALL SITE PLAN

407-380-0402

98 South Semoran Blvd, Orlando, FL  32807

specifications.

and Highways, State of Florida" (FDOT Green Book) and City of Apopka regulations and

"Manual of Uniform Minimum Standards for Design, Construction and Maintenance for Streets

The Engineer certifies that these construction plans were prepared in accordance with the

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

N

N.T.S.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS FURNISHED)

FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

SURVEYOR

STANTON RIDGE

GRADING PLAN

P
ly

m
o
u
th
-S
o
rr
en
to
 R
o
a
dValeview Ct

SITE
PROJECT

Valeview Dr

H
e
rm
it

S
m
it
h

R
o
a
d

Yothers Road

O
range

Blossom

Trail

Schopke Road

Number 6758

Certificate of Authorization

JOB NUMBER    FLD-31

9
/2

7
/2

0
1
7

3
:3

9
:2

3
 P

M

SHEET   1 of 7

Central Florida Expressway Authority

407-690-5000

Orlando, FL 32807

4974 ORL Tower Road

Central Florida Expressway Authority

OWNER/DEVELOPER

P.E. Number 35490

Claude L. Cassagnol, P.E.

S
R
 4
2
9
 (
U
n
d
er
 C

o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
)

407.660.2322

Maitland, FL 32751

2700 Westhall Lane, Suite 137

Surveying & Mapping

Geodata Consultants, Inc. 4-5

H
:\
J
o
b
s
1
\F

L
D

3
1
-S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e
\r
o
a
d

w
a
y
\S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e
 C

o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 P
la

n
s
\f
ld

3
1
c
o
v
.d

g
n

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ENGINEER

407-380-0402

Orlando, FL  32807

98 South Semoran Boulevard

GTC Engineering Corporation

CONTAINING AN AGGREGATE AREA OF 20.594 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

88°50'25" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 605.51 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 80.07 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE DEPARTING SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE, RUN SOUTH

EXISTING WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF PLYMOUTH SORRENTO ROAD; THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTH LINE, RUN SOUTH 03°29'20' EAST ALONG

COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE NORTH 88°50'25" EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 10, BLOCK O, A DISTANCE OF 605.51 FEET TO A POINT ON THE

10, BLOCK O, MAP OF PLYMOUTH, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK B, PAGE 17 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE

FEET TO A FOUND 4"X4" CONCRETE MONUMENT STAMPED "J.W.&G. RLS 1819 PRM RLS 1585 PCP", SAID POINT BEING THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT

TO A POINT 25 FEET EAST OF AND PARALLEL TO SAID EAST LINE AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 03°29'20" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 80.07

SAID SECTION 36, A DISTANCE OF 912.32 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE DEPARTING SAID EAST LINE, RUN NORTH 88°50'25" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 25.02 FEET

BEING A FOUND 6"X6" CONCRETE MONUMENT, NO IDENTIFICATION; THENCE NORTH 03°29'20" WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF

COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA,

OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  

PORTION OF STANTON RIDGE, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 68, PAGES 18 THROUGH 22 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS

ALL THAT TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING A REPLAT OF A

TOGETHER WITH:

A DISTANCE OF 80.07 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

THENCE NORTH 88°50'25" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 25.02 FEET TO A POINT ON AFORESAID EAST LINE; THENCE SOUTH 03°29'20" EAST ALONG SAID EAST LINE,

OF 25.02 FEET TO A POINT 25 FEET WEST OF AND PARALLEL TO SAID EAST LINE; THENCE NORTH 03°29'20" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 80.07 FEET TO A POINT;

SAID SECTION 36, A DISTANCE OF 912.32 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE DEPARTING SAID EAST LINE, RUN SOUTH 88°50'25" WEST, A DISTANCE

BEING A FOUND 6"X6" CONCRETE MONUMENT, NO IDENTIFICATION; THENCE NORTH 03°29'20" WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF

COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA,

OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  

PORTION OF STANTON RIDGE, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 68, PAGES 18 THROUGH 22 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS

ALL THAT TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING A REPLAT OF A

TOGETHER WITH:

NORTH 89°08'02" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 43.20 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 00°27'45" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 170.78 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

LENGTH OF 11,295.21 FEET, A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 09°56'58" EAST AND A CHORD LENGTH OF 519.46 FEET TO THE END OF SAID CURVE; THENCE

SOUTH 11°16'01" EAST, RUN 519.51 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, CONCAVE TO THE WEST, HAVING A DELTA ANGLE OF 02°38'07", A RADIUS

THENCE SOUTH 10°53'26" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 488.82 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF ON A NON-TANGENT CURVE; THENCE FROM A TANGENT BEARING OF

LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT OF WAY LINE; THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTH LINE, RUN SOUTH 19°35'38" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 166.39 FEET TO A POINT; 

OF 183.71 FEET TO A POINT ON THE LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 429; THENCE THE FOLLOWING FIVE COURSES ALONG SAID

1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 36; THENCE DEPARTING SAID WEST LINE, RUN NORTH 89°26'22" EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE, A DISTANCE

FEET TO A FOUND 4"X4" CONCRETE MONUMENT STAMPED "LS 3993", SAID POINT BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST

NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 36; THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTH LINE, RUN NORTH 03°20'21" WEST ALONG SAID WEST LINE, A DISTANCE OF 661.42

4"X4" CONCRETE MONUMENT STAMPED "LS 3993", SAID POINT BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE

SAID SECTION 36; THENCE DEPARTING SAID WEST LINE, RUN NORTH 89°26'15" EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, A DISTANCE OF 666.07 FEET TO A FOUND

MONUMENT STAMPED "LS 3993", SAID POINT BEING ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF

THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTH LINE, RUN NORTH 03°11'27" WEST ALONG SAID WEST LINE, A DISTANCE OF 660.58 FEET TO A FOUND 4"X4" CONCRETE

MONUMENT STAMPED "PRM LB 1977", SAID POINT BEING ON THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 36;

POINT ON AFORESAID SOUTH LINE; THENCE SOUTH 89°28'38" WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, A DISTANCE OF 947.48 FEET TO A FOUND 4"X4" CONCRETE

A POINT; THENCE NORTH 52°36'26" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 79.53 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 00°31'19" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 85.39 FEET TO A

134.31 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE DEPARTING SAID LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT OF WAY LINE, RUN SOUTH 89°31'59" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 46.60 FEET TO

BEGINNING; THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTH LINE, RUN SOUTH 00°27'45" EAST ALONG SAID LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT OF WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF

OF SAID SECTION 36, A DISTANCE OF 278.73 FEET TO A POINT ON THE LIMITED ACCESS RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF STATE ROAD 429 AND THE POINT OF

BEING A FOUND 6"X6" CONCRETE MONUMENT, NO IDENTIFICATION; THENCE SOUTH 89°28'38" WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4

COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA,

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  

RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, TOGETHER WITH AN ANNEXED PARCEL LYING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF AND BEING MORE

A PORTION OF STANTON RIDGE, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 68, PAGES 18 THROUGH 22 OF THE PUBLIC

ALL THAT TRACT OR PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING A REPLAT OF

PLAN/PROFILE - KIOWA AVE6

7 PLAN/PROFILE - KLAMATH LOOP

SEPTEMBER 2017



     b.   Control features, methods and conditions included in this contract include the following

          as indicated by X in blank:

          (1)       Coordinate construction of temporary erosion control features with permanent

                    erosion control features.

          (2)       Control operation which result in water pollution (FDOT Section 104-3).

          (3)       Provide schedule for clearing and grubbing, earthwork operations and

                    construction of permanent erosion control features and proposed use of

                    temporary erosion control features (FDOT Section 104-5).

          (4)       Limitation of exposure of erodible earth without temporary or permanent

                    erosion control features is             square feet (FDOT Section 104-6.1).

          (5)       Temporary grassing (FDOT Section 104-6.4.2).

          (6)       Temporary sod (FDOT Section 104-6.4.3).

          (8)       Sandbagging (FDOT Section 104-6.4.5).

          (11)      Artificial coverings (FDOT Section 104-6.4.8).

          (12)      Berms (FDOT Section 104-6.4.9).

          (13)      Baled hay or straw (FDOT Section 104-6.4.10).

          (14)      Temporary silt fences and staked silt barriers (FDOT Section 104-6.4.11).

          (16)      Remove temporary erosion control features (FDOT Section 104-6.5).

          (17)      Maintain permanent and temporary erosion control features (FDOT Section

                    104.7).

          (18)      This contract design has been approved by the OWNER and regulatory

                    features required during construction shall be constructed by the Contractor,

                    incidental to the work.

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X      The Contractor __________________________________________________________________

     hereby certifies to the OWNER that improvements covered by this drawing and the related details have

     been constructed as indicated or as modified by the notes and graphics shown.  Absent a note or

     graphic to the contrary, the improvements have been constructed meeting industry standard tolerances.

     Signed: _______________________________________________  Date: ___________________

                        Authorized Contractor's Representative

2.   The Engineer certifies that all roadways were designed to the applicable standards, as set forth

     of Uniform Standards for Design, Construction, and Maintenance for Streets and Highways.

4.   It will be the responsibility of the Contractor to get the necessary Right-of-Way Permit(s) and

     provide for the safety and control of local traffic during construction.

5.   The Contractor shall be extremely cautious when working near trees that are to be saved,

     whether shown in the plans or designated in the field.

6.   The Contractor shall be responsible for locating and verifying (horizontally and vertically) all

     existing utilities before construction, and for notifying the various utility companies to arrange

     for any relocation, temporary disruption of service, or clarification of activity regarding said

     utility.  The contractor shall exercise caution when crossing an underground utility, whether

     shown in these plans or field located.  All utilities which interfere with the proposed

     construction shall be relocated by the respective utility companies and the Contractor shall

     cooperate with them during relocation operations.  Any delay or inconvenience of the various

     utilities shall be incidental to the contract and no extra compensation will be allowed.

7.   The locations of all existing utilities, facilities, and any other features shown on these plans

     have been determined from the best available information and are provided for the

     completeness of the location information provided.  Any inaccuracy or omission in such

     information shall not relieve the Contractor of his responsibility to protect such existing

     features from damage or unscheduled interruption of service.  Should a discrepancy arise

     between these plans and actual field conditions which would appreciably affect the execution

     of these plans, the Contractor will halt construction and notify the Engineer immediately.

8.   The Contractor shall be responsible for meeting all inspection criteria and schedules, and for

     signing for said inspections.

     construction phasing, and to allow the utility to install street crossings and other required

     sleeves.

     of a structure which is located outside the lines, grades or grading sections established for this

     project, except where such excavation or removal is provided for in the contract, plans or

     specifications.

     requirements specified in the contract, plans or specifications.

     Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways or as directed by the

     causes obstruction to traffic or constitutes in any way a hazard to the public.

     inspected and tested by a Florida licensed Soils Engineer to assure that the specified

     compaction is maintained and all deleterious materials have been removed.

     such as brush, heavy sods, heavy growth of grass, decayed vegetable matter, rubbish, and any

     other deleterious material before the embankment is started.  Immediately prior to the placing

     of fill materials, the entire area being filled shall be scarified in a direction approximately

     parallel to the axis of fill.  The Geotechnical Engineer shall approve the area prior to the

     placement of fill.

     coordinate scheduling with the telephone utility to ensure proper construction phasing, and to

     allow the utility to install street crossings and other required sleeves.

     covers.

     detention facilities until the work has been accepted by the Owner.  All disturbed areas shall

     public roads beyond the limits of the work.  A special permit will not relieve the Contractor of

     liability for the damage that may result from the moving of material and equipment.

     be responsible for all damage or injury to property of any character during the execution of the

     work, resulting from any act, omission, neglect, or misconduct in his manner or method of

     described on these plans.  It will also be the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that

     sufficient geotechnical testing has been performed prior to construction.

     this project from GTC Engineering Corporation and meet the Geotechnical Engineer's

     requirements for soil preparation on the site.  The Contractor's Geotechnical Engineer shall

     certify all site, utility, and roadway compaction as well as underdrain and pavement

     construction to GTC Engineering Corporation.  Geotechnical recommendations are not the

     responsibility of GTC Engineering Corporation.  GTC Engineering Corporation has relied on

     the geotechnical report in the preparation of the plans.  Any conflict between information

     within the report and these plans shall be reported to the Engineer and/or Owner.  GTC

     Engineering Corporation assumes no responsibility for the correctness, completeness. or

     accuracy of the geotechnical information.

     waters.  The Contractor is responsible for water quality and shall route discharges in such a

     loading) and F.D.O.T. Index No. 17302.

     all Fire Hydrants.

     a.   Provide effective temporary and permanent erosion control following the requirements

          approval prior to the preconstruction meeting for this project.

          Engineer a project construction schedule (Bar Graph) and update the schedule monthly.

          item of work.

          necessary to ensure that the improvements have been constructed in accordance with

     field conditions shall immediately be brought to the Engineer's attention.  Failure to do so

     shall make the Contractor completely liable for whatever errors and/or problems that may

     subsequently arise.

     and are in hand at the job site prior to the commencement of construction.  Contractor shall

     abide by all conditions contained therein.  Permits included (but not necessarily limited to) are:

     Disturbed monumentation shall be restored by a Florida-licensed land surveyor selected by the

     Owner at the Contractor's expense.

     shall be transitioned to provide smooth driving surfaces while maintaining positive drainage. 

     Should areas of poor drainage be observed, the Contractor shall notify the Engineer prior to

     paving so that recommendations for correction may be made.

     Engineer's attention by the Contractor prior to bidding.  It is the Engineer's intention to build

     what is shown on the construction plans.

     General Permit.

     drawings showing ALL CHANGES marked in waterproof red with the following Contractor

     Certification executed on EACH SHEET:

     to construction.  It is the sole responsibility of the contractor to completely stake and check

     all improvements to ensure adequate positioning, both horizontal and vertical, including

     minimum building setbacks, before the installation of any improvement.

     grading sections, cross sections, dimensions, material requirement, and testing

          waterproof RED ink.

     manner to adequately remove silt before runoff from the site.

X

          (15)      Floating silt barriers (FDOT Section 104-6.4.11).

X

          

          

1.   All construction is to conform with City of Apopka standards and specifications, unless

     by City of Apopka and the latest edition of the Florida Department of Transportation Manual

     City of Apopka Traffic Engineer, to effectively prevent accidents in all places where the work

     d.   The Contractor is to submit an erosion control plan to the City of Apopka Engineer for

     otherwise waived by the City of Apopka engineer.

     Orange County and the Florida Department of Transportation.

     City of Apopka for the preservation of all public and private property.  The Contractor shall

          on the Paving and Drainage sheet.  Record all As-builts in

          Engineer and submit test reports to the Engineer prior to beginning work on the next

9.  The electrical distribution system is to be designed and installed by the electrical power utility. 

10.  The Contractor shall not excavate, remove, or otherwise disturb any material, structure, or part

          (7)       Temporary mulching (FDOT Section 104-6.4.4).

11.  All work and all materials furnished shall conform with the lines, grades,

12.  Prior to commencing work, the Contractor shall furnish, erect, and maintain all barricades,

     The Contractor will coordinate scheduling with the electrical power utility to ensure proper

     warning signs, and markings for hazards and the control of traffic, in conformity with the

     proper compaction has been attained.  The proof-rolling and compaction operations shall be

14.  After the roadway has been constructed to subgrade, it shall be proof-rolled to assure that

15.  In areas which require fill material, the Contractor will strip or otherwise remove all vegetation

16.  Telephone system will be designed and installed by telephone utility.  The Contractor will

                    and the cost thereof included in the Contract Sum as a regular obligation

17.  Install valve boxes with all valves.  Valve boxes under pavement shall have traffic-bearing

18.  The Contractor shall be responsible for the maintenance of all landscape buffers, retention and

     be returned to their original condition.

19.  The Contractor shall comply with all legal load restrictions in the hauling of materials in

22.  The Contractor shall ensure that proper soil densities are achieved for placement of all

20.  The Contractor shall familiarize himself with the policies and guidelines established by the

21.  Fire protection shall be provided according to City of Apopka Regulations.

     executing the work, or at anytime due to defective work or materials.

     headwall/endwall footings, retaining wall footings, and in general, any footing support

          the plans and specifications.

23.  It is the Contractor's responsibility to obtain a copy of the Geotechnical Engineer's report for

24.  During construction, no direct discharge of water will be allowed to downstream receiving

25.  For sign details, refer to the "Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices," published by the

26.  Blue reflective pavement markers shall be placed in the center of the driving lane in front of

27.  Erosion Control Notes

          in Section 104 of the State of Florida Department of Transportation Standard

28.  Miscellaneous Engineer Notifications

                    agencies having an interest in erosion control abatement.  The design in its final

                    form meets or exceeds minimum standards.  All temporary erosion control

     a.   The Contractor shall keep DAILY "As-built" drawings employing the criteria shown

     convenience of the Contractor.  The Engineer does not guarantee the accuracy or the

          (9)       Slope drains (FDOT Section 104-6.4.6).

          (10)      Sediment basins (FDOT Section 104-6.4.7).

          shall be taken to ensure protection of groundwater and soil resources.

     b.   Before the start of construction, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the

     c.   Any fuel storage areas shall have owner's prior approval and appropriate measures

     d.   The Contractor shall coordinate all backfill operations with the Resident Geotechnical

     e.   The Engineer reserves the right to require the Contractor to perform any action

29.  Any discrepancy between the dimensions and measurements shown on the plans and the actual

30.  It will be the responsibility of the Contractor(s) to ensure that all required permits are obtained

31.  The Contractor shall stake all improvements using the plat.  Contractor shall confirm with 

     a.   Local right-of-way use.

     b.   Local underground utilities.

32.  The Contractor shall be responsible for protecting all existing survey monumentation. 

33.  The Contractor is responsible for grading all pavement areas to drain positively.  Intersections

34.  The quantities and lengths of materials shown on plans should be verified by the Contractor. 

     Any discrepancy between callouts and actual shown in plan view is to be brought to the

35.  The Contractor is to maintain weekly monitoring reports per general conditions of N.P.D.E.S.

36.  Record Drawing:  At the end of construction, the Contractor shall provide one (1) set of

      Apopka utilities inspector (407-703-1731).

     The contractor shall coordinate all pump station operation and shut down control with a City of

  a8. Operation of City of Apopka Pump Stations

 

     (407-703-1731).  All valves being installed are to remain closed during construction.

     Water, wastewater, and reuse valves are to be operated only by a City of Apopka utilities inspector

  a7. Operation of City of Apopka Valves

 

     in advance to schedule main tie-ins and valve operations.

     The City of Apopka Public Services department (407-703-1731) shall be notified at least (7) days

  a6. Advance Notification of Pending Connection

 

     (7) days prior to any construction activity.

     The City of Apopka Public Services department (407-703-1731) shall be notified at least seven

  a5. Advance Notification of Pending Connection

          

  a4. City of Apopka Public Services General Telephone Number:  407-703-1731

 

     be charged for repairs.

     City of Apopka utilities inspector, City of Apopka may perform repairs and the contractor will

     contractor's expense.  If the repair is not made in a timely manner, as determined by the

     All damage to City of Apopka's mains shall be repaired immediately by the contractor at the

  a3. Repair Immediately

 

     gravity sewer or water main break or damage at 407-703-1757.

     The City of Apopka dispatch operator shall be notified immediately in the event of a force main,

  a2. Telephone Notification

 

     guaranteed.  Contractor is responsible for field verifying existing utility locations.

     mains and gravity sewers.  Force main and sewer locations shown on plans are not exact or

     The contractor shall exercise extreme caution when excavating in proximity of wastewater force

  a1. Excavate Cautiously

37.  EMERGENCY  WASTEWATER  SPILL  AND  WATERMAIN  BREAK PROCEDURES

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 N

O
T
E
S

0
9
-2

6
-1

7
 2
 

3.   The Contractor shall coordinate all work within existing road right-of-ways with the City of Apopka,

     c.   Contractor to sod three feet behind all curbs within the entire project as part of construction cost.

     U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, latest edition.

     All signs to be single mounted according to F.D.O.T. Index No. 11862 (70 mph wind

          Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, 2017 Edition (FDOT Section 104).

13.  All existing utilities shown on the plans have been field verified by Geodata Consultants, Inc.

     Geodata Consultants, Inc. Surveying and Mapping (Phone 407-660-2322) that the plat is current prior

SCALE:

9
/2

7
/2

0
1
7

        

        

3
:3

9
:2

3
 P

M

REVISIONS

D
A

T
E

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

F
IE

L
D
:

C
A

D
D
 B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
 B

Y
:

G
T

C
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 C

o
rp

o
ra
ti
o
n

4
0
7
-3

8
0
-0

4
0
2

9
8
 S
o
u
th
 S
e
m
o
ra

n
 B
lv
d
, 
O
rl
a
n
d
o
, 
F
L
  
3
2
8
0
7

D
A

T
E

J
O

B
 N

U
M

B
E

R
S

H
E

E
T

H
:\
J
o
b
s
1
\F

L
D

3
1
-S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e
\r
o
a
d

w
a
y
\S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e
 C

o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 P
la

n
s
\F

L
D

3
1
n
o
te
.d

g
n

F
lo
ri
d
a
  
 

C
it
y
 o
f 

A
p
o
p
k
a

F
L

D
-3

1

S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e

o
f 
7

C
M

Y

C
L
C

C
M

Y

G
E

O
D

A
T

A

N
u

m
b
e
r 
6
7
5
8

C
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
 o
f 
A
u
th

o
ri
za
ti
o
n

C
la

u
d
e
 L
. 
C
a
ss
a
g
n
o
l,
 P
.E
.

P
.E
. 
N
u

m
b
e
r 
3
5
4
9
0



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

910111213

14

15

16
RAIN TREES

SCATTERED

18 20
21 22 23 24 25

26272829

30 31 32 33

17

SEWER (TYP.)

EXISTING STORM

Water Treatment Plant

Not Platted

A-1

A-1

R-1AA
Vacant

R-1

19

S
.R
. 

4
2
9

LINE

PROPERTYSILT FENCE

PVC FENCE

EXISTING 6' A-1
Single Family Residence

EASEMENT

5' FENCE

SEWER

SANITARY

EXISTING 

FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING 5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 
EASEMENT

15' UTILITY

EXISTING

RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING

FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED

AND GUTTER

EXISTING CURB

SIDEWALK

EXISTING 5'

CONNECT TO

WATERMAIN

EXISTING 

FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING 

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 

EASEMENT

5' FENCE

PVC FENCE

EXISTING 6'

LINE

PROPERTY

SILT FENCE

INSTITUTIONAL/PUBLIC USE

R-1AA

A-1
Existing Nursery

AP
Vacant

LINE

PROPERTY

WATERMAIN

EXISTING 

EASEMENT

5' FENCE

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 

PVC FENCE

EXISTING 6'

SILT FENCE

PVC FENCE

EXISTING 6'

EASEMENT

5' FENCE

WATERMAIN

EXISTING 

FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING 

SILT FENCE

A-1

EASEMENT

40' UTILITY

EXISTING

LINE

PROPERTY

EASEMENT

5' FENCE

PVC FENCE

EXISTING 6'

SILT FENCE

SIDEWALK

EXISTING 5'

CONNECT TO

SIDEWALK

EXISTING 5'

CONNECT TO

WATERMAIN

EXISTING REUSE

AND GUTTER

EXISTING CURBSEWER

SANITARY

EXISTING 

AND GUTTER

EXISTING CURB

RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 
SIDEWALK

EXISTING 5'

CONNECT TO

WATERMAIN

EXISTING REUSE

LINE

PROPERTY

RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED (6" OFF LA R/W)

TYPE B FENCE

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

LIMITED ACCESS

(6" OFF LA R/W)

TYPE B FENCE

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

LIMITED ACCESS

SEWER (TYP.)

EXISTING STORM

FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING 

WATERMAIN

EXISTING 

WATERMAIN

EXISTING REUSE

WATERMAIN

EXISTING 

LIFT STATION

EXISTING 

FORCEMAIN

EXISTING 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

LIMITED ACCESS

WATERMAIN

EXISTING REUSE

FORCEMAIN

EXISTING 
WATERMAIN

EXISTING REUSE

AND GUTTER

EXISTING CURB

SEWER

SANITARY

EXISTING 

K
I
O

W
A
 
A

V
E

N
U

E

Single Family Residential
Valeview PUD

Not Platted

Not Platted

ACCESS TRACT

EMERGENCY

TRACT A

(0.18 Ac)

SPACE

OPEN

TRACT B

(0.30 AC)

SPACE

OPEN

TRACT C

TRACT

RECREATION

TRACT D

(1.07 Ac)

POND

RETENTION

EXISTING

TRACT F

(1.74 Ac)

POND

RETENTION

EXISTING

TRACT E

(0.10 Ac)

OPEN SPACE

TRACT G

AND DRAINAGE TRACT

TRACT I - LANDSCAPE

AND DRAINAGE TRACT

TRACT H - LANDSCAPE

BEGIN WALL END WALL

EASEMENT

5' FENCE/WALL

P
L

Y
M

O
U

T
H
 
S

O
R

R
E

N
T

O
 
R

O
A

D

BELGIAN STREET

KLAMATH LOOP

KLAMATH LOOP

K
I
O

W
A
 

A
V

E
N

U
E

SD

1
3
0
'

9
5
'

9
5
'

1
3
3
'

1
3
0
'

163'

1
2
1
'

8
6
'

47'

3
0
'

140'

140'

2
6
'

7
0
'

144'

1
6
5
'

9
5
'

95'

1
6
5
'

95'162'

1
8
9
'

125'

1
5
0
'

172'

1
4
6
'

150'

9
5
'

150'

1
2
5
'

156
'

1
4
4
'

1
6
3
'

94' 154' 95'
95'

145.8'

1
3
3
'

95'

1
3
3
'

95'

1
3
3
'

TOP

TOE

EP

EP

EP

EP

EP

EP

W/ TRANSFORMER

3'X3.5' CONC PAD

1" VPP

T
O

P

GT

GT

TOE

TOE

DIRT & CRUSHED ASPHALT RD

W
O

O
D

S
 
L
I
N

E

BRICK WALL

TOP

CONC SIDEWALK

CONC SIDEWALK

SCATTERED TREES

GRAVEL ROAD

EQUIPMENT
PLAYGROUND

H
E

D
G

E
 
L
I
N

E

IRON FENCE
6' WROUGHT 

4' HWF

6' WBF

IRON FENCE
6' WROUGHT 

BC

BC

BC

BC

EP

EP

EP

EP

CONC PVT

TOE

TOE

1.5'X1.5' BRICK (TYP)

C
R

O
S

S
W

A
L

K

B
A

R
S

T
O

P

T
O

P

T
O

E

FRAME SHED
FIBERGLASS "A"

G
T

WATER WATER

WATER

WATER
WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

SAN

ELEC

2.0'H. BY 1.5' W.

W/ TRANSFORMER

3'X3.5' CONC PAD

2.0'H. BY 1.5' W.

1" VPP

1" VPP

1" VPP

1" VPP

1" VPP

8" PVC8" PVC

8" PVC

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

10.5" DIP WELL CASING

WELL

TANK

ELEC

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

SAN

SAN

WATER

2" IRON BFP

SAN

8" PVC

8
" 

P
V

C

SAN 8" PVC

SAN

1
5
" 

C
P

P

1
5
" 

C
P

P

CURB INLET

1
5
" 

C
P

P18" CPP
15" CPP

18" CPP

SAN

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATERWATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

SAN

SAN

SAN

NPW

NPW

NPW

NPW

NPW

NPW
NPW

NPW

NPW

NPW
NPW

NPW
WATER

TOE

T
O

E

B
C

E
P

RAIN CLUSTER

NPW

NPW

W INV EL = 131.39'

E INV EL = 130.39'

S INV EL = 129.17'

RIM EL = 136.10'

SANITARY MANHOLE

EP

EP

E
P

E
P

CONC SIDEWALK

C
O

N
C
 
S
I
D

E
W

A
L

K

8"8"

8"

8"8"

8"

8"

TOP

T
O

P

T
O

P

8"

8"

8"

8"

8"

8"

8"

T
O

E

T
O

E

18"

18"

18"

8"

8"

8"

8"

8"

8"

8"
8"

6"M

6"M6"M

6"M

6"M6"M

6"M

6"M

6"M

18" 18"
18"

TOE

T
O

E

AIR RELEASE

8" 8" 8" 8" 8" 8"

EP

EP

NPW

NPW

NPW

BC
BC BC

BCBC
BC

B
C

B
C

BC
BC

BC

BC

BC

CONC RUBBLE
PARTIALLY BURIED

SPOUT
PUMP W/

S INV (14"X23" OCP) = 133.86'
TOP OF WALL EL = 136.52'

STRAIGHT ENDWALL

TOP

SPRINKLER CONTROL BOX

NPW

NPW

N INV (14"X23" OCP) = 133.67'
TOP OF WALL EL = 136.46'

STRAIGHT ENDWALL

18" CPP

1
8
" 

C
P

P

2
4
" 

C
P
P

8" PVC

8" PVC

8
" 
P

V
C

8
" 

P
V

C

8"PVC

6"PVC

END NOT LOCATED

END NOT LOCATED

W INV EL = 145.63'

S INV EL = 145.46'

RIM EL = 149.67'

SANITARY MANHOLE

SE INV EL = 144.70'

W INV EL = 144.85'

N INV EL = 144.94'

RIM EL = 149.70'

SANITARY MANHOLE

INV EL = 140.20'

MITERED END SECTION

CONC

ROCK SPILLWAY

INV EL = 140.37'

MITERED END SECTION

CONC

ROCK SPILLWAY

ROCK SPILLWAY

CONC

INV EL = 140.38'

MITERED END SECTION

18" CPP
18" CPP

1
5
" 

C
P

P
1
5
" 

C
P
P

NW INV EL = 145.03'

E INV EL = 144.84'

RIM EL = 149.51'

SANITARY MANHOLE

6
" 

P
V

C

END NOT LOCATED

EL = 142.57'
"REFERENCE LB 6556"
W/ NAIL & DISK STAMPED
SET 4"X4" CONCRETE MONUMENT
BENCHMARK 429202140W

S INV (14"X23" OCP) = 133.88'
N INV (14"X23" OCP) = 133.84'

RIM EL = 138.14'
PAVEMENT EL = 137.70'

GRATE AT EDGE OF
W/ MANHOLE
CURB INLET

S INV (14"X23" OCP) = 133.69'
N INV (14"X23" OCP) = 133.64'

RIM EL = 138.11'
PAVEMENT EL = 137.62'

GRATE AT EDGE OF
W/ MANHOLE
CURB INLET

W/ TRANSFORMER
CONC PAD

W/ TRANSFORMER
CONC PAD

S INV EL = 141.73'

RIM EL = 149.35'

W/ MANHOLE

CURB INLET
AND SERVICE BOX

W/ ELECTRIC METER

4"X4" CONC POST

EL = 148.37'
"REFERENCE LB 6556"
W/ NAIL & DISK STAMPED
SET 4"X4" CONCRETE MONUMENT
BENCHMARK 429202130E

SW INV EL = 140.43'

E INV EL = 141.12'

N INV EL = 141.62'

RIM EL = 149.37'

W/ MANHOLE

CURB INLET

E INV EL = 142.80'

RIM EL = 149.60'

W/ MANHOLE

CURB INLET

W INV EL = 142.59'

E INV EL = 140.58'

RIM EL = 149.50'

W/ MANHOLE

CURB INLET

FAUCET ATTACHED

2" IRON PIPE W/ SPOUT

BOTTOM EL = 144.72'

RIM EL = 150.64'

W/ IRON LID

REUSE MANHOLE

NW INV EL = 140.56'

S INV EL = 141.96'

RIM EL = 150.13'

W/ MANHOLE

CURB INLET

N INV EL = 141.99'

RIM EL = 149.79'

W/ MANHOLE

CURB INLET

W/ TRANSFORMER
CONC PAD

N INV EL = 133.41'
RIM EL = 140.24'

PAVEMENT EL = 139.63'
GRATE AT EDGE OF

W/ MANHOLE
CURB INLET

W INV EL = 133.18'
S INV EL = 133.37'

RIM EL = 140.43'
PAVEMENT EL = 139.87'

GRATE AT EDGE OF
W/ MANHOLE
CURB INLET

W INV EL = 132.89'
E INV EL = 132.94'

RIM EL = 141.97'
PAVEMENT EL = 141.44'

GRATE AT EDGE OF
W/ MANHOLE
CURB INLET

W INV EL = 143.43'
E INV EL = 142.19'
RIM EL = 150.10'
SANITARY MANHOLE

E INV EL = 143.62'
W INV EL = 143.73'

RIM EL = 147.89'
SANITARY MANHOLE

W INV EL = 141.28'
N INV EL = 141.22'
RIM EL = 148.08'
PAVEMENT EL = 147.59'
GRATE AT EDGE OF
DRAINAGE MANHOLE

E INV EL = 139.48'
N INV EL = 139.66'

RIM EL = 146.67'
PAVEMENT EL = 146.23'

GRATE AT EDGE OF
DRAINAGE MANHOLE

S INV EL = 140.15'
RIM EL = 146.54'

PAVEMENT EL = 146.02'
GRATE AT EDGE OF

DRAINAGE MANHOLE

NPW

NPW

NPW

NPW

NPW

NPWNPW

T
O

P

CONC SIDEWALK

TOP

TOP

RAIN TREES

SCATTERED

T
O

P

TOP

6.5' TALL BRICK WALL

BRICK COLUMNS
2' SQUARE

WOOD POSTS ON
TRELLIS W/ 0.6' WIDE

CONC PAVER WALKWAY

NPW

IN CURB

BUT PAINT MARKING

NO VALVE FOUND

S INV EL = 141.64'
RIM EL = 148.05'
PAVEMENT EL = 147.50'
GRATE AT EDGE OF
DRAINAGE MANHOLE

NW INV EL = 144.46'

E INV EL = 144.37'

RIM EL = 149.77'

SANITARY MANHOLE

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SCATTERED TREES

WOODED AREA

8' PVC FENCE

8' PVC FENCE

6
' 

P
V

C
 
F

E
N

C
E

6
' 

P
V

C
 
F

E
N

C
E

6
' 

P
V

C
 
F

E
N

C
E

6
' 

P
V

C
 
F

E
N

C
E

6' PVC FENCE

6' PVC FENCE

6
' 

P
V

C
 
F

E
N

C
E

6
' 

P
V

C
 
F

E
N

C
E

S
C

A
T

T
E

R
E

D
 
T

R
E

E
S

EP

EP

E
P

E
P

E
P

L
A

N
E
 
L
I
N

E

L
A

N
E
 
L
I
N

E

L
A

N
E
 
L
I
N

E

BRICK SUBDIVISION SIGN

BRICK SUBDIVISION SIGN

6
' 

C
L
F
 

6' CLF 

4' HWF 

4' HWF 

4' HWF 

4
' 

H
W

F
 

4
' 

H
W

F
 

6' CLF 

4' HWF 

6' CLF 

6
' 

P
V

C
 
F

E
N

C
E

CONC SLAB

HEDGE LINE

HEDGE LINE

5"M

5"M4"M4"M4"M
TWIN 4"M

5"M4"M
4"M

6"7"13"6"10"9" WILD CHERRY

3"M

3"M
4"M

3"M4"M4"M4"M4"M4"M4"M4"M

C
L

U
B

6
" 

H
E

R
C

U
L
E

S

E INV EL = 135.33'

W INV EL = 135.37'

W INV EL = 139.30'

RIM EL = 143.32'

SANITARY MANHOLE

NOTE:  USE RECORD PLAT FOR ALL CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT WORK.
95'

75'

8
5
'

130' Min.

Min 5'

(per City guidelines)

Garage

Side Entry SITE DATA

 Type III Silt Fence

Setback

(25' Corner)

10' Side

Setback

25' Front

TYPICAL LOT LAYOUT

Lots)

(25' on Perimeter

Setback

20' RearBEHIND LOTS 14, 15 AND 16.

NO STRUCTURES ALLOWED WITHIN 40' EASEMENT

OWNERS OF THE ADJACENT UTILITY PLANT FACILITY.

COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS TO ALERT HOME

A STATEMENT WILL BE INCORPORATED INTO THE

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

N

O
V

E
R

A
L
L
 P

L
A

N
 S

H
E

E
T

0
9
-2

6
-1

7

                1"=100'

 3

GEODATA CONSULTANTS, INC. (PHONE: 407-660-2322)

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY DATA BASED ON INFORMATION PROVIDED BY MANUAL TO BE USED FOR EROSION CONTROL PLANS
NOTE:  FLORIDA EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL

Optional Post Positions

( Canted 20 toward flow )
   Principle Post Position

Filter Fabric

Silt Flow

20
o

V
e
r
t
ic

a
l

+
-

o

Line
Property

2' Max.

     Total open space provided 

     Passive Recreation

     Active Recreation

     Retention Areas

Open Space Calculations  

Minimum Building Area   

Minimum Lot Size

     Corner

     Rear

     Side

     Front

Minimum Building Setbacks on Lots  

Maximum Building Height

Required open space / recreation

Proposed Density

Total Units

Current Zoning

Total Land Area

4.07 Ac.

0.58 Ac

0.68 Ac.

2.81 Ac.

 

1,700 Sq. Ft.

95' X 130'  (12,350 Sq. Ft.) 

25'

25'

10'

25'

 

35' (2-story)

25,000 sf

2.05 Units/Acre

33 Units

R-1AA

20.59 Ac.

GENERAL LEGEND

Silt Fence

  

Existing Storm with Inlet

 

Existing Limited Access R/W

 

Existing Curb and Gutter

 

Existing Right-of-Way

Property Line 

SCALE:

9
/2

7
/2

0
1
7

        

        

3
:3

9
:2

5
 P

M

REVISIONS

D
A

T
E

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

F
IE

L
D
:

C
A

D
D
 B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
 B

Y
:

G
T

C
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 C

o
rp

o
ra
ti
o
n

4
0
7
-3

8
0
-0

4
0
2

9
8
 S
o
u
th
 S
e
m
o
ra

n
 B
lv
d
, 
O
rl
a
n
d
o
, 
F
L
  
3
2
8
0
7

D
A

T
E

J
O

B
 N

U
M

B
E

R
S

H
E

E
T

H
:\
J
o
b
s
1
\F

L
D

3
1
-S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e
\r
o
a
d

w
a
y
\S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e
 C

o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 P
la

n
s
\f
ld

3
1
o
v
l.
d
g
n

F
lo
ri
d
a
  
 

C
it
y
 o
f 

A
p
o
p
k
a

F
L

D
-3

1

S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e

o
f 
7

C
M

Y

C
L
C

C
M

Y

G
E

O
D

A
T

A

P
L

Y
M

O
U

T
H
 
S

O
R

R
E

N
T

O
 
R

O
A

D50' R/W (P)
BELGIAN STREET

2
5
' 

U
N
-N

A
M

E
D
 
R
/W

N
u

m
b
e
r 
6
7
5
8

C
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
 o
f 
A
u
th

o
ri
za
ti
o
n

C
la

u
d
e
 L
. 
C
a
ss
a
g
n
o
l,
 P
.E
.

P
.E
. 
N
u

m
b
e
r 
3
5
4
9
0



Section A-A (n.t.s.)

12"

only to show height and location of wall.)

(Design by others.  Placed on these plans

Retaining Wall (Lots 21-25)

147.0

147.2

145.8

144.4

143.0

141.6

144.0

144.8

143.0

146.2

146.6

140.1

140.5

K
L

A
M

A
T

H
 
L

O
O

P

KIOWA AVENUE

B
E

L
G
I
A

N
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

142.6

142.2

143.2

144.4

146.9

149.5151.1

N.G. N.G. 

N.G. 

N.G. 

N.G. 

N.G. 

N.G. 

149.7

K
L

A
M

A
T

H
 
L

O
O

P

136.5

139.6

146.8

145.2

143.5

N.G. 

142.1

147.1

143.5

143.0

144.4

145.8

147.2

N.G. 

LIFT STATION

EXISTING 

LINE

PROPERTY

AND GUTTER

EXISTING CURB

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 

RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING

SEWER (TYP.)

EXISTING STORM

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

LIMITED ACCESS

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 

LINE

PROPERTY

LINE

PROPERTY

RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING

AND GUTTER

EXISTING CURB

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 

S.R. 
429

RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 

SEWER (TYP.)

EXISTING STORM

AND GUTTER

EXISTING CURB

AND GUTTER

EXISTING CURB

RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING

147.6

149.2

147.7

135.7

N.G. 

149.6

N.G. 

145.7

141.9

N.G. 

N.G. 

139.1

137.8

N.G. 

150.6

PVC FENCE

EXISTING 6'

PVC FENCE

EXISTING 6'

145.9

143.4

148.1

TOW 144.4

BOW 138.6

TOW 146.9

BOW 139.9

TOW 149.2

BOW 142.7

TOW 150.9

BOW 146.5

RETAINING WALL

N.G.

5'

MIN.1%

(6" OFF LA R/W)

TYPE B FENCE

PVC FENCE

EXISTING 6'

EASEMENT

5' FENCE

EASEMENT

5' FENCE

R
E

A
R
 

S
L

O
P

E

P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
 

R
E

A
R
 

S
L

O
P

E

P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
 

F
R

O
N

T
 

S
L

O
P

E

P
A

R
K

W
A

Y
 
S

L
O

P
E

S
T

R
E

E
T

R
E

A
R

S
W

A
L
E

S

SIDE SWALE

SIDE SLOPE

LOT GRADING TYPE A

for continuation

See Sheet 5

for continuation

See Sheet 5

N.G.

1% MIN.

LINE
PROPERTY 5'

149.7

148.6

TOW 136.4

BOW 136.4

END WALL

OPEN SPACE

TRACT G

LINE
PROPERTY

RAILING

54"

AA

VARIES

4:1 
MAX

EASEMENT LINE
FENCE/WALL

3'-4"

Section B-B (n.t.s.)

B

B

RETENTION POND

EXISTING

TRACT E

OPEN SPACE

TRACT C

OPEN SPACE

TRACT B

ACCESS TRACT

UTILITY AND

TRACT A

Varies
Elev

Varies
Elev

N.G. 

1
3
7

13
8

13
8

13
9

13
9

1
3
9

140

1
4
0

1
4
0

14
0

14
0

1
4
0

1
4
0

140

141

1
4
1

141

141

141
141

142

1
4
2

1
4
2

1
4
2

143

14
3

144

1
4
4

144

1
4
5

145

1
4
5

1
4
5

14
5

1
4
5

14
5146

1
4
6

14
6

1
4
6

14
6

1
4
6 1
4
6

14
6

14
6

1
4
6

14
7

147

1
4
7

1
4
7

147

14
7

1
4
7

1
4
7

1
4
7

148

1
4
8

1
4
8

1
4
8

148

148

14
8

1
4
8

148

1
4
9

1
4
9

149

149

149

1
4
9

150

1
5
0

1
5
0

150

15
0

15
0

1
5
0

1
5
0

1
5
0

150

1
5
0

1
5
0

15
0

15
1

15
1

1
5
1

15
2

1
5
2

T
O

P

T
O

E

E
P

E
P

E
P

E
PE
P

W
/
 
T

R
A

N
S

F
O

R
M

E
R

3
'X

3
.5
' 

C
O

N
C
 
P

A
D

1
" 

V
P

P

T
O

E

T
O

E

D
I
R

T
 

&
 
C

R
U

S
H

E
D
 

A
S

P
H

A
L
T
 
R

D

E
L
E

C

2
.0
'H
. 

B
Y
 
1
.5
' 

W
.

W
/
 
T

R
A

N
S

F
O

R
M

E
R

3
'X

3
.5
' 

C
O

N
C
 
P

A
D

2
.0
'H
. 

B
Y
 
1
.5
' 

W
.

1
" 

V
P

P

1
" 

V
P

P

1
" 

V
P

P

1
" 

V
P

P

1
" 

V
P

P

15" CPP

15" CPP

1
8
" 

C
P

P

W
A

T
E

R

B
C

B
C

B
C

B
C

B
C

B
C

C
O

N
C
 
R

U
B

B
L
E

P
A

R
T
I
A

L
L

Y
 
B

U
R
I
E

D

E
L
 
=
 
1
4
2
.5

7
'

"R
E

F
E

R
E

N
C

E
 
L

B
 
6
5
5
6
"

W
/
 

N
A
I
L
 

&
 

D
I
S

K
 
S

T
A

M
P

E
D

S
E

T
 
4
"X

4
" 

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E
 

M
O

N
U

M
E

N
T

B
E

N
C

H
M

A
R

K
 
4
2
9
2
0
2
1
4
0

W

W
/
 
T

R
A

N
S

F
O

R
M

E
R

C
O

N
C
 
P

A
D

W
/
 
T

R
A

N
S

F
O

R
M

E
R

C
O

N
C
 
P

A
D

F
A

U
C

E
T
 

A
T

T
A

C
H

E
D

2
" 
I
R

O
N
 
P
I
P

E
 

W
/
 
S

P
O

U
T

B
O

T
T

O
M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
4
.7

2
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
5
0
.6

4
'

W
/
 
I
R

O
N
 
L
I
D

R
E

U
S

E
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

W
/
 
T

R
A

N
S

F
O

R
M

E
R

C
O

N
C
 
P

A
D

W
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
3
.4

3
'

E
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
2
.1

9
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
5
0
.1

0
'

S
A

N
I
T

A
R

Y
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

E
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
3
.6

2
'

W
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
3
.7

3
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
7
.8

9
'

S
A

N
I
T

A
R

Y
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

W
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
1
.2

8
'

N
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
1
.2

2
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
8
.0

8
'

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
7
.5

9
'

G
R

A
T

E
 

A
T
 
E

D
G

E
 

O
F

D
R

A
I
N

A
G

E
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

E
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
3
9
.4

8
'

N
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
3
9
.6

6
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
6
.6

7
'

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
6
.2

3
'

G
R

A
T

E
 

A
T
 
E

D
G

E
 

O
F

D
R

A
I
N

A
G

E
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

S
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
0
.1

5
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
6
.5

4
'

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
6
.0

2
'

G
R

A
T

E
 

A
T
 
E

D
G

E
 

O
F

D
R

A
I
N

A
G

E
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

6
.5
' 

T
A

L
L
 
B

R
I
C

K
 

W
A

L
L

S
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
1
.6

4
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
8
.0

5
'

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
7
.5

0
'

G
R

A
T

E
 

A
T
 
E

D
G

E
 

O
F

D
R

A
I
N

A
G

E
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

W
O

O
D

E
D
 

A
R

E
A

8
' 

P
V

C
 
F

E
N

C
E

8
' 

P
V

C
 
F

E
N

C
E

6
' 

P
V

C
 
F

E
N

C
E

6' PVC FENCE

6' PVC FENCE

E
P

E
P

6
' 

C
L
F
 

6
' 

C
L
F
 

C
O

N
C
 
S

L
A

B

E
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
3
5
.3

3
'

W
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
3
5
.3

7
'

W
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
3
9
.3

0
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
3
.3

2
'

S
A

N
I
T

A
R

Y
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

SCALE:

9
/2

7
/2

0
1
7

        

        

3
:3

9
:2

7
 P

M

REVISIONS

D
A

T
E

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

F
IE

L
D
:

C
A

D
D
 B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
 B

Y
:

G
T

C
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 C

o
rp

o
ra
ti
o
n

4
0
7
-3

8
0
-0

4
0
2

9
8
 S
o
u
th
 S
e
m
o
ra

n
 B
lv
d
, 
O
rl
a
n
d
o
, 
F
L
  
3
2
8
0
7

D
A

T
E

J
O

B
 N

U
M

B
E

R
S

H
E

E
T

H
:\
J
o
b
s
1
\F

L
D

3
1
-S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e
\r
o
a
d

w
a
y
\S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e
 C

o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 P
la

n
s
\f
ld

3
1
g
ra

1
.d

g
n

F
lo
ri
d
a
  
 

C
it
y
 o
f 

A
p
o
p
k
a

F
L

D
-3

1

S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e

o
f 
7

C
M

Y

C
L
C

C
M

Y

G
E

O
D

A
T

A

AND GUTTER

EXISTING CURB

AND GUTTER

EXISTING CURB151.0

N.G. 

150.7

N.G. 

148.4

148.4152.0150.6

150.7TOW 152.0

BOW 151.8

BEGIN WALL

EASEMENT

5' FENCE

EASEMENT

5' FENCE/WALL

150.9

S
D

W
A
T
E
R

1
4
3
.61

4
2
.6

142.2
1
4
2
.31

4
3
.2

1
4
3
.1

1
4
3
.5

1
4
2
.4

1
4
3
.3

1
4
3
.9

1
4
1
.8

1
4
1
.5

1
4
2
.2

1
4
3
.2

1
4
3
.0

1
4
1
.9

1
4
1
.9

1
4
2
.5

1
4
2
.1

1
4
1
.4

1
4
1
.0

1
4
0
.3

1
4
0
.5

1
4
0
.2

1
4
0
.1

1
4
0
.8

1
4
2
.2

1
4
2
.5

1
4
3
.2

1
4
2
.8

1
4
2
.4

1
4
1
.7

1
4
1
.0

1
4
0
.8

1
4
0
.3

1
4
0
.81

4
0
.2

1
4
0
.6

1
4
2
.1

1
4
2
.3

1
4
2
.5

1
4
3
.1

1
4
3
.5

1
4
3
.4

VARIES

MIN 6"

FINISHED FLOOR

FINISHED FLOOR

MIN.
1%

L
O

T
 

L
IN

E

20' MIN.

BETWEEN LOTS

TYPICAL SECTION

NOTE:  USE RECORD PLAT FOR ALL CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT WORK.
             A MINIMUM 2-CAR GARAGE

NOTE:  ALL HOUSES SHALL CONTAIN 

A

F.F. 147.4

25

A

F.F. 151.6

26
A

F.F. 151.6

33

A

F.F. 150.2

8
A

F.F. 150.0

6
A

F.F. 147.6

5

A

F.F. 146.3

4 A

F.F. 143.9

2

A

F.F. 144.9

1

A

F.F. 144.9

3

A

F.F. 151.2

7

N

GEODATA CONSULTANTS, INC. (PHONE: 407-660-2322)

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY DATA BASED ON INFORMATION PROVIDED BY

               1"=50'

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

0
9
-2

6
-1

7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

G
R

A
D
IN

G
 P

L
A

N

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 4

A

F.F. 149.7

24

A

F.F. 152.5

22

A

F.F. 151.4

23

A

F.F. 153.0

27

A

F.F. 153.0

32 A

F.F. 152.1

8

5:1 MAX

5:1 SIDE YARD SLOPE

AS NECESSARY FOR MAX

PROVIDE STEM WALL

GENERAL LEGEND

Retaining Wall

Existing Storm with Inlet

 

Existing Limited Access R/W

 

Existing Curb and Gutter

 

Existing Right-of-Way

Property Line 

A

F.F. 153.7

10

A

F.F. 153.1

21

A

F.F. 153.0

28

A

F.F. 153.0

31

TYPICAL LOT GRADING

N
u

m
b
e
r 
6
7
5
8

C
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
 o
f 
A
u
th

o
ri
za
ti
o
n

C
la

u
d
e
 L
. 
C
a
ss
a
g
n
o
l,
 P
.E
.

P
.E
. 
N
u

m
b
e
r 
3
5
4
9
0

3:1 M
AX



K
L

A
M

A
T

H
 
L

O
O

P

K
L

A
M

A
T

H
 
L

O
O

P

LINE

PROPERTY

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 

SEWER (TYP.)

EXISTING STORM

LINE

PROPERTY

RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 

SEWER (TYP.)

EXISTING STORM

AND GUTTER

EXISTING CURB

AND GUTTER

EXISTING CURB

LINE

PROPERTY

151.0

N.G. 

152.6

N.G. 

152.5

N.G. 

153.0

N.G. 

158.9

N.G. 

160.0

N.G. 

157.6

N.G. 

155.0

N.G. 

152.4

N.G. 

150.7

N.G. 

152.7

N.G. 

156.5

N.G. 

158.3

N.G. 

157.2

N.G. 

157.6

N.G. 

163.6

N.G. 

148.4

149.1

149.4

150.2

150.5

150.2

150.0

150.2

148.4152.0

152.0 149.2

153.0

154.3

154.3

150.4

154.0

151.2 149.6

153.8

153.0154.0

152.9

150.6

150.6

150.4

150.5

150.7

150.2

150.4

150.3

6' PVC FENCE

EXISTING 

6' PVC FENCE

EXISTING

6' PVC FENCE

EXISTING

for continuation

See Sheet 4 

for continuation

See Sheet 4 

TOW 152.0

BOW 151.8

EASEMENT

5' FENCE

EASEMENT

5' FENCE

EASEMENT

5' FENCE

EASEMENT

40' UTILITY

EXISTING

EASEMENT

15' UTILITY

EXISTING

R
E

A
R
 

S
L

O
P

E

P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
 

R
E

A
R
 

S
L

O
P

E

P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IV

E
 

F
R

O
N

T
 

S
L

O
P

E

P
A

R
K

W
A

Y
 
S

L
O

P
E

S
T

R
E

E
T

R
E

A
R

S
W

A
L
E

S

SIDE SWALE

SIDE SLOPE

LOT GRADING TYPE A

BEGIN WALL

EASEMENT

5' FENCE

EASEMENT

5' FENCE/WALL

RETENTION POND

EXISTING

TRACT F

TRACT

RECREATION

TRACT D

N.G. 

N.G. 

N.G. 

151.1

151.3

150.2

150.9

151.3

N.G. 

N.G. 

152.0

152.0

151.0

151.6

N.G. 

151.5

150.7

S
D

139

140
140

1
4
0

140

141

141

142

142

143

14
3

144

1
4
4

144

145

14
5

1
4
5

145

145

1
4
5

1
4
6

146

146

1
4
7

147

14
7

1
4
8

1
4
8

1
4
8

148

1
4
8

1
4
9

1
4
9

1
4
9

1
4
9

1
4
9

149

1
4
9

1
4
9

149

149

1
4
9

1
5
0

15
0

1
5
0

1
5
0

150

150

150

1
5
0

1
5
0

1
5
0

1
5
0

15
0

150

1
5
0

1
5
0

1
5
0

1
5
0

1
5
0

1
5
0

1
5
0

1
5
0

150

1
5
0

150

1
5
0

15
0

150

150

1
5
0

15
0

150

1
5
0

150

1
5
0

1
5
1

1
5
1

151

15
1

1
5
1

15
1

1
5
1

1
5
1

15
1

1
5
2

152

152

152

15
2

1
5
2

15
2

152

152

1
5
2

152

1
5
2

1
5
3

15
3

15
3

153

1
5
4

154

154

15
4

1
5
5

1
5
5

15
5

15
5

1
5
5

155

155

1
5
6

156

156

157

157

1
5
7

158
158

1
5
8

159

15
9

160

161

162

1
6
3

E
P

E
P

E
P

E
P

W
/
 
T

R
A

N
S

F
O

R
M

E
R

3
'X

3
.5
' 

C
O

N
C
 
P

A
D

2
.0
'H
. 

B
Y
 
1
.5
' 

W
.

1
" 

V
P

P

1
" 

V
P

P

8
" 

P
V

C

8
" 

P
V

C

15" CPP

W
A

T
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

T
O

E

TOE

BC

EP

R
A
I
N
 
C

L
U

S
T

E
R

E
P

E
P

EP

EP

C
O

N
C
 
S
I
D

E
W

A
L

K

CONC SIDEWALK

8
"

8
"

8
"

8
"

8
"

8
"

8
"

T
O

P

TOP

TOP

8
" 8
"

8
"

8
"

8
"

8
" 8
"

TOE

TOE

1
8
"

1
8
" 1
8
"

8
"

8
"

8
"

8
"

8
"

8
"

8
"

8
"

6
"M

6
"M

6
"M 6

"M

6
"M

6
"M

6
"M

6
"M6

"M

1
8
"

1
8
"

1
8
"

T
O

E

TOE

A
I
R
 
R

E
L
E

A
S

E

8
"

8
"

8
"

8
"

8
"

8
"

E
P

E
P

B
C

B
C

B
C

B
C

BC

BC

B
C

B
C

B
C

B
C

1
8
" 

C
P

P

18" CPP

24" CPP

8
" 
P

V
C

8
"P

V
C

S
E
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
4
.7

0
'

W
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
4
.8

5
'

N
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
4
.9

4
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
9
.7

0
'

S
A

N
I
T

A
R

Y
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
0
.2

0
'

M
I
T

E
R

E
D
 
E

N
D
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

C
O

N
C

R
O

C
K
 
S

P
I
L
L

W
A

Y

I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
0
.3

7
'

M
I
T

E
R

E
D
 
E

N
D
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

C
O

N
C

R
O

C
K
 
S

P
I
L
L

W
A

Y

R
O

C
K
 
S

P
I
L
L

W
A

Y

C
O

N
C

I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
0
.3

8
'

M
I
T

E
R

E
D
 
E

N
D
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

1
8
" 

C
P

P
1
8
" 

C
P

P

15" CPP
15

" C
PP

6" PVC

S
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
1
.7

3
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
9
.3

5
'

W
/
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

C
U

R
B
 
I
N

L
E

T
A

N
D
 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
 
B

O
X

W
/
 
E

L
E

C
T

R
I
C
 

M
E

T
E

R

4
"X

4
" 

C
O

N
C
 
P

O
S

T

S
W
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
0
.4

3
'

E
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
1
.1

2
'

N
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
1
.6

2
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
9
.3

7
'

W
/
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

C
U

R
B
 
I
N

L
E

T

E
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
2
.8

0
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
9
.6

0
'

W
/
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

C
U

R
B
 
I
N

L
E

T

W
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
2
.5

9
'

E
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
0
.5

8
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
9
.5

0
'

W
/
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

C
U

R
B
 
I
N

L
E

T

F
A

U
C

E
T
 

A
T

T
A

C
H

E
D

2
" 
I
R

O
N
 
P
I
P

E
 

W
/
 
S

P
O

U
T

B
O

T
T

O
M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
4
.7

2
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
5
0
.6

4
'

W
/
 
I
R

O
N
 
L
I
D

R
E

U
S

E
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

N
W
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
0
.5

6
'

S
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
1
.9

6
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
5
0
.1

3
'

W
/
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

C
U

R
B
 
I
N

L
E

T

N
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
1
.9

9
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
9
.7

9
'

W
/
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

C
U

R
B
 
I
N

L
E

T

W
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
3
.4

3
'

E
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
2
.1

9
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
5
0
.1

0
'

S
A

N
I
T

A
R

Y
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

E
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
3
.6

2
'

W
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
3
.7

3
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
7
.8

9
'

S
A

N
I
T

A
R

Y
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

TOP

C
O

N
C
 
S
I
D

E
W

A
L

K

T
O

P

T
O

P

R
A
I
N
 
T

R
E

E
S

S
C

A
T

T
E

R
E

D

TOP

T
O

P

B
R
I
C

K
 
C

O
L

U
M

N
S

2
' 

S
Q

U
A

R
E

W
O

O
D
 
P

O
S

T
S
 

O
N

T
R

E
L
L
I
S
 

W
/
 
0
.6
' 

W
I
D

E

C
O

N
C
 
P

A
V

E
R
 

W
A

L
K

W
A

Y

N
W
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
4
.4

6
'

E
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
4
.3

7
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
9
.7

7
'

S
A

N
I
T

A
R

Y
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

6' PVC FENCE

6
' 

P
V

C
 
F

E
N

C
E

6
' 

P
V

C
 
F

E
N

C
E

VARIES

MIN 6"

FINISHED FLOOR

FINISHED FLOOR

MIN.
1%

L
O

T
 

L
IN

E

20' MIN.

BETWEEN LOTS

TYPICAL SECTION

NOTE:  USE RECORD PLAT FOR ALL CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT WORK.

             A MINIMUM 2-CAR GARAGE

NOTE:  ALL HOUSES SHALL CONTAIN 

N

GEODATA CONSULTANTS, INC. (PHONE: 407-660-2322)

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY DATA BASED ON INFORMATION PROVIDED BY

               1"=50'

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

G
R

A
D
IN

G
 P

L
A

N

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

5
 

A

F.F. 153.7

10

A

F.F. 153.7

11

A

F.F. 155.3

12

A

F.F. 155.3

13

A

F.F. 154.5

14

A

F.F. 153.5

15

A

F.F. 154.5

16

A

F.F. 154.5

17

A

F.F. 153.9

18

A

F.F. 153.5

19

A

F.F. 153.1

20

A

F.F. 153.1

21

A

F.F. 153.0

29

A

F.F. 153.0

30

A

F.F. 153.0

28

A

F.F. 153.0

31

5:1 MAX

5:1 SIDE YARD SLOPE

AS NECESSARY FOR MAX

PROVIDE STEM WALL

GENERAL LEGEND

Retaining Wall

Existing Storm with Inlet

 

Existing Limited Access R/W

 

Existing Curb and Gutter

 

Existing Right-of-Way

Property Line 

0
9
-2

6
-1

7

SCALE:

9
/2

7
/2

0
1
7

        

        

3
:3

9
:2

8
 P

M

REVISIONS

D
A

T
E

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

F
IE

L
D
:

C
A

D
D
 B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
 B

Y
:

G
T

C
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 C

o
rp

o
ra
ti
o
n

4
0
7
-3

8
0
-0

4
0
2

9
8
 S
o
u
th
 S
e
m
o
ra

n
 B
lv
d
, 
O
rl
a
n
d
o
, 
F
L
  
3
2
8
0
7

D
A

T
E

J
O

B
 N

U
M

B
E

R
S

H
E

E
T

H
:\
J
o
b
s
1
\F

L
D

3
1
-S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e
\r
o
a
d

w
a
y
\S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e
 C

o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 P
la

n
s
\f
ld

3
1
g
ra

2
.d

g
n

F
lo
ri
d
a
  
 

C
it
y
 o
f 

A
p
o
p
k
a

F
L

D
-3

1

S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e

o
f 
7

C
M

Y

C
L
C

C
M

Y

G
E

O
D

A
T

A

TYPICAL LOT GRADING

N
u

m
b
e
r 
6
7
5
8

C
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
 o
f 
A
u
th

o
ri
za
ti
o
n

C
la

u
d
e
 L
. 
C
a
ss
a
g
n
o
l,
 P
.E
.

P
.E
. 
N
u

m
b
e
r 
3
5
4
9
0



1
3
7

13
8

13
8

13
9

13
9

1
3
9

140

1
4
0

1
4
0

14
0

14
0

1
4
0

1
4
0

140

141

1
4
1

141

141

141
141

142

1
4
2

1
4
2

1
4
2

143

144

1
4
4

144

1
4
5

145

1
4
5

1
4
5

14
5146

1
4
6

14
6

1
4
6

14
6

1
4
6 1
4
6

14
6

14
6

1
4
6

14
7

147

1
4
7

147

14
7

1
4
7

1
4
7

148

1
4
8

148

148

14
8

148

149

149

1
5
0

T
O

P

T
O

E

E
PE
P

T
O

E

T
O

E

D
I
R

T
 

&
 
C

R
U

S
H

E
D
 

A
S

P
H

A
L
T
 
R

D

W
A

T
E

R

1
" 

V
P

P

1
" 

V
P

P

8
" 

P
V

C

8
" 

P
V

C

W
A

T
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

S
A

N

8
" 

P
V

C

S
A

N

15" CPP

1
8
" 

C
P

P

W
A

T
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

W
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
3
1
.3

9
'

E
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
3
0
.3

9
'

S
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
2
9
.1

7
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
3
6
.1

0
'

S
A

N
I
T

A
R

Y
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

N
P

W

B
C

B
C

B
C

C
O

N
C
 
R

U
B

B
L
E

P
A

R
T
I
A

L
L

Y
 
B

U
R
I
E

D

E
L
 
=
 
1
4
2
.5

7
'

"R
E

F
E

R
E

N
C

E
 
L

B
 
6
5
5
6
"

W
/
 

N
A
I
L
 

&
 

D
I
S

K
 
S

T
A

M
P

E
D

S
E

T
 
4
"X

4
" 

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E
 

M
O

N
U

M
E

N
T

B
E

N
C

H
M

A
R

K
 
4
2
9
2
0
2
1
4
0

W

W
/
 
T

R
A

N
S

F
O

R
M

E
R

C
O

N
C
 
P

A
D

W
/
 
T

R
A

N
S

F
O

R
M

E
R

C
O

N
C
 
P

A
D

E
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
3
9
.4

8
'

N
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
3
9
.6

6
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
6
.6

7
'

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
6
.2

3
'

G
R

A
T

E
 

A
T
 
E

D
G

E
 

O
F

D
R

A
I
N

A
G

E
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

S
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
0
.1

5
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
6
.5

4
'

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
6
.0

2
'

G
R

A
T

E
 

A
T
 
E

D
G

E
 

O
F

D
R

A
I
N

A
G

E
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

N
P

W
N

P
W

N
P

W

N
P

W

N
P

W

N
P

W
N

P
W

6
.5
' 

T
A

L
L
 
B

R
I
C

K
 

W
A

L
L

S
D

S
D

W
O

O
D

E
D
 

A
R

E
A

8
' 

P
V

C
 
F

E
N

C
E

6
' 

C
L
F
 

E
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
3
5
.3

3
'

W
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
3
5
.3

7
'

W
 
I
N

V
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
3
9
.3

0
'

R
I

M
 
E

L
 
=
 
1
4
3
.3

2
'

S
A

N
I
T

A
R

Y
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

5
5

1
9
7

100

101

102

1
0
3

10
4

105
106

107
108

109
110

111
112

113
114

115

SCALE:

9
/2

7
/2

0
1
7

        

        

3
:3

9
:2

9
 P

M

REVISIONS

D
A

T
E

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

F
IE

L
D
:
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
A

D
D
 B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
 B

Y
:

  
  
  
 

G
T

C
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 C

o
rp

o
ra
ti
o
n

4
0
7
-3

8
0
-0

4
0
2

9
8
 S
o
u
th
 S
e
m
o
ra

n
 B
lv
d
, 
O
rl
a
n
d
o
, 
F
L
  
3
2
8
0
7

D
A

T
E

J
O

B
 N

U
M

B
E

R
S

H
E

E
T

H
:\
J
o
b
s
1
\F

L
D

3
1
-S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e
\r
o
a
d

w
a
y
\S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e
 C

o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 P
la

n
s
\f
ld

3
1
p
ro
f1
.d

g
n

F
lo
ri
d
a
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
 

  
  
  
 

S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e

C
it
y
 o
f 

A
p
o
p
k
a

F
L

D
-3

1

S
D

W
A
T
E
R

ASPHALT

EP
BC

R
I

M
 
E

L
:1

4
0
.3

7
'

D
R

A
I
N

A
G

E
 

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

C
U

R
B
 
I
N

L
E

T
 

W
/

P
V

C
 
C

O
N

D
U
I
T

2
" 

V
E

R
T
I
C

A
L
 
E

L
E

C
T

R
I
C

1
" 

H
O

S
E
 

W
A

T
E

R
 

H
O

O
K
-

U
P

P
I
P

E
 
(W

A
T

E
R
) 

6
' 

H
T

P
V

C
 
E

V
E

R
-

G
R

E
E

N

8
" 

V
E

R
T
I
C

A
L

P
V

C
 
C

O
N

D
U
I
T

E
L
E

C
T

R
I
C

2
" 

V
E

R
T
I
C

A
L
 

P
I
P

E
 
(W

A
T

E
R
) 

3
' 

H
T

E
V

E
R
-

G
R

E
E

N

8
" 

V
E

R
T
I
C

A
L
 
P

V
C

W
A

T
E

R
 

H
O

O
K
-

U
P

R
E

C
L

A
I

M
1
" 

H
O

S
E

W
A

T
E

R
 
C

O
N

D
U
I
T

2
" 

V
E

R
T
I
C

A
L
 
P

V
C

1
4
2
.4

1
4
3
.3

1
4
3
.9

1
4
1
.8

1
4
1
.5

1
4
2
.2

1
4
3
.2

1
4
3
.0

1
4
1
.9

1
4
2
.5

1
4
2
.1

1
4
1
.4

1
4
1
.0

1
4
0
.3

1
4
0
.5

1
4
0
.2

1
4
0
.1

1
4
0
.8

1
4
2
.2

1
4
2
.4

1
4
1
.7

1
4
1
.0

1
4
0
.8

1
4
0
.3

1
4
0
.81

4
0
.2

1
4
0
.6

1
4
2
.1

1
4
2
.3

1
4
2
.5

1
4
3
.1

110

115

120

125

130

135

140

145

150

100+00 101+00 102+00 103+00 104+00 105+00 106+00 107+00 108+00 109+00 110+00 111+00 112+00 113+00 114+00

110

115

120

125

130

135

140

145

150

INV. 121.00

INV. 125.70

INV. 127.30

INV. 128.10

INV. 136.70

INV. 135.70

INV. 135.40

INV. 132.70

INV. 138.50
INV. 138.80

INV. 132.00

INV. 139.30

INV. 132.00

INV. 141.70

INV. 141.50

INV. 134.70

INV. 131.90

INV. 131.70

INV. 135.00 INV. 135.50

INV. 139.70

INV. 135.80

18" STORM

EXIST.

18" STORM

EXIST.

15" STORM

EXIST.

15" STORM

EXIST.

15" STORM

EXIST.

15" STORM

EXIST.

18" CPP STORM

EXIST.

18" STORM

EXIST.

STORM

19"X30"

EXIST.

24" STORM

EXIST.

18" STORM

EXIST.

EXIS
T. 1

8" S
TORM

EXIST. 15" STORM

EXIST. 18" STORM

EXIST. 24" STORM

EXIST. 18" STORM

15" STORM

EXIST.

  

  

INLET

CURB

EXIST.
INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST. INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

EXIST. 8" 
PVC SANITARY

EXIST. 8" PVC SANITARY

EXIST. 8" PVC SANITARY

EXIST. 8" PVC SANITARY

EXIST. 8" PVC SANITARY

INV. 132.53

INV. 132.64

INV. 133.71

INV. 133.86

INV. 141.65

INV. 134.78

INV. 134.94

INV. 136.32

SANITARY

8" PVC

EXIST.

SANITARY

8" PVC

EXIST.

� KIOWA AVE.

� KIOWA AVE.

� KIOWA AVE.

KIOWA AVE.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST. INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.
INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.
INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

M.E.S.

EXIST.

M.E.S.

EXIST. M.E.S.

EXIST.

M.E.S.

EXIST.

MANHOLE

STORM

EXIST.

18" STORM

EXIST.

18" STORM

EXIST.

18" STORM

EXIST.

15" STORM

EXIST.

15" STORM

EXIST.

15" STORM

EXIST.

15" STORM

EXIST.

15" STORM

EXIST.

15" STORM

EXIST.
15" STORM

EXIST.

15" STORM

EXIST.

18" STORM

EXIST.

18" STORM

EXIST.

24" STORM

EXIST.

24" STORM

EXIST.

18" STORM

EXIST.

18" STORM

EXIST.

18" STORM

EXIST.

18" STORM

EXIST.

SANITARY

8" PVC

EXIST.

8" PVC SANITARY

EXIST.
8" PVC SANITARY

EXIST.

SANITARY

8" PVC

EXIST.

L
O

O
P

K
L

A
M

A
T

H

8" GATE VALVE

EXIST.

8" PVC WM

EXIST.

8"X8" TEE

EXIST.

8" GATE VALVE

EXIST.

8" GATE VALVE

EXIST.

8" PVC WM

EXIST.

8" PVC WM

EXIST.

8" PVC WM

EXIST.

HYDRANT

EXIST. FIRE

HYDRANT

EXIST. FIRE

WM

8" PVC

EXIST.

8" GATE VALVE

EXIST.

VALVE

8" GATE

EXIST.

VALVE

8" GATE

EXIST.

8"X8" TEE

EXIST.

8" GATE VALVE

EXIST.

8" PVC RWM

EXIST.

8" PVC RWM

EXIST.

6"X8" REDUCER

EXIST.

VALVE

6" GATE

EXIST.

VALVE

6" GATE

EXIST.

CURB INLET

EXIST.

VALVE

6" GATE

EXIST.

6" PVC RWM

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

AT � KIOWA AVE.
EXISTING GROUND

AT � KIOWA AVE.
EXISTING GROUND

AT � KIOWA AVE.
EXISTING GROUND

N

1"=50' HORIZ

1"=5' VERT

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

L
O

O
P

K
L

A
M

A
T

H

8" PVC WM

EXIST.

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST. WM

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST. WM

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST. WM

CURB INLET

EXIST.

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST. SANITARY

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST. SANITARY

6" PVC RWM

EXIST.

6"X6" TEE

EXIST.

6" GATE VALVE

EXIST.

6" PVC RWM

EXIST.

6" GATE VALVE

EXIST.

RWM

6" PVC

EXIST.

RWM

6" PVC

EXIST.

BLOWOFF VALVE

EXIST. RWM

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST, RWM

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST, RWM

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST, RWM

INV. 135.39

INV. 135.33

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

19"x30" STORM

EXIST.

G
E

O
D

A
T

A

A
M

C
M

Y

A
M

OPEN SPACE

TRACT C

OPEN SPACE

TRACT B

RETENTION POND

EXISTING

TRACT E

ACCESS TRACT

UTILITY AND

TRACT A

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

LIMITED ACCESS

(6" OFF LA R/W)

TYPE B FENCE

LIFT STATION

EXISTING 

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED

SAN

6
 o
f 
7

for continuation

See Sheet 7

for continuation

See Sheet 7

P
L

A
N
/P

R
O

F
IL

E
 -
 K
IO

W
A
 A

V
E
.

24

25

26
33

8 7
6 5

4
3

2
1

0
9
-2

6
-1

7

Existing Reuse Main

Sanitary with Manhole

Existing Storm with Inlet

 

Existing Watermain

 

Existing Curb and Gutter

 

Existing Right-of-Way

Existing Contour

GENERAL LEGEND

N
u

m
b
e
r 
6
7
5
8

C
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
 o
f 
A
u
th

o
ri
za
ti
o
n

C
la

u
d
e
 L
. 
C
a
ss
a
g
n
o
l,
 P
.E
.

P
.E
. 
N
u

m
b
e
r 
3
5
4
9
0



1
3
9

14
0

1
4
4

1
4
4

145

14
5 145

146

1
4
6

1
4
6

146

146

1
4
6

14
6

146

1
4
7

147

147

147

147

147

147

148

148

148

1
4
8

148

14
9

149

149

149

149

1
4
9

149

149

149

1
5
0

150

15
0

150

150

1
5
0

1
5
0

1
5
0

150
150

150

150

1
5
0

1
5
0 1

5
0

1
5
0

15
0

150

151

151

1
5
1

151

15
1

152

1
5
2

1
5
2

1
5
2

1
5
2

152

15
3

1
5
4

15
5

140

1
4
0

1
4
1

14
2

1
4
2

142

14
3

1
4
3

14
3

143 143

1
4
4

1
4
4

144

144

144

1
4
5

145

1
4
5

1
4
5

1
4
5

145

14
6

1
4
6

1
4
6

1
4
7

1
4
7

1
4
7

1
4
7

1
4
8

1
4
8

1
4
8

148

1
4
9

1
4
9

1
4
9

149

1
4
9 1
4
9

1
5
0

150

150150

150

1
5
0

150

150
150

150

150

150

15
0

1
5
0

150

1
5
0

150

15
0

150

15
1

151

151

151

1
5
2

EP

EP

EP

EP

W/ TRANSFORMER

3'X3.5' CONC PAD

1" VPP

WATER

WATER

WATER

SAN

2.0'H. BY 1.5' W.

1" VPP

1" VPP

8" PVC8" PVC

1
5
" 

C
P

P

1
5
" 

C
P

P

18" CPP

SAN

WATER

WATERWATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

SAN

NPW

NPW

NPW

E
P

E
P

C
O

N
C
 
S
I
D

E
W

A
L

K

8"

8"

8"

8"

T
O

E

T
O

E

18"

18"

18"

8"

8"

8"

8"

8"

8"

8"

6"M

6"M6"M

18" 18"
18"

8" 8" 8" 8" 8" 8"

EP

EP

NPW

NPW

NPW

BC
BC BC

BCBC
BC

B
C

B
C

18" CPP

1
8
" 

C
P

P

2
4
" 

C
P
P

8" PVC

6"PVC

END NOT LOCATED

W INV EL = 145.63'

S INV EL = 145.46'

RIM EL = 149.67'

SANITARY MANHOLE

INV EL = 140.20'

MITERED END SECTION

CONC

ROCK SPILLWAY

NW INV EL = 145.03'

E INV EL = 144.84'

RIM EL = 149.51'

SANITARY MANHOLE

6
" 

P
V

C

END NOT LOCATED

S INV EL = 141.73'

RIM EL = 149.35'

W/ MANHOLE

CURB INLET
AND SERVICE BOX

W/ ELECTRIC METER

4"X4" CONC POST

SW INV EL = 140.43'

E INV EL = 141.12'

N INV EL = 141.62'

RIM EL = 149.37'

W/ MANHOLE

CURB INLET

E INV EL = 143.62'
W INV EL = 143.73'

RIM EL = 147.89'
SANITARY MANHOLE

W INV EL = 141.28'
N INV EL = 141.22'
RIM EL = 148.08'
PAVEMENT EL = 147.59'
GRATE AT EDGE OF
DRAINAGE MANHOLE

E INV EL = 139.48'
N INV EL = 139.66'

RIM EL = 146.67'
PAVEMENT EL = 146.23'

GRATE AT EDGE OF
DRAINAGE MANHOLE

S INV EL = 140.15'
RIM EL = 146.54'

PAVEMENT EL = 146.02'
GRATE AT EDGE OF

DRAINAGE MANHOLE

CONC SIDEWALK

TOP

BRICK COLUMNS
2' SQUARE

WOOD POSTS ON
TRELLIS W/ 0.6' WIDE

NPW

IN CURB

BUT PAINT MARKING

NO VALVE FOUND

S INV EL = 141.64'
RIM EL = 148.05'
PAVEMENT EL = 147.50'
GRATE AT EDGE OF
DRAINAGE MANHOLE

SD
SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

EP

EP

WATERWATER

WATER

WATER
WATER

ELEC

2.0'H. BY 1.5' W.

W/ TRANSFORMER

3'X3.5' CONC PAD

1" VPP

1" VPP

1" VPP

8" PVC SAN
8" PVC

SAN

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

SAN

SAN

NPW

NPW

NPW

NPW
NPW

NPW

B
C

E
P

RAIN CLUSTER

NPW

NPW

EP

EP

CONC SIDEWALK

8" 8"

8"

8" 8"

8"

8"

TOP

T
O

P

8"

8"

8"

BC
BC

BC

BC

BC

8" PVC

8
" P

V
C

8
" 

P
V

C

8"PVC

END NOT LOCATED

SE INV EL = 144.70'

W INV EL = 144.85'

N INV EL = 144.94'

RIM EL = 149.70'

SANITARY MANHOLE

INV EL = 140.37'

MITERED END SECTION

CONC

ROCK SPILLWAY

ROCK SPILLWAY

CONC

INV EL = 140.38'

MITERED END SECTION

18" CPP
18" CPP

1
5
" 

C
P

P
1
5
" 

C
P
P

E INV EL = 142.80'

RIM EL = 149.60'

W/ MANHOLE

CURB INLET

W INV EL = 142.59'

E INV EL = 140.58'

RIM EL = 149.50'

W/ MANHOLE

CURB INLET

FAUCET ATTACHED

2" IRON PIPE W/ SPOUT

BOTTOM EL = 144.72'

RIM EL = 150.64'

W/ IRON LID

REUSE MANHOLE

NW INV EL = 140.56'

S INV EL = 141.96'

RIM EL = 150.13'

W/ MANHOLE

CURB INLET

N INV EL = 141.99'

RIM EL = 149.79'

W/ MANHOLE

CURB INLET

W INV EL = 143.43'
E INV EL = 142.19'
RIM EL = 150.10'
SANITARY MANHOLE

NPW

NW INV EL = 144.46'

E INV EL = 144.37'

RIM EL = 149.77'

SANITARY MANHOLE

SD

SD

SD

SD

E INV EL = 135.33'

W INV EL = 135.37'

W INV EL = 139.30'

RIM EL = 143.32'

SANITARY MANHOLE

SD

1
8

1
9

20 21 22 23 24 25

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

1
7

1
8

SCALE:

9
/2

7
/2

0
1
7

        

        

3
:3

9
:3

1
 P

M

REVISIONS

D
A

T
E

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

F
IE

L
D
:
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
A

D
D
 B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
 B

Y
:

  
  
  
 

G
T

C
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 C

o
rp

o
ra
ti
o
n

4
0
7
-3

8
0
-0

4
0
2

9
8
 S
o
u
th
 S
e
m
o
ra

n
 B
lv
d
, 
O
rl
a
n
d
o
, 
F
L
  
3
2
8
0
7

D
A

T
E

J
O

B
 N

U
M

B
E

R
S

H
E

E
T

H
:\
J
o
b
s
1
\F

L
D

3
1
-S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e
\r
o
a
d

w
a
y
\S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e
 C

o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 P
la

n
s
\f
ld

3
1
p
ro
f2
.d

g
n

F
lo
ri
d
a
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
 

  
  
  
 

S
ta

n
to

n
 R
id

g
e

C
it
y
 o
f 

A
p
o
p
k
a

F
L

D
-3

1

N

N

10+00 11+00 12+00 13+00 14+00 15+00 16+00 17+00 18+00 19+00 20+00 21+00 22+00 23+00 24+00 25+00

115

120

125

130

135

140

145

150

155

115

120

125

130

135

140

145

150

155

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

INV. 132.53

INV. 135.33

INV. 139.30

EXIST. 8" PVC SANITARY

EXIST. 8" PVC SANITARY

EXIST. 8" PVC SANITARY

SANITARY

EXIST. 8" PVC

SANITARY

8" PVC

EXIST.

INV. 142.19

INV. 143.43 INV. 144.37 INV. 144.70

SANITARY

8" PVC

EXIST.

INV. 144.85

INV. 144.94

INV. 144.46

INV. 145.46

EXIST. 8" PVC SANITARY

EXIST. 8" PVC SANITARY

INV. 144.84

INV. 143.73

INV. 143.62

INV. 141.65

INV. 133.71

SANITARY

8" PVC

EXIST.

STORM

15" CPP

EXIST.
STORM

18" CPP

EXIST.

SANITARY

8" PVC

EXIST.

CURB INLET

EXIST.

CURB INLET

EXIST.

CURB INLET

EXIST.

EXIST. 18" CPP STORM

STORM

18" CPP

EXIST.

24" CPP STORM

EXIST.

18" CPP STORM

EXIST.

INV. 141.62

INV. 140.43

INV. 141.12 INV. 141.28 INV. 141.22

15" CPP STORM

EXIST.

15" CPP STORM

EXIST.

INV. 139.66

INV. 139.48

SANITARY

EXIST. 8" PVC

INV. 132.64

KLAMATH LOOP

K
I
O

W
A
 

A
V

E
.

KLAMATH LOOP

K
I
O

W
A
 

A
V

E
.

� KLAMATH LOOP

AT � KLAMATH LOOP
EXISTING GROUND

(THIS SHEET)
MATCHLINE STA. 18+00.00

(THIS SHEET)
MATCHLINE STA. 18+00.00

1"=50' HORIZ

1"=5' VERT

  
- 
 -
  

  
- 
 -
  

  
- 
 -
  

  
- 
 -
  

  
- 
 -
  

  
- 
 -
  

  
- 
 -
  

8" PVC WM

EXIST.

8" PVC WM

EXIST.
8" PVC WM

EXIST.

8" PVC WM

EXIST.

8" PVC WM

EXIST.

8" PVC WM

EXIST.

8" PVC WM

EXIST.

8" GATE VALVE

EXIST. 8" GATE VALVE

EXIST.

8"X8" TEE

EXIST.

8" GATE VALVE

EXIST.

8" GATE VALVE

EXIST.

8" GATE VALVE

EXIST.

8" GATE VALVE

EXIST.

8"X8" TEE

EXIST.

HYDRANT

EXIST. FIRE

HYDRANT

EXIST. FIRE

RWM

6" PVC

EXIST.

6" PVC RWM

EXIST.

6" PVC RWM

EXIST.

6" PVC RWM

EXIST.

REDUCER

6"X8"

EXIST.

6" GATE VALVE

EXIST.

6" GATE VALVE

EXIST.

6" PVC RWM

EXIST.

6" PVC RWM

EXIST.

6" PVC RWM

EXIST.

6" PVC RWM

EXIST.

6" PVC RWM

EXIST.

VALVE

6" GATE

EXIST.

6" GATE VALVE

EXIST.

6"X6" TEE

EXIST.

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST, RWM

VALVE

8" GATE

EXIST.

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST, RWM

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST, RWM

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST. WM

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST. WM

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST. WM

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST. WM

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST. WM

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST, RWM

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST, RWM

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST. SANITARY

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST. SANITARY
SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST. SANITARY

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST. SANITARY

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST. SANITARY

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST. SANITARY

SERVICE (TYP.)

EXIST. SANITARY

P
L

A
N
/ 
P

R
O

F
IL

E
 -
 K

L
A

M
A

T
H
 L

O
O

P

G
E

O
D

A
T

A

A
M

C
M

Y

A
M

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED

RETENTION POND

EXISTING

TRACT F

TRACT

RECREATION

TRACT D

RETENTION POND

EXISTING

TRACT F

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

MANHOLE

SANITARY

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST. INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

INLET

CURB

EXIST.

8" PVC SANITARY

EXIST.

8" PVC SANITARY

EXIST.

8" PVC SANITARY

EXIST.

8" PVC SANITARY

EXIST.

8" PVC SANITARY

EXIST.

INV. 135.37

INV. 133.86

SAN

7
 o
f 
7

8

910111213

14

15

30 31 32 33

25 24 23 22 21 20 19 18

17

29282726

16

for continuation

See Sheet 6

for continuation

See Sheet 6

for continuation

See Sheet 6

fo
r 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n

S
e
e
 S

h
e
e
t 
6

0
9
-2

6
-1

7

Existing Reuse Main

Sanitary with Manhole

Existing Storm with Inlet

 

Existing Watermain

 

Existing Curb and Gutter

 

Existing Right-of-Way

Existing Contour

GENERAL LEGEND

N
u

m
b
e
r 
6
7
5
8

C
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
 o
f 
A
u
th

o
ri
za
ti
o
n

C
la

u
d
e
 L
. 
C
a
ss
a
g
n
o
l,
 P
.E
.

P
.E
. 
N
u

m
b
e
r 
3
5
4
9
0









 

 

 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: June 12, 2018 
 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 
X OTHER: Final Development Plan   Aerial Map 
    FDP Site/Landscape Plans 
    Parking Analysis 
    Building Elevations 

  
SUBJECT:    FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – WEKIVA RIVERWALK SHOPPING 

CENTER 

    

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 

THE WEKIVA RIVERWALK SHOPPING CENTER, GROCERY STORE 

ADDITION 
  
SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Woolbright Wekiva, LLC. 
 
ENGINEER:   Sun-Tech Engineering, Inc., Clifford R. Loutan, P.E.   
 
LOCATION: 2121 East Semoran Boulevard 
 
PARCEL ID #:  12-21-28-9093-00-010 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Commercial 
 
ZONING: C-1 
 
EXISTING USE: Retail Shopping Plaza  
 
PROPOSED USE: Grocery Store 
 
TRACT SIZE:   24.74 +/- acres 
 
OVERALL  
DEVELOPMENT SIZE: 28,600 square feet 
 
BUILDING SIZE: 28,600 square feet   
 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 
    

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
WEKIVA RIVERWALK – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Office R-1 Single Family Residential 

East (City, 

County) 

Office (City) 

Low Density Residential 

(County)  

PO/I (City) 

P-D, R-1 

(County)  

Wekiwa Springs Road\Single Family 

Residential, Assisted Living Facility 

South (City) Commercial C-1 Semoran Blvd.\Retail Shopping Plaza 

West (County) Low Density Residential  R-1 Single Family Residential  

         

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping Center Final Development Plan 

proposes a 28,600 square foot grocery store in the northeastern corner of the existing Wekiva Riverwalk 

shopping center building. Currently located in this tenant space is a restaurant and retail space. The Final 

Development Plan details an 8,500 square foot addition to the portion of the existing building where the 

grocery store is proposed. The addition will be constructed in an area that is currently used for parking and 

a drive aisle. The drive aisle leads into a driveway opening that currently allows access into the shopping 

center from Wekiwa Springs Road. The Final Development Plan proposes relocation of the driveway 

opening 90-feet to the south along Wekiva Springs Road to accommodate the proposed building addition. 

Wekiwa Springs Road is an Orange County maintained road. Orange County has provided correspondence 

to the City indicating approval of the relocation of the driveway opening 90-feet to the south along Wekiwa 

Springs Road, and will issue a permit for the driveway relocation upon the City of Apopka’s approval of 

the Final Development Plan.  

       

PARKING:  The Final Development Plan provides a demolition plan which proposes the removal of 52 

parking spaces to all for the 8,500 square foot building addition. Upon removal of the existing parking 

spaces to allow for the building addition, a total of 1,237 parking spaces will be provided in the Wekiva 

Riverwalk shopping center. This is a sufficient amount of parking to accommodate the proposed grocery 

store and the existing uses located in the shopping center. The applicant has submitted a parking statement 

prepared by a professional engineer which concludes there will be a sufficient amount of parking provided 

in the shopping center with the removal of the parking spaces that will accommodate the building addition. 

Staff has accepted and is in agreement with this parking statement.  

 

ACCESS:  Access to the site will be provided via a relocated driveway opening located 90-feet to the south 

along Wekiwa Springs Road, and existing driveway openings located along Semoran Boulevard. Wekiwa 

Springs Road is an Orange County maintained road. Orange County has provided correspondence to the 

City indicating approval of the relocation of the driveway opening 90-feet to the south along Wekiwa 

Springs Road. 

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  Staff has found the proposed building elevations to be designed in 

accordance with the City’s Development Design Guidelines. 

   

STORMWATER: Stormwater run-off and drainage is accommodated by an existing on-site stormwater 

drainage system.  

 

BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM:  The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the 

portion of the parking lot in front of the proposed grocery store. The planting materials and irrigation system 

design are consistent with the water-efficient landscape standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.    



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
WEKIVA RIVERWALK – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
June 12, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

June 20, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm)  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

 

The Development Review Committee recommends the approval of the Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping 

Center Final Development Plan. 

 

Planning Commission Recommendation:  The role of the Planning Commission for this development 

application is to advise the City Council to approve, deny, or approve with conditions based on consistency 

with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code. 

 

Recommended Motion:  Find the Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping Center Final Development Plan consistent 

with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and recommend approval of the Wekiva 

Riverwalk Shopping Center Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report for the 

property owned by Woolbright Wekiva, LLC and located at 2121 East Semoran Boulevard. 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
WEKIVA RIVERWALK – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant:     Woolbright Wekiva, LLC              

Engineer:  Sun-Tech Engineering, Inc., c/o Clifford R. Loutan, P.E. 
Parcel I.D. No:    12-21-28-9093-00-010 
Location:  2121 East Semoran Boulevard 
Acres:  4.19 +/-  

 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – JUNE 12, 2018 
WEKIVA RIVERWALK – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant:     Woolbright Wekiva, LLC              

Engineer:  Sun-Tech Engineering, Inc., c/o Clifford R. Loutan, P.E. 
Parcel I.D. No:    12-21-28-9093-00-010 
Location:  2121 East Semoran Boulevard 
Acres:  4.19 +/-  

 
  

AERIAL MAP 
 
 

 
 























































J F O  G R O U P  I N C  
Traf f ic Engineer ing     T ransportat ion P lanning 
 
w w w . j f o g r o u p i n c . c o m  

2018-05-14_Wekiva Riverwalk_Parking_1002.03    

1 1 9 2 4  F o r e s t  H i l l  B o u l e v a r d ,  S u i t e  1 0 A ‐ 1 2 3      W e l l i n g t o n ,  F l o r i d a  3 3 4 1 4  
T :  ( 5 6 1 )  5 1 2 - 7 5 5 6      F :  ( 5 6 1 )  4 2 3 - 2 3 4 5      i n f o @ j f o g r o u p i n c . c o m  

May 14, 2018 
 
Bobby Howell, AICP, Senior Planner 
Community Development 
120 East Main Street  
Apopka, FL 32703 
hhowell@apopka.net 
 
RE: Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping Center – Parking Statement 

Project No. SPR18-05R - Parcel ID 12-21-28-9093-00-010 
 
Dear Bobby,  
 
JFO Group Inc. has been retained to prepare a parking statement associated with the Wekiva Riverwalk 
Shopping Center in the City of Apopka, Florida. The project is located on the northwest corner of E Semoran 
Boulevard (SR 436) and Wekiwa Springs Road. Figure 1 shows an aerial location of the site in relation to the 
transportation network. The parcel ID Number associated with this request is 12-21-28-9093-00-010. 
 
According to the proposed site plan, the northeast portion of the 
Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping Center is being reconfigured to add 
±8,500 square feet of retail uses, and, the existing driveway on 
Wekiwa Springs Road is being relocated 90 feet to the south. 
 
According to the proposed site plan for the property, the Wekiva 
Riverwalk Shopping Center is proposing 1,237 parking spaces while 
1,288 parking spaces are required by code. This results in a 
proposed parking ratio of 11 space for each 211 square feet of gross 
floor area instead of the 1 space for each 200 square feet of gross 
floor area required by code.  
 
Based on our professional experience, our knowledge of the City of 
Apopka and our experience in Orange County, we do not 
anticipate having parking supply issues at the Wekiva Riverwalk 
Shopping Center. For instance, we have seen shopping centers in 
the County with parking ratios as high as 12 space for each 300 
square feet of gross floor area. Furthermore, the average parking 
rate defined under the Institute of Transportation Engineers for 
Shopping Centers recommends 1 space for each 253 square feet of gross floor area during Fridays in December 
which is the busiest weekday time of the year.  
 
Consequently, we are confident that the proposed 1,237 parking spaces instead of the 1,288 parking spaces 
required by code will be adequate to accommodate the anticipated parking demand at the Wekiva Riverwalk 
Shopping Center. 
 
Sincerely, 

J F O  G R O U P  I N C  
COA Number 32276 
 

Dr. Juan F. Ortega, P.E. 
President 

                                                            
1 260,799 Gross Building Square Feet/1,237 Parking Spaces Provided 
2 Alafaya Commons. Parcel ID: 312222005100030 

 
Figure 1 : Project Location 

W
ekiw

a Springs Rd 

Site 

Semoran Blvd (SR 436) 




	Top
	1 06-12-18 - PC - Minutes - 05-22-18
	PC 05-22-18 Minutes.pdf

	1. 06-12-18 - PC - Publlic Hearing - Change of Zoning - JTD Land at Rogers Road, LLC
	JTD Land Carriage Hill Ph. 2 RZ PC 6-12-2018.pdf

	2. 06-12-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning - Master Plan - Overlay Districts - Kelly Park Rd Publix Center - JD &amp; Kathleen Horne Trust
	1 PZ Staff Report KP Publix Rezoning_Master Plan_PDP.pdf
	2 Kelly Park Publix Master Plan_PDP.pdf

	3. 06-12-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Large Scale FLUM - Min Sun Cho et al
	1 Min Sun Choe FLU PC 6-12-2018 PS Additions.pdf
	2 WPIVP Character Districts Description.pdf
	3 Future Land Use Element_Policy 18.pdf
	4 JPA 2nd Amend_Signed.pdf

	4. 06-12-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Comp Plan SM FLUM - 3255 Clarcona Road LLC
	1 Randall Mechanical FLU PC 6-12-2018 - PS Additions.pdf

	5. 06-12-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning - 3255 Clarcona Road LLC
	3255 Clarcona LLC Randall Mechanical RZ PC 6-12-2018.pdf

	6. 06-12-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning - SunTrust Bank - 936 E Semoran Blvd
	SunTrust East RZ PC 6-12-2018.pdf

	7. 06-12-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning - Master Plan - PDP - Vista Reserve - Wafaa Mikhail, George Abdelsayed, Lucy Abdelsayed, Wafeek Abdelsayed
	1 PZ Staff Report Vista Reserve PUD - ZON - PC 06 12 18.pdf
	2 Vista Reserve - Master Plan PDP.pdf
	3 Architectural Elevations.pdf

	8. 06-12-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Variance - Laura  R. Murphy (aka Equestrian Center)
	1 Laura Murphy-Bridlewood - Variance -PC 6-12-18.pdf
	2 Application for Variance (Signed).pdf
	3 Site Plan.pdf
	4 Proposed Fence.pdf

	9. 06-12-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Variance - TGINF, LLC
	1 TGINF - Hidden Lake- Variance - PC 6-12-18.pdf
	2 TGINF LLC - Hidden Lake - Variance - Application.pdf
	3 TGINF LLC - Variance - Site Plan.pdf
	4 TGINF LLC - Hidden Lake - Proposed Fence Rendering.pdf
	5 TGINF LLC - Hidden Lake - OCPS DRC Comments.pdf

	1. 06-12-18 - PC - Site Plan - Preliminary Development Plan - Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision
	1 Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision PDP - PC 6.12.18.pdf
	2 Hidden Lake PDP - Full Plans.pdf
	3 Hidden Lake PDP - Landscape Plans.pdf
	4 TGINF LLC - Hidden Lake - OCPS DRC Comments.pdf

	2. 06-12-18 - PC - Site Plan - Final Development Plan/Plat - Stanton Ridge
	1  Stanton Ridge FDP - ZON - PC 06 12 18.pdf
	2 Stanton Ridge plans and replat 06 06 18.pdf

	3. 06-12-18 - PC - Site Plan - Final Development Plan - Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping Center
	1 Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping Center FDP - Planning Commission 6-12-18.pdf
	2 Wekiva Riverwalk Shopping Center FDP.pdf
	3 Wekiva Riverwalk Parking Statement.pdf
	4 Wekiva Riverwalk Architectural Elevation.pdf

	Bottom

